The 19th World Congress of the International Fuzzy Systems Association The 12th Conference of the European Society for Fuzzy Logic and Technology jointly with the AGOP, IJCRS, and FQAS conferences

IFSA – EUSFLAT 2021

Bratislava, Slovakia September 19–24, 2021

Book of Abstracts





Edited by Radko Mesiar, Marek Reformat, Martin Štěpnička





Title: Book of Abstracts

IFSA-EUSFLAT 2021 jointly with AGOP, IJCRS, and FQAS

Editors: Radko Mesiar, Marek Reformat, Martin Štěpnička Publisher: University of Ostrava

© Radko Mesiar, Marek Reformat, Martin Štěpnička, 2021

 $\widecheck{\mathbb{O}}$ University of Ostrava, Institute for Research and Applications of Fuzzy Modeling

ISBN 978-80-7599-269-7

The conference is organized by:

SIPKES, s.r.o.

Faculty of Civil Engineering (FCE), Slovak University of Technology (STU)

Institute for Research and Applications of Fuzzy Modeling, University of Ostrava



SLOVAK UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY IN BRATISLAVA FACULTY OF CIVIL ENGINEERING



in cooperation with:







and sponsored by:



Committees

General Chairs:

Radko Mesiar (Slovak University of Technology, Slovakia) Marek Reformat (University of Alberta, Canada) Martin Štěpnička (University of Ostrava, Czech Republic)

Organizing Chair:

Ladislav Šipeky (SIPKES Agency, Slovakia)

IFSA-EUSFLAT Programme Chairs:

Masahiro Inuiguchi (Osaka University, Japan) Vladik Kreinovich (University of Texas at El Paso, USA)

AGOP Programme Chairs:

Bernard De Baets (Ghent University, Belgium) Marek Gagolewski (Deakin University, Australia)

IJCRS Programme Chairs:

Chris Cornelis (Ghent University, Belgium) Sheela Ramanna (University of Winnipeg, Canada)

FQAS General Chairs:

Troels Andreasen (Roskilde University, Denmark) Guy De Tré (Ghent University, Belgium) Janusz Kacprzyk (Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences, Poland)

FQAS Programme Chairs:

Gloria Bordogna (Institute for Electromagnetic Sensing of the Environment, Italy) Slawomir Zadrozny (Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences, Poland)

Advisory Board:

Susana Montes (University of Oviedo, Spain) Christian Wagner (University of Nottingham, United Kingdom) Janusz Kacprzyk (Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences, Poland) Davide Ciucci (University of Milano-Bicocca, Italy) Javier Montero (Complutense University of Madrid, Spain) Gabriella Pasi (University of Milano-Bicocca, Italy)

Publiction Chairs:

Petr Hurtík (University of Ostrava, Czech Republic) Luis Martínez López (University of Jaém, Spain)

Publicity Chairs:

Humberto Bustince (Universidad Publica de Navarra, Spain) Sebastia Massanet (University of the Balearic Islands, Spain) Balasubramaniam Jayaram (Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad, India) Scott Dick (University of Alberta, Canada)

Special Session Chairs:

Antoon Bronselaer (Ghent University, Belgium) Peter Sussner (University of Campinas, Brazil) Ondrej Hutník (Pavol Jozef Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia)

Grants and Award Chairs:

Christophe Marsala (Sorbonne Université, France) Eulalia Szmidt (Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences, Poland) Vilém Novák (University of Ostrava, Czech Republic)

Area Chairs:

Area 1: Basics of fuzzy set theory: fuzzy relations, generalizations of fuzzy sets, etc. S. Díaz (Spain) and M. Daňková (Czech Republic)

Area 2: Integral and Measure Theory A. Rico (France) and L. Halčinová (Slovakia)

Area 3: Algebra, topology, category theoryM. Papčo (Slovakia) and R. Halaš (Czech Republic)

Area 4: Many-valued logics and algebraic structures for reasoning B. Gerla (Italy) and L. Běhounek (Czech Republic)

Area 5: Generalized quantifiers and natural language modeling J. Kacprzyk (Poland) and M. Holčapek (Czech Republic)

Area 6: Dynamical modeling: fuzzy dynamical systems and fuzzy differential equations E. Esmi (Brazil) and J. Kupka (Czech Republic)

Area 7: Uncertainty modeling, fuzzy probability and statistics I. Couso (Spain) and P. Grzegorzewski (Poland)

Area 8: Rough sets and formal concept analysis J. Medina (Spain) and M. Ojeda-Aciego (Spain)

Area 9: Fuzzy systems: decision-making, inference systems, preference modeling, optimization M. Grabisch (France) and B. Jayaram (India)

Area 10: Machine learning and AI E. Hüllermeier (Germany) and M.-J. Lesot (France)

Area 11: Signal processing: image, video, and speech processing I. Perfilieva (Czech Republic) and C. López-Molina (Spain)

Area 12: Data analysis: clustering, associations mining, classification J. Hee Yoon (Korea) and F. Masulli (Italy)

Area 13: Computational Intelligence in Information systems S. Zadrozny (Poland) and C. Marsala (France)

Area 14: *Fuzzy Control* J. M. Escaño (Spain) and G. B. Gharehpetian (Iran) Area 15: Software and e-applications: eHealth, recommendation systems, etc. E. Portmann (Switzerland) and J. Serrano (Spain)

Area 16: Engineering applications incl. IoT, environmental modeling, bioscience engineering R. Kruse (Germany) and T. Sudkamp (USA)

FQAS Advisory Board:

Andreasen T. (Denmark) Cardenosa J. (Spain) Christiansen H. (Denmark) Chountas P. (UK) De Tré G. (Belgium) Fischer Nilsson J. (Denmark) Fuhr N. (Germany) Jaudoin H. (France) Kacprzyk J. (Poland) Kraft D. (USA) Larsen H.L. (Denmark) Martin-Bautista M.J. (Spain) Pasi G. (Italy) Petry F. (USA)

Pivert O. (France) Slowinski R. (Poland) Sotirov S. (Bulgary) Spyratos N. (France) Yager R.R. (USA) Yazici A. (Turkey) Zadrozny S. (Poland)

Organizing Committee:

Bacigál T.	Kupka J.	Stupňanová A.
Dyba M.	Malina M.	Škorupová N.
Hůla J.	Molek V.	Štěpničková L.
Kalina M.	Pavliska V.	Vaigl M.

Program Committee:

Acampora G. (Italy) Calvo T. (Spain) Ekel P. (Brasil) Aguzzoli S. (Italy) Carlsson C. (Finland) Fernandez J. (Spain) Akbarzadeh-T M.-R. (Iran) Carvalho J. P. (Portugal) Ferrer J. C. (Spain) Aliev R. (Azerbaijan) Castellano G. (Italy) Figueroa-Garcia J. C. (Colom-Allahviranloo T. (Turkey) Castillo O. (Mexico) bia) Filev D. (USA) Alonso J. M. (Spain) Ceberio M. (USA) Angelov P. (United Kingdom) Chalco-Cano Y. (Chile) Flaminio T. (Spain) Assmus S. (Latvia) Chen G. Q. (China) Furuhashi T. (Japan) Atanassov K. T. (Bulgaria) Chen S.-M. (Taiwan) Gaeta M. (Italy) Baczynski M. (Poland) Cholewa W. (Poland) Gagolewski M. (Poland) Balas V. E. (Romania) Chountas P. (UK) Garibaldi J. M. (United King-Bargiela A. (UK) Ciucci D. (Italy) dom) Batyrshin I. (Russia) Collan M. (Finland) Gerla B. (Italy) Bedregal B. C. (Brazil) Colubi A. (Spain) Godo L. (Spain) Běhounek L. (Czech Republic) Cordero P. (Spain) Gomez-Romero J. (Spain) Beliakov G. (Australia) Cordon O. (Spain) Gomide F. (Brazil) Bělohlávek R. (Czech Repub-Cornelis C. (Spain) Grabisch M. (France) D'Aniello G. (Italy) Greco S. (Italy) lic) Berthold M. (Germany) Grzegorzewski P. (Poland) Daňková M. (Czech Republic) Bezdek J. (USA) De Baets B. (Belgium) Halaš R. (Czech Republic) Bloch I. (France) De Cock M. (USA) Hall L. (USA) Bobillo F. (Spain) De Meyer H. (Belgium) Herrera F. (Spain) Borisov V.V. (Russia) De Tre G. (Belgium) Herrera-Viedma E. (Spain) Borkotokey S. (India) Di Nola A. (Italy) Hirota K. (Japan) Holčapek M. (Czech Republic) Bouchon-Meunier B. (France) Diaz I. (Spain) Bronselaer A. (Belgium) Dick S. (Canada) Holeňa M. (Czech Republic) Burczynski T. (Poland) Dimuro G. (Brazil) Homenda W. (Poland) Burda M. (Czech Republic) Dubois D. (France) Honda A. (Japan) Bustince H. (Spain) Durante F. (Italy) Hudec M. (Slovakia) Cabrera I. P. (Spain) Dvořák A. (Czech Republic) Huellermeier E. (Germany)

Hurtik P. (Czech Republic) Inuiguchi M. (Japan) Ishibuchi H. (Japan) James S. (Australia) Janiš V. (Slovakia) Javaram B. (India) Jin L. (China) Kacprzyk J. (Poland) Kahraman C. (Turkey) Kalina M. (Slovakia) Kaymak U. (Netherlands) Keller J. (USA) Kerre E. (Belgium) Khastan A. (Iran) Kim S.S. (Korea) Klawonn F. (Germany) Klement E.P. (Austria) Koczy L. T. (Hungary) Kolesárová A. (Slovakia) Konečný J. (Czech Republic) Kreinovich V. (United States) Kruse R. (Germany) Kupka J. (Czech Republic) Kuswadi S. (Indonesia) Lee C.-S. (Taiwan) Leporini R. (Italy) Li J. (China) Li Y. (China) Lin C.-T. (Taiwan) Linares S. (Spain) Liu X. (USA) Lodwick W.A. (USA) Loia V. (Italy) Lopez-Molina C. (Spain) Lu J. (Australia) Lughofer E. (Austria) Luo M. (China) Madrid N. (Spain) Magdalena L. (Spain) Marcelloni F. (Italy) Marsala C. (France) Martín-Bautista M. J. (Spain) Martínez L. (Spain) Massanet S. (Spain) Medina J. (Spain) Mendel J. (USA) Merigo J. (Chile)

Mesiar R. (Slovakia) Michalíková A. (Slovakia) Mnasri Z. (Tunisia) Močkoř J. (Czech Republic) Moczulski W. (Poland) Montero J. (Spain) Montes S. (Spain) Murinová P. (Czech Republic) Nakashima T. (Japan) Navara M. (Czech Republic) Nguyen H.T. (USA) Niskanen V. (Finland) Noguera C. (Czech Republic) Novák V. (Czech Republic) Nurmi H. (Finland) Oh S.-K. (Korea) Ojeda-Aciego M. (Spain) Olivas J. A. (Spain) Ouyang Y. (China) Pal N.K. (India) Pal S.R. (India) Pedrycz W. (Canada) Perez Fernandez R. (Spain) Perfilieva I. (Czech Republic) Petrík M. (Czech Republic) Petriu E. (Canada) Petrosino A. (Italy) Phuong N.-H. (Vietnam) Pivert O. (France) Platoš J. (Czech Republic) Portmann E. (Switzerland) Prade H. (France) Pykacz J. (Poland) Ralescu A. (USA) Ralescu D. (USA) Ramík J. (Czech Republic) Reformat M. (Canada) Rhee F. C.-H. (Korea) Robinson A. (Canada) Romero F. P. (Spain) Rovetta S. (Italy) Ruiz M. D. (Spain) Rusnok P. (Czech Republic) Sadeghian A. (Canada) Sanchez D. (Spain) Seising R. (Germany) Serrano-Guerrero J. (Spain)

Sessa S. (Italy) Skowron A. (Poland) Slezak D. (Poland) Slowinski R. (Poland) Snášel V. (Czech Republic) Sotirov S. (Bulgaria) Sousa J. (Portugal) Sozzo S. (UK) Stefanini L. (Italy) Straccia U. (Italy) Stupnanova A. (Slovakia) Su S.-F. (Taiwan) Sussner P. (Brazil) Szmidt E. (Poland) Sešelja B. (Serbia) Šostak A. (Latvia) Štěpnička M. (Czech Republic) Takáč Z. (Slovakia) Tanscheit R. (Brasil) Tao C.-W. (Taiwan) Tarassov V. (Russia) Teheux B. (Luxembourg) Teran L. (Switzerland) Terceno A. (Spain) Torra V. (Ireland) Tsai C.-C. (Taiwan) Tulupyev A. (Russia) Vats E. (Sweden) Verdegay J. L. (Spain) Verma R. (India) Vetterlein T. (Austria) Wang L. (Singapore) Watada J. (Japan) Wilbik A. (Netherlands) Yager R. (USA) Yamada M. (Japan) Yao Y. (Canada) Yarushkina N. G. (Russia) Ying H. (USA) Yoon J. H. (South Korea) Yu F. (China) Zadrozny S. (Poland) Zemankova A. (Slovakia) Zhang G. (Australia) Zuo H. (Australia)

The programme committee of the FQAS event may be found on http://www.ifsa-eusflat2021.eu/fqas_conf.html The programme committee of the IJCRS event may be found on http://www.ifsa-eusflat2021.eu/ijcrs_conf.html

Table of Contents

Plenary talks	23
Do we need fuzzy cluster analysis? FRANK KLAWONN	25
Preference Learning in Evolutionary Multiobjective Optimization ROMAN SŁOWIŃSKI	26
Protecting data privacy in emerging scenarios Sabrina De Capitani di Vimercati	27
Handling Uncertainty in Dynamical Systems: Challenges and Opportunities MARTINE CEBERIO	28
Fuzzy implication functions 2.0: From theoretical results to applications and vice versa SEBASTIA MASSANET	29
IJCRS invited talks	31
Rough sets, fuzzy sets, ill-known sets and related topics: a discussion DIDIER DUBOIS	33
Classification of multi-class imbalanced data: data difficulty factors and se- lected methods for improving classifiers JERZY STEFANOWSKI	35
Rough-fuzzy segmentation of brain MR volumes: applications in tumor de- tection and malignancy assessment PRADIPTA MAIL	36
	50
FQAS invited talks	37
Analogical querying? Henri Prade, Gilles Richard	39
On Controlling Skyline Query Results: What Does Soft Computing Bring? ALLEL HADJALI	40
Management of Complex and Fuzzy Queries Using a Fuzzy SOLAP-Based Framework SINAN KESKIN, ADNAN YAZICI	41
Aggregation for flexible Challenge Response SAMUEL BREZANI, PETER VOJTÁŠ	42

MORAMMAD ALIANNETADI, FARIO CRESTANI, THEO HUBERS, MONICA LANDONI, EMILIANA MURGIA, MARIA SOLEDAD PERA 43 Abstracts of IFSA-EUSFLAT 45 Fuzzy Partitions and Multi-Scale Representation of 1D Data 47 L. PERFILIEVA, D. ADAMCZYK 47 F ¹ -transform in fuzzy Predholm integral equations 47 On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 O. quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 O. JANEČEK, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Laplacian Singular Values 47 J. JANEČEK, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation 47 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing functions on Convolution Neural Networks 48 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations 49 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multisource data analysis 49 L. CAM DINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG 49 Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuro	The Impact of User Demographics and Task Types on Cross-App Mobile Search	
Abstracts of IFSA-EUSFLAT 45 Fuzzy Partitions and Multi-Scale Representation of 1D Data 47 I. PERFILIEVA, D. ADAMCZYK 47 <i>F</i> ¹ -transform in fuzzy Fredholm integral equations 47 I. PERFILIEVA, T. PHAM 47 On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 Laplacian Singular Values 47 J. JANEČEK, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÖMEZ, H. BUSTINCE 47 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing functions on Convolution Neural Networks 47 I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, J. LAFUENTE, R. H. N. SANTIAGO, M. SESMA, F. HERRERA, P. URSCA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral 48 M. FEREREO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁĆ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multisource data analysis 49 L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG <th>Mohammad Aliannejadi, Fabio Crestani, Theo Huibers, Monica Landoni, Emiliana Murgia, Maria Soledad Pera</th> <th>43</th>	Mohammad Aliannejadi, Fabio Crestani, Theo Huibers, Monica Landoni, Emiliana Murgia, Maria Soledad Pera	43
Fuzzy Partitions and Multi-Scale Representation of 1D Data 47 I. PERFLIEVA, D. ADAMCZYK 47 P ¹ -transform in fuzzy Fredholm integral equations 47 I. PERFLIEVA, T. PHAM 47 On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 Laplacian Singular Values 47 J. JANECER, I. PERFLIEVA 47 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE 47 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing func- tions on Convolution Neural Networks 48 I. RODRIGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, J. LAFUENTE, R. H. N. SANTIAGO, M. SESMA, F. HERRERA, P. URSÚA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like dis- crete integral 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generaliza- tions 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis 49 Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Prob- lems 49 P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES 49 <tr< td=""><td>Abstracts of IFSA-EUSFLAT</td><td>45</td></tr<>	Abstracts of IFSA-EUSFLAT	45
F ¹ -transform in fuzzy Fredholm integral equations 47 I. PERFILIEVA, T. PHAM 47 On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 A. P. SINGH, M. K. DUBEY, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Laplacian Singular Values 47 J. JANECEK, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE 47 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing func- tions on Convolution Neural Networks 47 Fundition fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like dis- crete integral 48 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like dis- crete integral 48 M. FERRERO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁĆ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generaliza- tions 49 A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁĆ 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis 49 L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG 49 Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Fraud 49	Fuzzy Partitions and Multi-Scale Representation of 1D Data I. Perfilieva, D. Adamczyk	47
On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata 47 A. P. SINGH, M. K. DUBEY, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Laplacian Singular Values 47 J. JANEČEK, I. PERFILIEVA 47 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE 47 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing func- tions on Convolution Neural Networks 47 I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, J. LAPUENTE, R. H. N. SANTIAGO, M. SESMA, F. HERRERA, P. URSÚA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like dis- crete integral 48 M. FERRERO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁĆ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generaliza- tions 49 A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁĆ 49 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis 49 Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Frand 49 Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Prob- lems 49 Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Prob- lems 49	F ¹ -transform in fuzzy Fredholm integral equations I. Perfilieva, T. Pham	47
 Laplacian Singular Values J. JANEČEK, I. PERFILIEVA Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing functions on Convolution Neural Networks I. RODRIGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, J. LAFUENTE, R. H. N. SANTIAGO, M. SESMA, F. HERRERA, P. URSÚA, H. BUSTINCE M. Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral M. FERRERO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁČ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRIGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ TAKÁČ HURO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multisource data analysis L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG Fvolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Fraud P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Solutional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata A. P. Singh, M. K. Dubey, I. Perfilieva	47
 Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE	Laplacian Singular Values J. Janeček, I. Perfilieva	47
 Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing functions on Convolution Neural Networks RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, J. LAFUENTE, R. H. N. SANTIAGO, M. SESMA, F. HERRERA, P. URSÚA, H. BUSTINCE Requential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral M. FERRERO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁČ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ TAKÁČ URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ TAKÁČ Convexity optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multisource data analysis L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. PAPCO, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, C. VIDAURRE, M. GÓMEZ, H. BUSTINCE	47
 Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral M. FERRERO-JAURRIETA, Z. TAKÁČ, Ľ. HORANSKÁ, I. RODRÍGUEZ-MARTÍNEZ, G. PEREIRA, H. BUSTINCE 48 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ TAKÁČ Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multisource data analysis L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG 49 Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Fraud P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing func- tions on Convolution Neural Networks I. Rodríguez-Martínez, J. Lafuente, R. H. N. Santiago, M. Sesma, F. Herrera, P. Ursúa, H. Bustince	48
 Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ	Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like dis- crete integral M. Ferrero-Jaurrieta, Z. Takáč, Ľ. Horanská, I. Rodríguez-Martínez, G. Pereira, H. Bustince	48
 A. URIO, H. BUSTINCE, L. DE MIGUEL, F. J. FERNANDEZ, G. DIMURO, Z. TAKÁČ	Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generaliza- tions	
 Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis L. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Fraud P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Problems P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	A. Urio, H. Bustince, L. De Miguel, F. J. Fernandez, G. Dimuro, Z. Takáč	49
 E. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG	Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi- source data analysis	40
 P. V. DE CAMPOS SOUZA, E. LUGHOFER, A. JUNIO GUIMARAES	E. CAM BINH, P. VAN NHA, N. THANH LONG	49
 Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Problems P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	P. V. de Campos Souza, E. Lughofer, A. Junio Guimaraes	49
 Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model 	Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Prob- lems P. HUIDOBRO, P. ALONSO, V. JANIŠ, S. MONTES	49
Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model	Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle V. WASQUES, E. ESMI, L. BARROS	50
B. LAIATE, L. BARROS, F. SANTO PEDRO, E. ESMI	Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model B. LAIATE, L. BARROS, F. SANTO PEDRO, E. ESMI	50

Discrete Laplace Operator in the Space with a Fuzzy Partition H. ZÁMEČNÍKOVÁ, I. PERFILIEVA
Reconstruction of residuated lattice-valued functions by integral transforms M. HOLČAPEK, V. BUI QUOC
Extending representability on the set of intervals endowed with admissible orders for the construction of interval-valued fuzzy operators L. SILVA, G. SCHNEIDER, B. FREITAS, A. YAMIN, H. SANTOS, B. BEDREGAL, R. REISER
Interpretable monotonicities for entropies of intuitionistic fuzzy sets or interval-valued fuzzy sets C. MARSALA, B. BOUCHON-MEUNIER
Description of maximal Archimedean t-norms on finite chains C. Bejines López, M. Navara
On t-Conorm Based Fuzzy (Pseudo)metrics and Applications in Combina- torics on Words R. BETS
A Numerical Approach For Determining Interactivity: A Case Study in Chemical Degradation P. SUSSNER, V. WASQUES, J. C. FERNANDES, E. ESMI
Graded fuzzy preconcept lattices: Theoretical basis A. ŠOSTAK, I. ULJANE, M. KRASTIŅŠ
Simulations of fuzzy dynamical systems N. ŠKORUPOVÁ
On notions of fuzzy topological entropy J. KUPKA, J. CÁNOVAS
Monadic power set theories in Kleisli categories J. Močkoř
Closure systems as a fuzzy extension of meet-subsemilattices M. Ojeda-Hernández, I. P. Cabrera, P. Cordero, E. Muñoz-Velasco .
How some methods in fuzzy sets, fuzzy soft sets, hesitant fuzzy sets and intuitionistic fuzzy sets can be unified?
Fuzzy partitioned discrete-event systems under controllability S. SINGH, S. TIWARI
Audio surveillance of road traffic: An approach based on anomaly detection and interval type-2 fuzzy sets S. ROVETTA, Z. MNASRI, F. MASULLI, A. CABRI
Fuzzy object interpretation for improved performance in active contour mod- els
A. MIR, F. J. FERNANDEZ, L. DE MIGUEL, C. LOPEZ-MOLINA
 A. CALCAGNI Restricted Equivalence Functions on Lⁿ: A new equivalence measure between n-multisets applied on color pixels for image comparison A. CASTILLO-LÓPEZ, Z. TAKÁČ, C. LOPEZ-MOLINA, F. J. FERNANDEZ, H.
Bustince

Using automatic facial emotion recognition for content analyses of a language learner video corpus X. CHEN, YY. HSU, E. CHERSONI	54
Fuzzy Property Grammar and Fuzzy Natural Logic for describing linguistic vagueness A. TORRENS	55
How NLP Can Benefit From a Fuzzy Classification of Language Universals A. BROSA RODRÍGUEZ	55
Towards a Fuzzy Model for Approaching Verbal Violence S. M. CAMPILLO-MUÑOZ, M. D. JIMENEZ-LOPEZ	56
Probabilistic and Standard Fuzzy Systems in Fuzzy Natural Logic: A Com- parison in Time Series Modeling N. LINH	57
Interpolativity and Continuity of Similarity-Based Reasoning Fuzzy Inference S. MANDAL, B. JAYARAM	57
Similarity-based reasoning from the perspective of extensionality A. Dvořák, B. Jayaram, M. Štěpnička	57
Linear Regression Approach to Fuzzy Cognitive Maps with History Data V. NISKANEN	58
Detection of anomalies in sensor data using neurofuzzy systems F. Rodríguez, W. D. Chicaiza, A. J. Sánchez, J. M. Escaño	58
Nonlinear Fuzzy Model Predictive Control of the TCP-100 Parabolic Trough Plant	58
Neuro-fuzzy modelling of a linear Fresnel-type solar collector system as a digital twin	50
 W. D. CHICAIZA, A. J. SANCHEZ, A. J. GALLEGO, J. M. ESCANO A Fuzzy-based approach for energy management of DHW systems in hotels M. LLANO, R. MESA-CRUZ, A. HAMILTON, J. F. ACOSTA, J. A. MENDEZ PEREZ 	58 58
Fuzzy Clustering-based Switching Non-negative Matrix Factorization and Its Application to Environmental Data Analysis	50
K. HONDA, T. FURUKAWA, S. UBUKATA, A. NOTSU	58
Fuzzy co-clustering algorithm for multi-source data mining	50
Analysis of the relation among global stocks using Fuzzy/Linguistic IF-THEN	09
S. MIRSHAHI, S. MIRSHAHI, V. NOVÁK	59
N. Piri Yengijeh, H. Moradi Cheshmehbeigi, K. Rouzbehi	59
A soundness test for multi criteria decision models with imprecise data C. FRANCO DE LOS RÍOS, J. L. HOUGAARD	59
Semantics for reciprocal preferences F. Castiblanco, C. Franco, J. T. Rodríguez, J. Montero	59

 An Ordered Weighted Averaging Operator based on Extreme Values Reductions. D. GARCÍA-ZAMORA, Á. LABELLA, R. M. RODRÍGUEZ, L. MARTÍNEZ 	59
 Evolving Fuzzy System Applied to Battery Charge Capacity Prediction for Fault Prognostics M. OSORIO CAMARGOS, I. BESSA, L. CORDOVIL JUNIOR, P. H. SILVA COUTINHO, D. LEITE, R. MARTÍNEZ PALHARES	60
Incremental Learning and State-Space Evolving Fuzzy Control of Nonlinear Time-Varying Systems with Unknown Model D. LEITE, P. COUTINHO, I. BESSA, M. CAMARGOS, L. CORDOVIL JUNIOR, R. PALHARES	60
Balancing data within incremental semi-supervised fuzzy clustering for credit card fraud detection G. CASALINO, G. CASTELLANO, N. MARVULLI	60
Fuzzifying Geospatial Data to Identify Critical Traffic Areas J. PINCAY, E. PORTMANN, L. TERÁN	60
Monitoring acoustic data streams using possibilistic aggregation and multi label learning K. KACZMAREK-MAJER, O. HRYNIEWICZ, D. KORNOBIS, A. STACHOWIAK	60
The use of similarity measures in the method of selecting features for classi- fication under uncertainty B. PĘKALA, K. DYCZKOWSKI, J. SZKOŁA, D. KOSIOR	61
Possibilistic granular count: derivation and extension to granular sum C. MENCAR	61
On a graded version of stochastic dominance R. Pérez-Fernández, J. Baz, I. Díaz, S. Montes	61
Optimality conditions for multiobjective fuzzy programming problems B. HERNÁNDEZ-JIMÉNEZ, R. OSUNA-GÓMEZ, Y. YALCO-CANO, G. RUÍZ-GARZÓN	61
A Minimax Criterion Approach to Treat the Inexactness in Feasible Set of a Linear Programming Problem Z. GAO, M. INIIGUCHI	61
Learning of Consistent Preference Relations for Decision Making and Opti- mization in the Context of Interacting Goals	01
R. FELIX	62
O. Kosheleva, V. Kreinovich	62
Why kappa regression? J. URENDA, O. CSISZÁR, G. CSISZÁR, J. DOMBI, G. EIGNER, O. KOSHELEVA, V. KREINOVICH	62
In search of a precise estimator based on imprecise data P. A. GRZEGORZEWSKI, J. GOŁAWSKA	62
Epistemic bootstrap for fuzzy data P. A. Grzegorzewski, M. Romaniuk	62
fIRTree: An Item Response Theory modeling of fuzzy rating data A. CALCAGNI	62

Interactive Decision Making for Multiobjective Bimatrix Games with Fuzzy Payoffs Based on Possibility Measure H. YANO, I. NISHIZAKI	62
 Against Artificial Complexification: Crisp vs. Fuzzy Information in the TOP- SIS Method D. PELTA, M. T. LAMATA, J. L. VERDEGAY, C. CRUZ, A. SALAS	63
Fuzzy equivalences and aggregation functions in decision-making problems U. BENTKOWSKA, A. KRÓL	63
A Granular Consensus Model Based on Intuitionistic Reciprocal Preference Relations and Minimum Adjustment for Multi-Criteria Group Decision Making	
F. J. Cabrerizo, J. R. Trillo, J. A. Morente-Molinera, S. Alonso, E. Herrera-Viedma	63
Generalized Peterson's syllogisms with the quantifier "At least several (a few; a little)"	
P. MURINOVÁ, V. NOVÁK	63
K. FIALA, V. CERVEŇOVÁ, P. MURINOVÁ	63
P. MURINOVÁ, V. PAVLISKA, M. BURDA	64
fiers P. Murinová	64
Qualitative capacities and their informational comparison D. DUBOIS, F. FRANCIS, H. PRADE, A. RICO	64
A fuzzy order for graphs based on the continuous entropy of Gaussian Markov Random Fields J. BAZ, I. DÍAZ, S. MONTES, R. PÉREZ-FERNÁNDEZ	64
Conditional interval valued probability and martingale convergence theorem K. ČUNDERLÍKOVÁ	64
Quantile based summation of random variables K. Emir, D. Kruml, J. Paseka, I. Selingerová	64
Some categorical equivalences for Nelson algebras with consistency operators F. Esteva, A. Figallo-Orellano, T. Flaminio, L. Godo	64
Propositional Dynamic Logic over Finite Łukasiewicz Chains I. SEDLÁR	65
Approaching the square of oppositions in terms of the f-indexes of inclusion and contradiction N. MADRID, M. OJEDA-ACIEGO	65
On Preservation of Residuated Lattice Properties for Partial Algebras N. CAO, M. ŠTĚPNIČKA	65
A comparative study of LDA and FLSA for Violence Risk Assessment E. RIJCKEN, U. KAYMAK, K. ZERVANOU, P. MOSTEIRO, M. SPRUIT, F. SCHEEPERS	65
CG2A: Conceptual Graphs Generation Algorithm A. FACI, MJ. LESOT, C. LAUDY	66

A Sentiment-Based Author Verification Model Against Social Media Fraud K. HAMMOUD, S. BENBERNOU, M. OUZIRI
Data Fusion in Question Answering Systems over Multiple-Knowledge Bases N. D. To, M. Z. REFORMAT
Classification Method of Image Feature Matching Using Naive Bayes Classi- fier
J. Y. KIM, E. K. KIM, B. KIM, D. HA, S. KIM
S. Iglesias-Rey, B. De Baets, C. Lopez-Molina
Feature-based identification of Tau protein in neural tissue F. ANTUNES-SANTOS, C. LOPEZ-MOLINA, M. IRIARTE, B. DE BAETS
Some Approaches Based on Interval-Valued Images and L-Fuzzy Mathemati- cal Morphology for Segmenting Images Reconstructed from Noisy Sino- grams
P. Sussner, L. Corbacho Carazas, E. Miqueles
Triangular Fuzzy Relational Products of Level Fuzzy Relations N. CAO, M. BURDA
Sup-T Compositions of Partial Fuzzy Relations
L. Běhounek, M. Daňková
Consistency in Deducing Redundant Linguistic Fuzzy Rules N. CAO, R. VALÁŠEK
Fuzzy Metrics for Solving MODM Problems O. GRIGORENKO
On the use of computational perceptions as labeled datasets in machine learn- ing: a first empirical approximation C. RUBIO-MANZANO, T. LERMANDA, C. MARTÍNEZ-ARANEDA, A. SEGURA- NAVARRETE, C. VIDAL-CASTRO
A Semi-Supervised Anomaly Detection Approach in Brain MRI Images in- cluding Alzheimer's Disease JB. KIM, N. CHAUHAN, BJ. CHOI
Multiple Criteria Decision Analysis Based on Ill-known Pairwise Comparison Data
M. Inuiguchi, S. Innan
From MCDA to Fuzzy MCDA: Fuzzy Extensions of an MCDA Method and Their Distinctions A BADAEV A KOROBOV B VATSALO L MARTÍNEZ
Measuring the environmental cost in the evaluation of metaheuristics P. NOVOA-HERNÁNDEZ, A. PURIS, D. PELTA
A Comparative Analysis based on GIS and Fuzzy MCDM Approaches. Case Study: Offshore Wind Site Selection in the Gulf of Maine J. M. SÁNCHEZ-LOZANO, A. RAMOS ESCUDERO, I. C. GIL-GARCÍA, M. S. GARCÍA-CASCALES, Á. MOLINA-GARCÍA
A Case Study of AutoML for Supervised Crash Severity Prediction J. S. Angarita-Zapata, G. Maestre-Gongora, J. Fajardo Calderín

A methodology for more sustainable agriculture through early crop frost forecasting	
J. M. Cadenas, M. C. Garrido, R. Martínez España	70
Abstracts of AGOP	73
Aggregation based on outliers A. Kolesárová, R. Mesiar	75
Continuous OWA operators M. Kalina	75
On some generalizations of homogeneity of aggregation functions A. STUPŇANOVÁ, Y. SU	75
New Classes of the Moderate Deviation Functions J. Špirková, H. Bustince, F. J. Fernandez, M. Sesma-Sara	75
Some remarks on convolution of collection integrals	75
Expectation quadruplet based on fuzzy integrals Z. Ontkovičová, J. Kiseľák	75
Generalization of interval-valued Sugeno integral L'. Horanská, Z. Takáč, H. Bustince	75
General Admissibly Ordered Interval-valued Overlap Functions T. Asmus, G. Dimuro, J. A. Sanz, J. Wieczynski, G. Lucca, E. Borges, H. Bustince	76
On some functional equations related to alpha migrative t-conorms K. Miś, M. Baczyński	76
A generalization of power-based implications M. Baczyński, W. Fechner, S. Massanet	76
An analysis of the invariance property with respect to powers of nilpotent t-norms on fuzzy implication functions R. FERNANDEZ-PERALTA, S. MASSANET, A. MIR	77
On the preservation of some additional properties via the quadratic polyno- mial construction method of fuzzy implication functions	77
New results on discrete implication functions S. MASSANET, M. MUNAR, D. RUIZ-AGUILERA	78
Fuzzy Relations and Monometrics: Some Correspondences M. GUPTA, B. JAYARAM	78
An overview of honeycomb-based graph aggregation functions. G. Moś	78
Extreme points of polytopes of discrete copulas E. Perrone, F. Durante	79
On a construction method of trivariate copulas C. Ignazzi, F. Durante	79
The Borda Count as an initial threshold for Kemeny ranking aggregation N. RICO, C. RODRÍGUEZ-VELA, R. PÉREZ-FERNÁNDEZ, I. DÍAZ	79

Combining classifiers with the interval-valued Choquet integral Z. Takáč, M. Uriz, M. Galar, D. Paternain, H. Bustince	79
Aggregation and pre-aggregation functions in optimization problems of en- semble classifiers	
U. Bentkowska, W. Gałka, M. Mrukowicz	79
Affinity Functions and Centrality Measures in Social Network Analysis J. FUMANAL IDOCIN, M. MINÁROVÁ, F. J. FERNANDEZ, O. CORDÓN, H. BUSTINCE	80
Applicability of ordinal sums of conjunctive and disjunctive functions in clas-	
sification M. Hudec, R. Mesiar, E. Mináriková	81
Construction of commutative, associative functions via z-ordinal sum con- struction A. MESIAROVÁ-ZEMÁNKOVÁ	81
On DU-ordinal sums of partially ordered monoids M. Holčapek, A. Dvořák, J. Paseka	81
Inf- and sup-preserving aggregation functions M. CARDIN	81
Empirical monotonicity of Non-deterministic Computable Aggregations L. GARMENDIA, D. GÓMEZ, L. MAGDALENA, J. MONTERO	82
 d-XC-integrals: On the generalization of the expanded form of the Choquet integral by restricted dissimilarity functions J. WIECZYNSKI, G. LUCCA, E. BORGES, T. ASMUS, L. EMMENDORFER, H. BUSTINCE, G. DIMURO 	82
On a special class of interval-valued fuzzy operators P. DRYGAŚ	83
Orders from Uninorms on Bounded Lattices: Some Perspectives V. K. GUPTA, B. JAYARAM	83
Order based on Non-Associative Operations K. NANAVATI, B. JAYARAM	83
Some investigations on t-norms and t-conorms on an appropriate bounded	
	83
Some conclusions on the direct product of uninorms on bounded lattices E. AŞICI, R. MESIAR	83
The Choquet integral in the construction of composite indices: The case of the Society Sustainable Index. P. Pérez-Asurmendi, B. Llamazares	83
Choquet integrals with respect to generalized survival functions J. Borzová, L. Halčinová, J. Šupina	84
Survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators S. Basarik, J. Borzová, L. Halčinová	84
On a generalization of level measures M. Boczek, O. Hutník, M. Kaluszka, M. Kleinová	85

On agglomerative hierarchical percentile clustering F. DURANTE, A. GATTO, S. SAMINGER-PLATZ
Cosmological Clustering: A gravitational clustering approach inspired on large-scale cosmos' structure and dynamics A. Castillo-López, M. Minárová, I. Rodríguez-Martínez, J. Fumanal Idocin, H. Bustince
Aggregation of operators in fuzzy relational mathematical morphology: ero- sion and dilation A. Šostak, I. Uļjane
Aggregation operators for comparative possibility distributions and their rolein group decision makingA. ZUBYUK, E. FADEEV
Abstracts of FQAS
Flexible Querying using Disjunctive Concepts G. Smits, MJ. Lesot, O. Pivert, R. Yager
Analytical Queries on Vanilla RDF Graphs with a Guided Query Builder Approach
Dealing with Data Veracity in Multiple Criteria Handling: An LSP-based approach
Realization of a Natural Logic in a Database System T. Andreasen, H. Bulskov, J. Fischer Nilsson
Generalized Weighted Repairs H. Tellez Perez, J. Wijsen
Detecting ESG Topics Using Domain-Specific Language Models and Data Augmentation T NUGENT N STELEA J L LEIDNER
A Novel Approach for Supporting Italian Satire Detection through Deep Learning
A. Cuzzocrea, G. Lo Bosco, M. Maiorana, G. Pilato, D. Schicchi, G. Casalino
DocTalk: Combining Dependency-based Text Graphs and Deep Learning into a Practical Dialog Engine V GUO W SUN A KHAN T DOAN P TABAU
A comparative study of word embeddings for the construction of a social media expert filter
J. A. DIAZ-GARCIA, M. D. RUIZ, M. J. MARTIN-BAUTISTA
(Demo) P. Fosci, G. Psaila
Abstracts of IJCRS
Possibility Distributions Generated by Intuitionistic L-Fuzzy Sets S. BOFFA, D. CIUCCI

Adapting fuzzy rough sets for classification with missing values O. U. LENZ, D. PERALTA, C. CORNELIS	93
Possible Coverings in Incomplete Information Tables with Similarity of Values M. NAKATA, N. SAITO, H. SAKAI, T. FUJIWARA	93
Fuzzy-Rough Nearest Neighbour Approaches for Emotion Detection in Tweets	
O. KAMINSKA, C. CORNELIS, V. HOSTE	93
Many-Valued Dynamic Object-Oriented Inheritance and Approximations A. SZAŁAS	93
Feature Reduction and Disambiguation in Learning from Fuzzy Labels using Rough Sets	
A. CAMPAGNER, D. CIUCCI	93
Knowledge Graph Representation Learning for Link Prediction with Three- Way Decisions Z. PENG, H. VII, X. FENG	03
The Influence of Fuzzy Expectations on Triples of Triangular Norms in the Weighted Fuzzy Petri Net for the Subject Area of Passenger Transport Logistics	50
Y. Bloshko, Z. Suraj, O. Olar	94
Right adjoint algebras versus operator left residuated posets M. E. CORNEJO, J. MEDINA	94
Revisiting impact of local congruences in variable selection from datasets R. G. Aragón, J. Medina, E. Ramírez Poussa	94
Bipolar max-product fuzzy relation equations with the standard negation M. E. CORNEJO, D. LOBO, J. MEDINA	94
Relation-based fuzzy granular approximations M. PALANGETIĆ, C. CORNELIS, S. GRECO, R. SŁOWIŃSKI	94
The RSDS – a Tool for Users of Rough Sets and Related Domains Z. SURAJ, P. GROCHOWALSKI	95
PNeS in Modelling, Control and Analysis of Concurrent Systems Z. SURAJ, P. GROCHOWALSKI	95
3RD: A multi-criteria decision-making method based on three-way rankings Y. YAO, C. SHI	95
Minimizing Depth of Decision Trees with Hypotheses M. AZAD, I. CHIKALOV, S. HUSSAIN, M. MOSHKOV	95
Attention Enhanced Hierarchical Feature Representation for Three-way De- cision Boundary Processing J. CHEN, Y. CHEN, Y. XU, S. ZHAO, Y. ZHANG	95
Three-way decisions based RNN models for sentiment classification Y. MA, J. YU, B. JI, J. CHEN, S. ZHAO, J. CHEN	95
Spark accelerated implementation of parallel attribute reduction from incom- plete data	06
An Opinion Summarization-Evaluation System Based on Pre-trained Models H. JIANG, Y. WANG, S. LV, Z. WEI	90 96

General Rough Modeling of Cluster Analysis A. MANI A.	96
Determining Tanimoto Similarity Neighborhoods of Real-Valued Vectors by Means of the Triangle Inequality and Bounds on Lengths M. KRYSZKIEWICZ	96
DDAE-GAN: Seismic data denoising by integrating autoencoder and gener- ative adversarial network F. MIN, LR. WANG, SL. PAN, GJ. SONG	96
Attribute Reduction Using Functional Dependency Relations in Rough Set Theory M. RESTREPO, C. CORNELIS	97
Tolerance-based Twitter Sentiment Classifier: Preliminary Results V. PATEL, S. RAMANNA	97
Mining Incomplete Data Using Global and Saturated Probabilistic Approxi- mations Based on Characteristic Sets and Maximal Consistent Blocks P. CLARK, J. GRZYMALA-BUSSE, Z. S. HIPPE, T. MROCZEK	97

Author index

99

Plenary talks of the IFSA-EUSFLAT 2021



Frank Klawonn Department of Computer Science, Ostfalia University Germany

Do we need fuzzy cluster analysis?

Abstract

There is an almost infinite variety of approaches to cluster analyses. For the evaluation of a clustering approach and to decide whether it makes sense, one first has to clarify the purpose of cluster analysis. Commonly, cluster analysis is referred to as automatically partitioning data into (hidden) classes – in a crisp, probabilistic or fuzzy manner. However, in real applications cluster analysis is often applied for different purposes like identifying outliers, consistency checks for data or the identification of single interesting clusters. Therefore, an overview of the different practical uses of cluster analysis is needed as well as a categorisation of clustering approaches.

Fuzzy cluster analysis encompasses various algorithms – like the Gustafson-Kessel algorithm, noise and shell clustering – that exploit the concept of membership degrees, but could in principle be defined in a crisp setting. We show why these algorithms need the membership degrees and derive their benefits. We also demonstrate where this benefit can turn into a disadvantage and how this can be overcome.

Finally, we demonstrate how fuzzy clustering provides additional measures and methods to evaluate and judge fuzzy clustering results.

Biography

Frank Klawonn is a Professor in the Department of Computer Science at Ostfalia University in Wolfenbüttel and Head of the Biostatistics Group at the Helmholtz Centre for Infection Research in Braunschweig. His main research interests are robust and computational statistics and machine learning with a major focus on applications in medicine. Apart from more than 120 publications in peer-reviewed journals and numerous conference and book contributions, he co-authored books on Fuzzy Systems, Fuzzy Cluster Analysis, Neuro-Fuzzy Systems, Fuzzy Control and Computational Intelligence. He is a member of the editorial boards of the journals Science Translational Medicine, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Intelligent Data Analysis and Int. J. of Uncertainty, Fuzziness and Knowledge-Based Systems. He received the Outstanding Paper Award of the journal IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems in 1999, the Best Paper Award at the Fourth International Conference on Advanced Data Mining and Applications (ADMA 2008), the Best Research Paper Award at the 20th International Conference on Knowledge-Based and Intelligent Information & Engineering Systems (KES 2016) and the Paper of the Year 2019 Award of GC-I.



Roman Słowiński

Institute of Computing Science, Poznań University of Technology Systems Research Institute, Polish Academy of Sciences Poland

Preference Learning in Evolutionary Multiobjective Optimization

Abstract

In multiobjective optimization, the most attractive solutions form so-called Pareto front in the objective space. Evolutionary Multiobjective Optimization (EMO) algorithms are known for remarkable effectiveness in approximating the Pareto front of complex multiobjective optimization problems. However, visualizing such a Pareto front is problematic in the case of more than three objectives, hampering the Decision Maker (DM) to choose the solution that ensures the best compromise between the objectives. For this reason, interactive EMO methods have been proposed, involving the DM in the evolutionary search process. In the interactive EMO, preference elicitation phases alternate with optimization phases. In the preference elicitation phase, the DM is asked to express her preferences on a small subset of solutions from the current population. This preference information is converted to DM's preference model that makes a pressure on the recombination process, directing the evolutionary optimization towards the part of the Pareto front containing the best compromise solution. Thus, the preference learning in interactive EMO has an incremental and constructive character. An important aspect of this learning process is explainability of the preference model as it affects the psychological convergence of the procedure. The DM must understand the impact of her preference information on the effects of optimization to get convinced that her preferences built during subsequent iterations are properly represented and used in the optimization phases. We will review some recently proposed interactive EMO methods, focusing on aspects of faithful, efficient, and explainable preference learning.

Biography

Roman Słowiński is a Professor and Founding Chair of the Laboratory of Intelligent Decision Support Systems at Poznań University of Technology, and a Professor in the Systems Research Institute of the Polish Academy of Sciences. As an ordinary member of the Polish Academy of Sciences he is its Vice President, elected for the term 2019–2022. He is a member of Academia Europaea and Fellow of IEEE, IRSS, INFORMS and IFIP. In his research, he combines Operational Research and Artificial Intelligence for Decision Aiding. Recipient of the EURO Gold Medal by the European Association of Operational Research Societies (1991), and Doctor HC of Polytechnic Faculty of Mons (Belgium, 2000), University Paris Dauphine (France, 2001), and Technical University of Crete (Greece, 2008). In 2005 he received the Annual Prize of the Foundation for Polish Science - the highest scientific honor awarded in Poland, and in 2020 – the Scientific Award of the Prime Minister of Poland. Since 1999, he is the principal editor of the European Journal of Operational Research (Elsevier), a premier journal in Operational Research.



Sabrina De Capitani di Vimercati

Department of Computer Science, Universita' degli Studi di Milano Italy

Protecting data privacy in emerging scenarios

Abstract

Organizations, as well as end users, are today resorting to service providers for disseminating and sharing resources they want to make available to others. The outsourcing of storage and computation to external parties promises then to become a crucial component of future ICT architectures. Such scenario clearly raises privacy issues since data publication and dissemination are typically selective (data can be disclosed only to authorized parties), and it is important to ensure that sensitive information be properly protected from leakage. In this talk, I will illustrate different issues related to the problem of managing data while guaranteeing confidentiality and integrity of data stored or processed by external providers.

Biography

Sabrina De Capitani di Vimercati is a Professor at the Department of Computer Science of the Universita' degli Studi di Milano, Italy. Her main research interests are on data security and privacy. She has participated in several national and international projects involving different aspects of data security and privacy. On these topics, she has published more than 210 peer-reviewed articles in international journals, conference proceedings, and book chapters. She has been an international fellow in the Computer Science Laboratory at SRI, CA (USA), and she has been a visiting researcher at the Center for Secure Information Systems, George Mason University, VA (USA). She is member of the Steering Committees of the European Symposium on Research in Computer Security (ESORICS) and of the ACM Workshop on Privacy in the Electronic Society (WPES). She is co-recipient of the ACM-PODS'99 Best Newcomer Paper Award. She has served as General Chair, Program Chair, and program committee member of several international conferences. She is IEEE senior member (2012).



Martine Ceberio

Department of Computer Science, University of Texas at El Paso USA

Handling Uncertainty in Dynamical Systems: Challenges and Opportunities

Abstract

The ability to conduct fast and reliable simulations of dynamical systems is of special interest in many application areas. For instance, reliable under-body blast simulations may allow evaluating impacts on vehicles and personnel safety, as well as studying configurations critical in the design and decision-making stages. However, such simulations can be very complex and, to be thorough, involve millions of variables, making it prohibitive in CPU time to run repeatedly on many different configurations. Reduced-order modeling (ROM) methods provide a way to handle such complex simulations using a realistic amount of resources. They allow improving predictions and reducing the risk of decisions on critical applications. In many situations though, uncertainty is present in some aspect of the problem to be handled, or reliability needs to be enhanced. In this presentation, we will go over challenges and opportunities that present themselves when uncertainty needs to be handled. In particular, we will emphasize the use of interval computations in the approaches taken to handle dynamical systems with uncertainty.

Biography

Martine Ceberio is a professor of Computer Science at the University of Texas at El Paso. She joined UTEP in 2003 after obtaining her PhD in Computer Science from the University of Nantes, France (2003). Her research revolves around reliable decision-making under uncertainty, optimization, constraint solving, and solving dynamical systems with uncertainty. She has applied her work to areas such as network security, bio-medical engineering, mechanical and software engineering. She is passionate about teaching and mentoring students. She has worked on developing and redesigning curriculum for computer science. She is a fierce advocate of her students' success and seizes every opportunity to provide advice and mentoring. Her other passion is in broadening participation in Computer Science. She hosts young women high-school students as summer research interns in her research lab to introduce them to computing. She was a faculty in residence at Google in 2018 and a mentor for this program in 2019. Since 2020, she has led a group of alumni Google residents.



Sebastia Massanet

Soft Computing, Image Processing and Aggregation (SCOPIA) research group, Dept. of Mathematics and Computer Science, University of the Balearic Islands, 07122 Palma, Spain

Fuzzy implication functions 2.0: From theoretical results to applications and vice versa

Abstract

In the last decades, many researchers have devoted their efforts to study fuzzy implication functions, becoming one of the most studied operators in Fuzzy Logic jointly with aggregation functions. In this sense, a great number of papers have been published both from the theoretical and the applications points of view. However, it is a fact that both fields are getting more and more apart. Indeed, the theory on fuzzy implication functions has been greatly developed recently with new generalizations of families and properties in many cases without a clear utility for any of the known applications of these operators.

In this talk, the focus will be set on some investigations on fuzzy implication functions where the theoretical results are well-motivated by the applications. These theoretical results have had an impact on the applications, providing new fuzzy implication functions feasible to be applied in a concrete field improving the performance of the previous considered operators.

These practices that connect theory and applications rely on: (1) solving functional equations connected with additional properties useful for the applications; (2) presenting novel additional properties with a meaning for the applications and providing fuzzy implication functions satisfying them; (3) characterizing the most well-known families in order to understand their behavior for the applications. Several examples will be shown and some important open problems in this direction will be recalled.

Biography

Sebastia Massanet received the Ph.D. degree in Mathematics from the University of the Balearic Islands (UIB) in 2012. He is currently an Associate Professor in the Dept. of Mathematics and Computer Science of UIB, a researcher in the Soft Computing, Image Processing and Aggregation research group (SCOPIA) and head of the Master's degree in Intelligent Systems at UIB. He has co-authored 36 papers in high impact international journals and 95 other contributions to book chapters and conferences. He is a member of the editorial boards of Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Int. J. of Approximate Reasoning, Int. J. of Computational Intelligence Systems and J. of Intelligent & Fuzzy Systems. In 2012, he received the BioTIC GENIL award for the best young researcher paper at ESTYLF. His current research interests are devoted to fuzzy sets theory and some related fields such as fuzzy connectives, fuzzy implication functions, functional equations, fuzzy mathematical morphology and their applications to image processing and decision making. He is a member of the Board of the European Society for Fuzzy Logic and Technology (EUSFLAT) and a member of the Spanish Association for Artificial Intelligence (AEPIA).

IJCRS invited talks

Didier Dubois

Emeritus CNRS Researcher IRIT, Toulouse, France

Rough sets, fuzzy sets, ill-known sets and related topics: a discussion

There is currently a large literature where the main purpose is to generalize concepts of nonstandard sets that were proposed sometimes more than 50 years such as fuzzy sets and rough sets. For instance intuitionistic fuzzy sets, and their variants; or rough sets based on coverings, or general relations. The difficulty with these extensions is that they seem to be only motivated by formal considerations, and as such they may look like artificial concepts. In contrast both fuzzy sets and rough sets were generated by canonical examples of concrete problems:

- fuzzy sets are envisaged by Zadeh to model terms of natural language referring to numerical quantities by means of non-Boolean membership functions of sets.

- rough sets addressed problems of indistinguishability of items described by attribute values in a database

Rough sets lead to describe upper and lower approximations of sets, then considered ill-known. On the contrary fuzzy sets after Zadeh are not ill-known crisp sets, they are ontologically non-Boolean. In terms of image encoding, rough sets refer to pixel size, while fuzzy sets refer to the number of grey levels. It is only if we interpret a fuzzy set as a set of more or less possible values that one may start to relate ill-known sets to fuzzy sets. The aim of the talk is to clarify the connections between rough sets, fuzzy sets and ill-known sets, recalling a canonical setting of ill-known sets (of objects whose attribute values are imprecise). Being by nature epistemic constructions under incomplete information, there is no way to make rough sets or ill-known sets truth-functional, while fuzzy sets can be. The talk will thus discuss the limitations of 3-valued logics for reasoning about rough sets and ill-known sets.

Finally, it is indicated how to put together the canonical examples of rough sets and ill-known sets, and come up with ill-known rough set approximations, which provide a concrete motivation for covering-based rough sets. This should be taken as an invitation to lay bare canonical examples motivating variants of fuzzy sets and rough sets.

References

- [1] D. Dubois, H. Prade. Twofold fuzzy sets and rough sets—Some issues in knowledge representation Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Volume 23, July 1987, Pages 3–18.
- [2] D. Dubois, H. Prade. Rough fuzzy sets and fuzzy rough sets, Int. J. of General Systems, 17(2-3), 191-209, 1990.
- [3] D. Dubois, H. Prade. Putting rough sets and fuzzy sets together. In: Intelligent Decision Support – Handbook of Applications and Advances of the Rough Sets Theory (R. Slowinski, ed.), Kluwer Academic Publ., 1992, 203–232.
- [4] I. Couso, D. Dubois. Rough Sets, Coverings and Incomplete Information, Fundamenta Informaticae vol. 108, p. 223-247, 2011.
- [5] D. Dubois, H. Prade. Gradualness, uncertainty and bipolarity: Making sense of fuzzy sets, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Volume 192, 1 April 2012, Pages 3-24.

- [6] D. Ciucci, D. Dubois. Three-valued logics, uncertainty management and rough sets. Transactions on Rough Sets, Vol. XVII, p. 1–32, 2014.
- [7] D. Ciucci, D. Dubois, H. Prade. Structures of Opposition in Fuzzy Rough Sets. Fundamenta Informaticae, vol. 142, no. 1-4, pp. 1–19, 2015.

Jerzy Stefanowski

Institute of Computing Sciences, Poznan University of Technology 60-965, Poznan, Poland

Classification of multi-class imbalanced data: data difficulty factors and selected methods for improving classifiers

Improving classifiers learnt from class imbalanced data has received a growing research interest in the last 20 years. Although a high number of methods has been already introduced, it is still treated as a challenging problem, it particular for various extensions of, the most studied so far, binary class (minority vs. majority) problem. The multiple class imbalanced problem is one of these extensions, which is still less investigated than its binary counterpart. Such multi-class imbalanced data occur, e.g., in medical diagnosis (where few important and rare diseases may occur), technical diagnostics with several degrees of the device failures, text categorization, etc. In all such domains it is necessary to improve the recognition of multiple classes simultaneously. These multi-class tasks are considered much more difficult than binary ones, however the sources of these difficulties have not been sufficiently studied so far. The first part of this talk will summarize the few literature works on this topic and present our own latest research results. The particular attention will be paid to: the impact of the overlapping between classes including their types (e.g. minority vs. minority or minority vs. majority), different configurations of these classes and different roles of types of minority examples (being safe or unsafe to be learnt). The earlier binary method for an identification of the types of minority examples and their level of difficulty will be generalized for multiple imbalance classes. Furthermore, we discuss the usage of the specialized grid clustering to discover sub-concepts within minority classes and to find rare examples or outliers. The second part of this talk will include a brief presentation of three recent, different methods, introduced by the lecturer and his co-operators, for learning classifies from multi-class imbalanced data which exploit information on the aforementioned difficulty factors. SOUP (Similarity Oversampling and Undersampling Preprocessing), is a hybrid preprocessing method. It resamples examples in the training data according to their level difficulty. As a result the training data are transformed into the example distribution being more suitable for learning classifiers. This method also exploits information on the amount of different types of overlapping between classes. Then, the new generalization of rule based classifier, called multi-class BRACID will be presented. The type of learning examples influences the rule generation in this algorithm. The specialized multi-class extension of Roughly Balanced Bagging ensemble is the third of these methods. It uses the multinomial probability distribution to estimate cardinalities of examples from each class, which are then sampled to bootstraps of this bagging based ensemble. Finally, the talk will end with a discussion of open problems and further perspectives for research on multi-class imbalanced problems.

Pradipta Maji

Machine intelligence Unit, Indian Statistical Institute Kolkata, India

Rough-fuzzy segmentation of brain MR volumes: applications in tumor detection and malignancy assessment

Magnetic resonance (MR) imaging is an important diagnostic technique for providing accurate information about the spatial distribution of brain soft tissues non-invasively. However, different imaging artifacts give rise to uncertainties in segmentation of brain MR volumes into major soft tissue classes; as well as in extracting brain tumor and evaluating its malignancy state. Among various soft computing techniques, rough sets provide a powerful tool to handle uncertainties, vagueness, and incompleteness associated with data, while fuzzy set serves as an analytical tool for dealing with uncertainty that arises due to the overlapping characteristics in the data. In this regard, the talk will cover a brief review on the recent advances of rough-fuzzy segmentation of brain MR volumes, and its applications in brain tumor detection and malignancy assessment. The merits and demerits of two novel rough-fuzzy segmentation algorithms, namely, ARoSi and CoLoRS, will be discussed in detail, along with other algorithms.
FQAS invited talks

Analogical querying?

Henri Prade and Gilles Richard

IRIT - CNRS, Université Paul Sabatier, 118 route de Narbonne, 31062 Toulouse Cedex 09, France {prade, richard}@irit.fr

This short paper suggests a new way of exploiting examples of items that are known to be liked and counter-examples of items that are known to be disliked, in case-based querying. This relies on an extrapolation mechanism using analogical proportions. Analogical proportions are statements that compare pairs of items laying bare the similarities and the differences between items. They provide a tool that enables a comparative use of examples and counter-examples in order to build appropriate answers to a user query.

On Controlling Skyline Query Results: What Does Soft Computing Bring?

Allel Hadjali

LIAS/ENSMA, Poitiers, France allel.hadjali@ensma.fr

Querying databases to search for the best objects matching user's preferences is a fundamental problem in multi-criteria databases. The skyline queries are an important tool for solving such problems. Based on the concept of Pareto dominance, the skyline process extracts the most interesting (not dominated in Pareto sense) objects from a set of data. However, this process may often lead to the two scenarios: (i) a small number of skyline objects are retrieved which could be insufficient to serve the decision makers'needs; (ii) a huge number of skyline objects are returned which are less informative for the decision makers. In this paper, we discuss and show how Soft Computing, and more particularly fuzzy set theory, can contribute to solve the two above problems. First, a relaxation mechanism to enlarge the skyline set is presented. It relies on a particular fuzzy preference relation, called "much preferred". Second, an efficient approach to refine huge skyline and reduce its size, using some advanced techniques borrowed from fuzzy formal concepts analysis, is provided. The approaches proposed are user-dependent and allow controlling the skyline results in a exible and rational way.

Management of Complex and Fuzzy Queries Using a Fuzzy SOLAP-Based Framework

Sinan Keskin¹ and Adnan Yazici^{1,2}

¹Department of Computer Engineering, Middle East Technical University, Ankara, Turkey keskin.sinan@metu.edu.tr

²Department of Computer Science, School of Engineering and Digital Sciences,

Nazarbayev University, Nur Sultan, Republic of Kazakhstan

adnan.yazici@nu.edu.kz

With the use of data warehouses, the need for faster access and analysis to historical and multidimensional data has arisen. Online analytical processing (OLAP), developed for this purpose, has provided suitable data structures that overcome some of the limitations of relational databases by providing rapid data analysis. OLAP can display and collect large amounts of data while providing searchable access to any data point and handle a wide variety of complex queries that match user interests. While OLAP enables querying and analysis of multidimensional numeric and alphanumeric data, there is still a need to support flexible queries and analyses on uncertain and fuzzy data due to the nature of the data existing the complex applications such as multimedia and spatiotemporal applications. This study presents how to handle various types of fuzzy spatiotemporal queries using our fuzzy SOLAP (spatial OLAP) based framework on meteorological databases, which inherently contain spatiotemporal data in addition to uncertainty and fuzziness. In this context, we describe the support for non-spatial and fuzzy spatial queries as well as fuzzy spatiotemporal query types. In addition, while OLAP mainly includes historical data and associated queries and analyzes, we describe how to handle predictive fuzzy spatiotemporal queries, which may require an inference mechanism. We also show that various complex queries, including predictive fuzzy spatiotemporal queries, are effectively and efficiently handled using our fuzzy SOLAP framework.

Aggregation for flexible Challenge Response

Samuel Brezani¹ and Peter Vojtáš^{1,2}

¹Globesy Ltd, Framborska 58, Zilina, Slovakia ²Dpt. Software Engineering, Charles University, Prague, Czechia pvojtas@gmail.com

A real problem use-case represents a challenge. This is usually transformed (reduced) to a model. We expect the model to give a response/solution which is (at least in a degree) acceptable/meets the challenge. Moreover this challenge-response understanding has two levels – both the real world situation and model situation contains challenge side (input, query, problem ...) and the response side (output, answer, solution ...). We present a formal model of ChRFChallenge-Response Framework inspired by our previous work on Galois-Tukey connections. Nevertheless, real world reduction to models needs some adaptation of this formal model. In this paper we introduce several examples extending ChRF. We illustrate this using several practical situations mainly in the area of recommender systems. Data of the model situations are motivated by Fagin-Lotem-Naor's data model with attribute preferences and multicriterial aggregation. In this realm we review our previous work on preferential interpretation of fuzzy sets; implicit behavior in/and online/offline evaluation of recommender systems. We finish with smart extensions of industrial processes. We propose a synthesis of these and formulate some open problems.

The Impact of User Demographics and Task Types on Cross-App Mobile Search

Mohammad Aliannejadi¹, Fabio Crestani², Theo Huibers³, Monica Landoni², Emiliana Murgia⁴, and Maria Soledad Pera⁵

> ¹University of Amsterdam, Amsterdam, The Netherlands m.aliannejadi@uva.nl

²Università della Svizzera Italiana fabio.crestaniQusi.ch, monica.landoniQusi.ch ³University of Twente, Enschede, The Netherlands t.w.c.huibersQutwente.nl ⁴Università degli Studi di Milano-Bicocca Milano Italy,

emiliana.murgia@unimib.it ⁵Boise State University, Boise, Idaho, USA solepera@boisestate.edu

Recent developments in the mobile app industry have resulted in various types of mobile apps, each targeting a different need and a specific audience. Consequently, users access distinct apps to complete their information need tasks. This leads to the use of various apps not only separately, but also collaboratively in the same session to achieve a single goal. Recent work has argued the need for a *unified mobile search* system that would act as metasearch on users' mobile devices. The system would identify the target apps for the user's query, submit the query to the apps, and present the results to the user in a unified way. In this work, we aim to deepen our understanding of user behavior while accessing information on their mobile phones by conducting an extensive analysis of various aspects related to the search process. In particular, we study the effect of task type and user demographics on their behavior in interacting with mobile apps. Our findings reveal trends and patterns that can inform the design of a more effective mobile information access environment.

Abstracts of IFSA-EUSFLAT

Fuzzy Partitions and Multi-Scale Representation of 1D Data

IRINA PERFILIEVA AND DAVID ADAMCZYK

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{Irina.Perfilieva,David.Adamczyk}@osu.cz

We analyze various multi-scale representations of a onedimensional signal in spaces with a closeness relation determined by a symmetric and positive semi-definite kernel. We discuss other kernels than the predominant Gaussian kernel in a scale-space representation of a onedimensional signal. We show that kernels arising from generating functions of fuzzy partitions can be treated with the same success. We also show that the reconstruction from the proposed multi-scale representations of better quality than the reconstruction from MLP with almost double the number of neurons in 4 hidden layers.

F^1 -transform in fuzzy Fredholm integral equations

IRINA PERFILIEVA AND TAM PHAM

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

irina.perfiljeva@osu.cz,p19171@student.osu.cz

The goal of this study is to solve fuzzy Fredholm integral equations of the second kind. In order to solve these equations with respect to fuzzy valued functions, we propose a very powerful and relatively simple technique called fuzzy transform. This approach allows the transformation of a fuzzy Fredholm integral equation to a system of algebraic equations. A solution to this algebraic system gives the appropriate parameters of the inverse F1-transform. Hence, we can estimate the approximate solution to the original problem. The existence and uniqueness of the exact solution and approximate solution are also discussed.

On quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata

Anand Pratap Singh^a, Mahesh Kumar Dubey^b and Irina Perfilieva^a

^aUniversity of Ostrava, Czech Republic; ^bManipal University Jaipur, India

{anand.singh,irina.perfilieva}@osu.cz,maheshdubey6@gmail. com

The objective of this paper is to characterize the quotient structures of fuzzy multiset finite automata. We introduce different congruence relation on multiset associated with fuzzy multiset finite automata and show that each congruence relation associates a semigroup with the fuzzy multiset finite automata.

Laplacian Singular Values

JIŘÍ JANEČEK AND IRINA PERFILIEVA

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{Jiri.Janecek,Irina.Perfilieva}@osu.cz

In this contribution, we focus on extending the Laplacian processing used in data-driven dimensionality reduction based on weighted graphs by incorporating the concept of singular value decomposition. We indicate a novel point of view on generalized eigenvalue problem by pointing out geometric meaning of factorization matrices. We demonstrate that classical eigenvalue problem of normalized Laplacian, generalized eigenvalue problem of pure Laplacian and singular value decomposition of specific altered Laplacian form are mutually equivalent problems and discuss some of its theoretical implications.

Optimizing Feature Importance in the Decision Making Phase for Motor Imagery Brain Computer Interfaces using Automatic Differentiation

JAVIER FUMANAL IDOCIN^a, MARTIN PAPCO^b, FRAN-CISCO JAVIER FERNANDEZ^a, GRAÇALIZ DIMURO^c, CARMEN VIDAURRE^a, MARISOL GÓMEZ^a AND HUM-BERTO BUSTINCE^a

^aDepartamento de Estadística, Informatica y Matemáticas, Universidad Publica de Navarra, Pamplona, Spain; ^bCatholic University in Ruzomberok, Hrabovska cesta 1, 034 01 Ruzomberok, Slovakia; ^cDepartamento de Informática e Matemática Aplicada, Universidade Federal do Rio Grande do Norte, Brazil

javier.fumanal@unavarra.es,papco@ruzomberok.sk,fcojavier. fernandez@unavarra.es,gracalizdimuro@furg.br,{carmen. vidaurre,marisol,bustince}@unavarra.es

Motor Imagery (MI) is one popular strategy to command Brain Computer Interfaces (BCI) [1]. One of the most frequent tasks in MI-BCsI is to discriminate signals from the brain into different classes, according to the movement that a person is imagining. The difficulty in choosing the correct discriminative brain sources and discerning them from noisy information turns the classification of the MI tasks into a very difficult problem [2]. Revealing the interactions and combinations among features is thus critical to the system's success [3]. Aggregation functions are key components in the classification performance of complex systems, where the output of multiple agents needs to be fused into one final decision [4]. Certain aggregations perform best for different data domains but in the case of MI-BCI systems, there is no obvious optimal aggregation function for all possible tasks [3]. In this work, we propose to adapt the fusion process for MI-BCI systems using context depending aggregation functions such as penalty-based aggregation functions or moderate deviation functions [5, 6]. These procedures are based on learning different parameters for each feature on each task with aim of supporting the decision-making phase of the MI-BCI system [7, 8]. This helps the MI-BCI system weigh each feature according to their importance in each specific case, which allows achieving better classification performance.

Acknowledgement: J. Fumanal Idocin, J. Fernandez, M. Gómez and Humberto Bustince's re-search has been supported by the project PID2019-108392GBI00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033). Carmen Vidaurre research has been funded by the project RyC-2014-15671. The work of Martin Papco was supported by the Slovak Research and Development Agency under the contract No. APVV-16-0073.

References:

- [1] Cheolsoo Park, David Looney, Naveed ur Rehman, Alireza Ahrabian, and Danilo P Mandic. Classification of motor imagery BCI using multivariate empirical mode decomposition. IEEE Transactions on neural systems and rehabilitation engineering, 21(1):10-22, 2012.
- [2] Jasmin Kevric and Abdulhamit Subasi. Comparison of signal decomposition methods in classification of EEG signals for motor-imagery BCI system. Biomedical Signal Processing and Control, 31:398-406, 2017.
- [3] Li-Wei Ko, Yi-Chen Lu, Humberto Bustince, Yu-Cheng Chang, Yang Chang, Javier Ferandez, Yu-Kai Wang, Jose Antonio Sanz, Gracaliz Pereira Dimuro, and Chin-Teng Lin. Multimodal fuzzy fusion for enhancing the motor-imagery-based brain computer interface. IEEE Computational Intelligence Magazine, 14(1):96-106, 2019.

- [4] Jose Antonio Sanz, Alberto Fernandez, Humberto Bustince, and Francisco Herrera. Ivturs: A linguistic fuzzy rule-based classification system based on a new interval-valued fuzzy reasoning method with tuning and rule selection. IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems, 21(3):399-11, 2013.
- [5] Humberto Bustince, Gleb Beliakov, Gracaliz Pereira Dimuro, Benjamin Bedregal, and Radko Mesiar. On the definition of penalty functions in data aggregation. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 323:1-18, 2017.
- [6] Abdulrahman H Altalhi, Juan I Forcen, Miguel Pagola, E Barrenechea, Humberto Bustince, and Zdenko Takac. Moderate deviation and restricted equivalence functions for measuring similarity between data. Information Sciences, 501:19-29, 2019.
- [7] Chen-Yu Lee, Patrick W Gallagher, and Zhuowen Tu. Generalizing pooling functions in convolutional neural networks: Mixed, gated, and tree. In Artificial intelligence and statistics, pages 464-472. PMLR, 016.
- [8] Martin Papco, Iosu Rodr guez-Mart nez, Javier Fumanal-Idocin, Abdulrah-man H Altalhi, and Humberto Bustince. A fusion method for multivalued data. Information Fusion, 71:1-10, 2021.

Fusion of local features by means of linear combinations of increasing functions on Convolution Neural Networks

Iosu Rodríguez-Martínez^a, Julio Lafuente^a, Regivan H. N. Santiago^b, Mikel Sesma^a, Francisco Herrera^c, Pablo Ursúa^a and Humberto Bustince^a

^aDepartment of Statistics, Computer Science and Mathematics, Public University of Navarre, Pamplona, Spain; ^bDepartment of Computer Science and applied Mathematics, Universidade Federal do Rio Grande do Norte, Natal, Brazil; ^cAndalusian Research Institute in Data Science and Computational Intelligence (DaSCI), University of Granada, Granada, Spain

{iosu.rodriguez,lafuente}@unavarra.es,regivan@dimap.ufrn. br,mikel.sesma@unavarra.es,herrera@decsai.ugr.es,{pablo. ursua,bustince}@unavarra.es

Convolutional Neural Networks (CNN) are Deep Learning models which automatically extract the most representative features of data where spatial information is relevant, in order to use them for the resolution of a wide range of tasks [1]. In the case of image classification, features of increasingly more complexity are extracted on a sequential way. Firstly, feature filters are convolved over a given image, generating feature maps which represent the presence or absence of those features in the image. The information of these feature maps is afterwards fused locally, in a process referred as pooling, using increasing functions such as the arithmetic mean or the maximum.

These functions, however, may incur in a loss of information which may be mitigated using ideas of aggregation theory. On the one hand, Fuzzy Integrals are a type of aggregation function which model the interaction among inputs using the concept of a fuzzy measure [2]. On the other, combining the information of multiple aggregation functions is a strategy that has been successfully used in other problem domains in the past [3, 4]. In this work, we have tested the effectiveness of substituting the classical pooling functions by linear combinations of alternative increasing functions, including the Sugeno Integral, in several different CNN architectures. Acknowledgement: This work was supported by research projects PID2019-108392GB-I00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033) of the Agencia Estatal de Investigación, PC095-096 FUSIPROD and P18-FR-4961.

References:

- LeCun, Y., Bengio, Y., Hinton, G. (2015). Deep learning. nature, 521(7553), 436-444.
- [2] Beliakov, G., Sola, H. B., Sánchez, T. C. (2016). A practical guide to averaging functions (pp. 13-200). Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- [3] Fumanal-Idocin, J., Alonso-Betanzos, A., Cordón, O., Bustince, H., Minárová, M. (2020). Community detection and social network analysis based on the Italian wars of the 15th century. Future Generation Computer Systems, 113, 25-40.
- [4] J. Arenas-Garcia, A. R. Figueiras-Vidal and A. H. Sayed, "Mean-square performance of a convex combination of two adaptive filters," in IEEE Transactions on Signal Processing, vol. 54, no. 3, pp. 1078-1090, March 2006.

Sequential information fusion based in multidimensional Choquet-like discrete integral

Mikel Ferrero-Jaurrieta^a, Zdenko Takáč^b, Ľubomíra Horanská^b, Iosu Rodríguez-Martínez^a, Graçaliz Pereira^c and Humberto Bustince^a

^aDepartment of Statistics, Computer Science and Mathematics, Public University of Navarra, Pamplona, Spain; ^bInstitute of Information Engineering, Automation and Mathematics, Slovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Slovakia; ^cCentro de Ciências Computacionais, Universidade Federal de Rio Grande, Rio Grande, Brazil

mikel.ferrero@unavarra.es,{zdenko.takac,lubomira. horanska}@stuba.sk,{iosu.rodriguez,gracaliz.pereira, hustingal@unavarra.cs

bustince}@unavarra.es The aggregation or fust

The aggregation or fusion of information is not a trivial task. Information aggregation techniques are a very important tool, since we need to aggregate several values into a single one. Several aggregation operators have been used to fuse vector-based information, such as weighted arithmetic means or order statistics. Nonetheless in several problems, the considered criteria interact among them and another aggregation function should be used. To solve this problem fuzzy integrals are used, which work based in a fuzzy measure and consider the interaction among criteria. One of the most used fuzzy integral is the Choquet integral. In this work we extend the concept of discrete Choquet-like integral to multi di-mensional vectorial data [1]. Vector-data aggregations are used in several areas, and one of the most popular currently is deep learning. Recurrent neural networks are a class of artificial neural networks where sequential or time series data is used. Recurrent models are valuable in their ability to represent sequential data. We propose a new method for sequential information fusion in recurrent neural networks. The new method consists in the modification of parts from some classical recurrent neural network architectures. The technique used in this work is based in the n-dimensional discrete Choquet-like integral and as well as its combinations with another aggregation functions.

Acknowledgement: This work was supported by research project PID2019-108392GB-I00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033) of the Agencia Estatal de Investigación and Grant VEGA 1/0545/20.

References:

 De Miguel, L., Sesma-Sara, M., Elkano, M., Asiain, M., Bustince, H. An Algorithm for group decision making using n-dimensional fuzzy sets, admissible orders and OWA operators. Information Fusion 37 (2017) 126-131.

Modification of the ADALINE using Choquet integrals and their generalizations

Asier Urio^a, Humberto Bustince^a, Laura De Miguel^a, Francisco Javier Fernandez^a, Graçaliz Dimuro^{a,b} and Zdenko Takáč^c

^aPublic university of Navarra and Institute of Smart Cities, Spain; ^bUniversidade Federal do Rio Grande do Norte, Brazil; ^cSlovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Slovakia

{asier.urio,bustince,laura.demiguel,fcojavier.fernandez}@unavarra.es,gracaliz@gmail.com,zdenko.takac@stuba.sk

The ADALINE (Adaptive Linear Element) [1] is a type of artificial neuron which is based on the same architecture as the perceptron. In the case of the Adaline, as for the perceptron, each input is associated to a weight, so that all of them are combined, togeteher with a bias, in a linear combination. However, whereas in the case of the perceptron, the linear combination is used to determine a binary outopu, the Adaline's output is precisely the result of the linear combination itself. This fact makes the Adaline specially fit to deal with linear regression problems

In this work, we propose to replace the linear combination of the weights and the inputs by more general information fusion functions, Specially, we focus on the posible use of Choquet integrals [2] and some generalizations [3] of the latter that have shown themselves very useful in recent times in classification problems. The learning process in tha Adaline, which is based on the use of the gradient descent, should be modiffied accordingly.

ingly. We analyze experimentally the posible advantages of this approach as a first step to consider more general information fusion functions.

Acknowledgement: This work was supported by research projects PID2019-108392GB-I00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033) of the Agencia Estatal de Investigación, PC095-096 FUSIPROD of the Government of Navarra and by grant VEGA 1/0545/20.

References:

- B. Widrow and M. E. Hoff, "Adaptive Switching Circuits," 1960 IRE WESCON Convention Record, 1960, pp. 96-104.
- [2] G. Beliakov, G., H. Bustince, T. Sánchez, A practical guide to averaging functions, 2016, pp. 13- 200. Cham: Springer International Publishing.
- [3] G. P. Dimuro, J. Fernández, B. Bedregal, R. Mesiar, J. A. Sanz, G. Lucca, H. Bustince, The state-of-art of the generalizations of the Choquet integral: From aggregation and pre-aggregation to ordered directionally monotone functions, Information Fusion, 57, 2020, pp. 27-53.

Fuzzy optimization multi-objective clustering ensemble model for multi-source data analysis

Le Cam $\operatorname{Binh}^a,$ Pham Van Nha^b and Ngo Thanh Long^c

^aHanoi University of Culture, Vietnam; ^bAcademy of Military Science and Technology, Vietnam; ^cLe Quy Don University, Vietnam

{cambinhlt,famvannha}@gmail.com,longpt@mta.edu.vn

In modern data analysis, multi-source data appears more and more in real applications. Different data sources provide information about different data. Therefore, multi-source data linking is important to improve the processing performance. However, in practice multisource data is often heterogeneous, uncertain, and large. This issue is considered a major challenge from multisource data. Ensemble is a versatile machine learning model in which learning techniques can work in parallel, with big data. Clustering ensemble has been shown to outperform any standard clustering algorithm in terms of accuracy and robustness. However, most of the traditional clustering ensemble approaches are based on single-objective function and single-source data. In this paper, we propose a new clustering ensemble method for multi-source data analysis. We call the fuzzy optimized multi-objective clustering ensemble method - FOMOCE. Firstly, a clustering ensemble mathematical model based on the structure of multi-objective clustering function, multi-source data, and dark knowledge is introduced. Then, rules for extracting dark knowledge from the input data, clustering algorithms, and base clusterings are designed and applied. Finally, a clustering ensemble algorithm is proposed for multi-source data analysis. The experiments were performed on the standard sample data set. The experimental results demonstrate the superior performance of the FOMOCE method compared with the existing clustering ensemble methods and multi-source clustering methods.

Evolving Fuzzy Neural Network based on Uni-nullneuron to identify Auction Fraud PAULO VITOR DE CAMPOS SOUZA^a, EDWIN LUGHOFER^a AND AUGUSTO JUNIO GUIMARAES^b

^aJohannes Kepler University Linz, Austria; ^bUNA University Center, Brazil

{paulo.de_campos_souza,edwin.lughofer}@jku.at, augustojunioguimaraes@gmail.com

The increase in transactions on the Internet related to the purchase of products or services can provide facilities for the parties involved in these acquisitions, but they also generate uncertainties and possibilities of attacks that can originate from fraud. This work seeks to explore and extract knowledge of auction fraud by using an evolving fuzzy neural network model based on nuninorms. This new model uses a fuzzification technique based on Typicality and Eccentricity Data Analysis operators and a parallel processor for stream samples. To test the model in solving auction fraud problems, stateof-the-art neuro-fuzzy models were used to compare a public dataset on the topic. The results of the model proposed in this paper were superior to the other models evaluated (close to 96% accuracy) in the test, and the fuzzy rules demonstrate the model's ability to extract knowledge.

Convexity of Interval-valued Fuzzy Sets Applied to Decision Making Problems

Pedro Huidobro^{a,b}, Pedro Alonso^a, Vladimir Janiš^b and Susana Montes^a

^aUniversity of Oviedo, Spain; ^bMatej Bel University, Slovakia

{huidobropedro,palonso}@uniovi.es,vladimir.janis@umb.sk,montes@uniovi.es

Fuzzy sets can help us with imprecision, however, there are situations we are not able to assign an accurate value. Interval-valued fuzzy sets are applied in decision making to deal with imprecision. The convexity of interval-valued fuzzy sets establishes some interesting results about decision local and global maximizers.

Solution to the Advection Equation with Fuzzy Initial Condition via Sup-J Extension Principle

Vinícius Wasques^{a,b}, Estevão Esmi^c and Laécio Barros^c

^aSão Paulo State University, Brazil; ^bNational Center for Research in Energy and Materials, Brazil; ^cUniversity of Campinas, Brazil

vwasques@outlook.com,eelaureano@gmail.com,laeciocb@ime. unicamp.br

This paper presents a study on the advection equation with an uncertain condition given by a fuzzy-numbervalued function. A fuzzy solution to the problem is presented. This solution is obtained from the sup-J extension principle, which is a generalization of the Zadeh's extension principle. In this case, the extension principle is used to extend the classical solution to the problem. The extension principle incorporates the relationship of interactivity, which in this work is associated with a family of parameterized joint possibility distributions. A comparison with the solution obtained from the Zadeh's extension principle is also presented, in order to illustrate the advantages of considering interactivity in the approach.

Bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem of autocorrelated fuzzy processes via cross product: the prey-predator model

BEATRIZ LAIATE^a, Laécio Barros^a, Francielle Santo Pedro^b and Estevão Esmi^a

^aUniversity of Campinas, Brazil; ^bFederal University of São Paulo, Brazil

beatrizlaiate@gmail.com,laeciocb@ime.unicamp.br,fsimoes@ unifesp.br,eelaureano@ime.unicamp.br

This paper introduces the notion of a bidimensional fuzzy initial value problem for a special class of fuzzy functions. These functions, also called A-linearly correlated fuzzy processes, are a particular case of the socalled S-linearly correlated fuzzy processes, whose range is embedded in Banach spaces of fuzzy numbers. To this end, it recalls the notion of cross product and proves that this operation is the Zadeh's extension of the linearization of the real-valued function given by the product of two real numbers. The equivalence between the bidimensional FIVP under the Fréchet derivative and a nonlinear classical initial value problem is provided. Lastly, an application on the prey-predator is presented.

Discrete Laplace Operator in the Space with a Fuzzy Partition

HANA ZÁMEČNÍKOVÁ AND IRINA PERFILIEVA University of Ostrava, Czech Republic {hana.zamecnikova, irina.perfilieva}@osu.cz Differential operators definitely play an important role in image processing tasks. One of the most frequently used operator for this purpose is the Laplace operator, usually defined as the divergence of a gradient of a function. Since images are considered as discrete objects, many applications require discrete version of this operator. But at the same time, these discrete Laplace operators should preserve certain properties known from the continuous case. Based on this fact, we present discrete variant of F-transform-based Laplace operator, satisfying such conditions. Moreover, Laplace operator, satisfyestimates and the operator of such operator from the other side, just with notion of the inner product of the current space and its desired properties.

Reconstruction of residuated latticevalued functions by integral transforms

MICHAL HOLČAPEK AND VIEC BUI QUOC

University of Ostrava, Czechia

michal.holcapek@osu.cz,bqviec@gmail.com

Fuzzy transform was proposed by Perfilieva in [6] to approximate real and (residuated) lattice-valued functions. For lattice-valued functions, the (direct and inverse) upper and lower lattice-valued fuzzy transforms were introduced, and it was shown that compositions of direct and inverse fuzzy transforms provide the lower and upper approximations of lattice-valued functions. In [3], there was demonstrated that the definition of the upper and lower lattice-valued fuzzy transforms can be expressed in terms of Sugeno-like integrals for trivial fuzzy measures defined on the power sets of domains of lattice-valued functions, particularly one fuzzy measure assigns zero to the empty set, and one to any non-empty subset of a given set (domain of functions) X, and the second fuzzy measure assigns one to the set X, and zero to any subset of X different from X. In addition, the fuzzy partition, which forms the core of any fuzzy transform, can be replaced by a more general kernel function commonly used in the case of integral transforms for real or complex-valued functions. This observation naturally leads to a generalization of the upper and lower lattice-valued fuzzy transforms, denoted as an integral transform for latticevalued functions. Basic properties of integral transform based on three types of Sugeno-like integrals introduced in [1,2] can be found in [3,4], and an application to multicriteria decision making in [5].

An open question for various integral transforms was whether the composition of appropriate integral transforms can be used to reconstruct original lattice-valued functions in a similar way as the composition of direct and inverse lattice-valued fuzzy transforms. The talk focuses on this problem and its solution, specifically we want to present the reconstruction of the original functions using the composition of integral transforms and show the relationship between the original functions and their reconstructions.

References:

- [1] D. Dubois, H. Prade, and A. Rico, Residuated variants of Sugeno integrals: Towards new weighting schemes for qualitative aggregation methods, Information Sciences, 329, 765–781, 2016.
- [2] A. Dvorak and M. Holcapek, Fuzzy measures and integrals defined on algebras of fuzzy subsets over complete residuated lattices, Information Sciences, 185(1), 205-229, 2012.
- [3] M. Holcapek and V. Bui, Integral transforms on spaces of complete residuated lattice valued function. In: Proc. of IEEE World Congress on Computational Intelligence (WCCI) 2020, Glasgow, IEEE, 1-8, 2020.

- [4] M. Holcapek, V. Bui, On Integral Transforms for Residuated Lattice-Valued Functions. In: Proc. of International Conference on Information Processing and Management of Uncertainty in Knowledge-Based Systems, Information Processing and Management of Uncertainty in Knowledge-Based Systems, Lisbon, Cham: Springer, 318-331, 2020.
- [5] M. Holcapek, V. Bui Quoc, On an application of lattice-valued integral transform to multicriteria decision making. In: Proc. of International Conference on Artificial Intelligence and Computational Intelligence (AICI 2021), Studies in Computational Intelligence, Springer (to appear).
- [6] I. Perfilieva. Fuzzy transforms: Theory and applications, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 157(8), 993-1023, 2006.

Extending representability on the set of intervals endowed with admissible orders for the construction of interval-valued fuzzy operators

LIDIANE SILVA^a, GUILHERME SCHNEIDER^a, BRUNA FREITAS^b, ADENAUER YAMIN^a, HELIDA SANTOS^b, BENJAMÍN BEDREGAL^c AND RENATA REISER^a

^aFederal University of Pelotas, Brazil; ^bUniversidade Federal do Rio Grande, Brazil; ^cUniversidade Federal do Rio Grande do Norte. Brazil

{lcdsilva,gbschneider,reiser,adenauer}@inf.ufpel.edu.br, {bruna.freitas,helida}@furg.br,{bedregal}@dimap.ufrn.br

In this work, we provide a study on the representability of interval-valued fuzzy connectives considering partial and admissible orders. Our approach considers those orders based on injective aggregation functions which allowed the construction of interval-valued operators. An immediate result is the construction of the implication used in the Quantum Logic, known as QL-implication, that in our proposal is generalised for intervals, given by means of interval-valued t-(co)norms and interval-valued fuzzy negations.

Interpretable monotonicities for entropies of intuitionistic fuzzy sets or intervalvalued fuzzy sets

CHRISTOPHE MARSALA AND BERNADETTE BOUCHON-MEUNIER

Sorbonne Université, France

{Christophe.Marsala,Bernadette.Bouchon-Meunier}@lip6.fr

Monotonicity is a major property of entropy measures. In this paper, we focus on entropy measures for intuitionistic fuzzy sets and interval-valued fuzzy sets. We consider their polar representation which provides an easy interpretation of monotonicity for several entropy measures introduced in the literature. Moreover, this polar representation enables us to propose two new kinds of monotonicity for such entropies, that offer a more understandable way to explain differences of entropies. Classical measures of entropy for intuitionistic fuzzy sets are compared with regard to these new forms of monotonicity.

Description of maximal Archimedean tnorms on finite chains

Carlos Bejines López and Mirko Navara

Czech Technical University in Prague, Czechia cbejines@alumni.unav.es,navara@cmp.felk.cvut.cz

Counting with more than two "truth values" allows us to imitate human reasoning of facts that are not binary. Often a scale of values suffices to express what we need. The choice of a finite domain admits some operations (Gödel, Lukasiewicz), while it excludes others (product and all strict ones). A disadvantage of the Gödel t-norm is that repetition of arguments does not change their meaning. Together with them, we discard all operations with idempotent elements other than 0, 1, thus we restrict attention to Archimedean t-norms. A disadvantage of many Archimedean t-norms is that, when applied to several arguments, the result is very often zero. Then it gives no clue in comparing the outcomes. Thus, we are interested in the maximal Archimedean t-norms.

It was shown in previous works that there is an abundance of Archimedean t-norms. In contrast to that, when we count the number of maximal Archimedean tnorms, the Fibonacci sequence appears. We have found a description of maximal Archimedean t-norms and explained also the processes behind their construction and the role of the Fibonacci sequence. These results link the t-norms to construction using a kind of additive generator.

On t-Conorm Based Fuzzy (Pseudo)metrics and Applications in Combinatorics on Words

RAIVIS BĒTS

University of Latvia, Institute of Mathematics and Computer Science

raivis.bets@gmail.com

Different metrics describing distance between words have been searched, formed and developed approaching the problems of combinatorics on words for years. The classical point of view has been given in [1], but this approach does not take into account the letters, which come after the first unmatched position. Another classical approach takes into account all the letters, but the actual difference of words has not been taken into account. For example, if $x = 10000 \dots, y = 011111 \dots$ and $z = 00000 \dots$, then distance between words y and z is equal to the distance between words x and z.

Compared with ordinary metrics, fuzzy metrics introduced by Kramosil and Michalek [2] and particularly in the form as they were revised by George and Veeramani [3] seem to be more appropriate for defining the distance between words. With respect to the George-Veeramani definition [4], a more flexible notion of a fragmentary fuzzy metric was used with the purpose to apply it to combinatorics on words. Unfortunately, this version of fuzzy metric also leads to some situations that seem to contradict expectations.

In this paper, the so called t-conorm based fuzzy pseudometrics introduced by Šostak [5] were used. Application of such fuzzy pseudometrics, especially of its fragmentary version, seems to be more appropriate in the research of combinatorics of words. In this talk, some properties of fragmentary t-conorm based fuzzy pseudometrics and their applications will be discussed. Special attention will be turned to the "strong" version of such fuzzy pseudometrics with the definition of a modified "triangle axiom" used.

References:

- J.-P. Allouche, J. Shallit. Automatic sequences: Theory, applications, generalizations. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK, 2003
- [2] I. Kramosik, J. Michalek. Fuzzy metrics and statistical metric spaces, Kybernetika, 11, 336-344, 1975
- [3] A. George, P. Veeramani. On some results in fuzzy metric spaces, Fuzzy Sets Syst., 64, 395-399, 1994
- [4] R. Bēts, A. Sostak. Fragmentary fuzzy metrics: basics of the theory and applications in combinatorics on words, Baltic J. Mod. Comput., 4, 1039-1046, 2016

[5] A. Šostak. George-Veeramani fuzzy metrics revised, Axioms, 7(60), 1-6, 2018

A Numerical Approach For Determining Interactivity: A Case Study in Chemical Degradation

Peter Sussner^a, Vinícius Wasques^{b,c}, Julio César Fernandes^d and Estevão Esmi^a

^aUniversity of Campinas, Brazil; ^bSão Paulo State University, Brazil; ^cNational Center for Research in Energy and Materials; ^dFed. Univ. of Western Pará, Brazil

sussner@unicamp.br,vwasques@outlook.com,julio.fernandes@ ufopa.edu.br,eesmi@unicamp.br

The concept of a fuzzy derivative of a fuzzy numbervalued function generalizes the concept of a conventional derivative and can be defined in terms of a difference quotient. Note that an interval valued function represents a special case of a fuzzy number valued function. In this paper, we consider the concept of an interactive derivative because it generalizes several other concepts of fuzzy derivative from the literature and because interactivity naturally occurs in many real-world problems. The main goal of this paper is to propose a first approach toward characterizing the interactivity that is inherently present in the derivative of an unknown interval or fuzzy number valued function that is subject to certain restrictions. A series of experiments regarding isothermal degradation of L-ascorbic acid tablets serves as an important case study for our approach.

Graded fuzzy preconcept lattices: Theoretical basis

Alexander Šostak^{a,b}, Ingrīda Uļjane^{a,b} and Māris Krastinš^b

^aInstitute of Mathematics and CS University of Latvia, Latvia; ^bUniversity of Latvia, Latvia

{aleksandrs.sostaks,ingrida.uljane}@lumii.lv,mk18032@edu. lu.lv

Noticing certain limitations of concept lattices in the fuzzy context, especially in view of their practical applications, in this paper we propose a more general approach based on what we call "graded fuzzy preconcept lattices". We believe that this approach is more adequate for dealing with fuzzy information than the one based on fuzzy concept lattices. In this paper we develop theoretical basis for graded fuzzy preconcept lattices. Some applications of this theory to problems of "practical nature" are the subject of our second paper submitted to the same issue of EUSFLAT2021 Proceedings.

Simulations of fuzzy dynamical systems

NICOLE ŠKORUPOVÁ

University of Ostrava, Czechia

p17097@student.osu.cz

Zadeh's extension principle plays an important role in the fuzzy set theory because it is a tool that, for example, can naturally extend a real-valued continuous map to a map having fuzzy sets as its arguments. There exists a very tight relation of this extension to the theory of dynamical systems. Namely, Kloeden elaborated a mathematical model which allowed us to connect the theory of classical dynamical systems to the theory of fuzzy dynamical systems. However, in particular applications, there are some natural problems with computations of such systems, and consequently, several approaches on how to simulate them appeared.

The purpose of this contribution is to present a generalized version of our previous algorithm for simulations of fuzzy dynamical systems induced by interval maps, i.e., it is used to compute a trajectory of a fuzzy initial state within a discrete fuzzy dynamical system. The core of the algorithm we intend to present is based on calculation with piecewise linear maps which was introduced in our previous contribution. First, to be able to use this algorithm for any continuous map we need to describe an algorithm that is used to find the piecewise linearization of a given function. For that purpose, the particle swarm algorithm with automatic parameter tuning is in-troduced. This algorithm can automatically detect the number of piecewise linear parts and the discretization points in which the distance between the original and piecewise linear function is calculated. Then we use our previous algorithm for the calculation of a trajectory of the fuzzy initial state in the fuzzy dynamical system. However, any approximation of a function can have a large impact on the optimization performance of fuzzy dynamical systems. Therefore, it is necessary to investigate the accuracy of the approximation and, compare our algorithm with other approaches.

On notions of fuzzy topological entropy

Jiri Kupka^a and Jose Cánovas^b

^aIRAFM - Centre of Excellence IT4Innovations - University of Ostrava, Czechia; ^bUniversity of Cartagena, Spain

Jiri.Kupka@osu.cz,canovas@upct.es

In classical topological dynamics, the notion of topological entropy is well-known and deeply studied for various classes of dynamical systems, such as symbolic dynamical systems, Cantor, and interval dynamical systems. Roughly speaking, the topological entropy is a number that tells us how complex is the dynamical system under consideration. There are some common ways how the topological entropy can be defined, and those definitions are equivalent on compact metric spaces. The situation can be, however, different when fuzzy dynamical systems are considered.

Within our talk, inspired by recent observations on fuzzy compactness of E. Akin, we plan to discuss the notion of fuzzy topological entropy when different definitions of fuzzy compactness are considered. We demonstrate that some recent definitions need not be the most appropriate ones since they always display zero entropy. This would mean that all fuzzy discrete dynamical systems are nonchaotic. Among other things, we will show some relations between the topological entropy and the fuzzy topological entropy when it is defined with the help of Lowen's definition of compactness. As natural consequences, many natural properties of the fuzzy topological entropy (such as monotonicity) can be obtained as direct corollaries of our observations. The particular case of interval maps will also be briefly discussed.

Monadic power set theories in Kleisli categories

Jiří Močkoř

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

jiri.mockor@osu.cz

In this paper, we follow up on the well known interpretation of fuzzy relations as morphisms in Kleisli category defined in the category of sets using a suitable monad. This Kleisli category thus becomes a relational variant of the classical category of fuzzy sets. This interpretation and the associated construction of, e.g., various transformation operators is often used not only in fuzzy set theory but also in computer science. Using this principle we create in the paper a relational variant of a given Kleisli category which will be defined again using a suitable monad in the original Kleisli category.

Closure systems as a fuzzy extension of meet-subsemilattices

MANUEL OJEDA-HERNÁNDEZ, INMA P. CABRERA, PABLO CORDERO AND EMILIO MUÑOZ-VELASCO

University of Malaga, Spain

{manuojeda, ipcabrera, pcordero, ejmunoz}@uma.es

An extension of the notion of closure system is introduced adapting the notion of meet-subsemilattice to a complete fuzzy lattice. Results relating closure operators and closure systems in the classical case are extended properly to this framework. Then, this definition is proved to be equivalent to the most used definition given by Belohlávek on the fuzzy powerset lattice.

How some methods in fuzzy sets, fuzzy soft sets, hesitant fuzzy sets and intuitionistic fuzzy sets can be unified?

Jiří Močkoř

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

jiri.mockor@osu.cz

In this paper we try to answer the question whether standardly used methods in fuzzy set theory, fuzzy soft set theory, hesitant fuzzy set theory or intuitionistic fuzzy set theory, such as, for example, power set structures, fuzzy relations, extension principles or approximation operators defined by relations are actually independent in individual theories, or conversely, they are only special examples of methods in one general theory. We show that all the mentioned methods in all these theories (including the theory of fuzzy sets) are only special examples of an application of the theory of monads in various categories.

Fuzzy partitioned discrete-event systems under controllability

SHAILENDRA SINGH AND S TIWARI

IIT(ISM), India

{shailendrasingh281293, sptiwarimaths}@gmail.com

This paper aims to study the fuzzy partitioned discreteevent systems and their supervisory control theory under full observation. Specifically, we present the idea of a fuzzy partitioned automaton commensurate to a given automaton. Further, we present the model of a fuzzy partitioned discrete-event system, which is described by using the idea of a fuzzy partitioned automaton. Furthermore, we present the model of a controlled system of a fuzzy partitioned discrete-event system under (fully observable) fuzzy supervisor. Interestingly, we underlay the connections between the fuzzy languages generated/marked by the controlled system and controllable, $\mathcal{L}_m(\mathcal{P})$ -closed fuzzy languages. Moreover, we talk about the supremal and infimal controllable fuzzy languages.

Audio surveillance of road traffic: An approach based on anomaly detection and interval type-2 fuzzy sets

STEFANO ROVETTA^a, ZIED MNASRI^{a,b}, FRANCESCO MASULLI^a AND ALBERTO CABRI^a

^aUniversità degli studi di Genova, Italy; ^bUniversity Tunis El Manar, Tunisia

{stefano.rovetta,francesco.masulli}@unige.it,zied.mnasri@ enit.utm.tn,alberto.cabri@dibris.unige.it

Surveillance systems are increasingly exploiting multimodal information for improved effectiveness. This paper presents an audio event detection method for road traffic surveillance, combining generative deep autoencoders and fuzzy modelling to perform anomaly detection. Baseline deep autoencoders are used to compute the reconstruction error of each audio segment, which provides a primary estimation of outlierness. To account for the uncertainty associated to this decisionmaking step, an interval type-2 fuzzy membership function composed of an optimistic/upper component and a pessimistic/lower component is used. The final class attribution employs a probabilistic method for interval comparison. Evaluation results obtained after defuzzification show that, with a careful parameter setting, the proposed membership function effectively improves the performance of the baseline autoencoder, and performs better than the state-of-the-art one-class SVM in anomaly detection.

Fuzzy object interpretation for improved performance in active contour models

Arnau Mir^{a,b}, Francisco Javier Fernandez^b, Laura De Miguel^b and Carlos Lopez-Molina^{a,b,c}

^aNavarraBiomed, Complejo Hospitalario de Navarra, Spain; ^bUniversidad Pública de Navarra, Spain; ^cGhent University, Belgium

{arnau.mir,fcojavier.fernandez,laura.demiguel,carlos. lopez}@unavarra.es

One of the most used strategies in object segmentation in images is active contours, especially in scenarios where the number of objects in the image is known, or in those where a solid object is to be found. Algorithms based on active contours start with an initial curve and progressively deform it until it adapts to the boundary of the object to be segmented. More specifically, active contours evolve until they fit the boundary of the object to be segmented by minimizing a defined Energy functional for a general closed curve.

Active contours present some endemic problems, such as the choice of the initial curve, or that of the energy function used to evolve the initial curve towards the boundary of the object to be segmented. While those problems are well acknowledged in literature, their fundamental relationship to the active contour model makes them significantly hard to solve.

In this work we study the active contour model from the basics of uncertainty theory. Specifically, we introduce intro the model a fuzzy interpretation of the object to be segmented. Consequently, the algorithm has the potential to control the expansion of the active contour to the object boundary through a weak boundary. At the same time, it eases the fine adjustment of the contour to the limits of the object, by slowing the curve evolution near such limits.

This development has, as a consequence, a dual use. Firstly, it helps in defining a sensible initial curve, to be further evolved. Secondly, it provides crucial information to evolve the curve in a efficient and accurate manner.

The theoretical developments in this work are applied to a real application in medical imaging. Specifically, in liver segmentation within a multidisciplinar study of non-alcoholic fat liver and metabolic syndrome.

Estimating Polychoric Correlations from Fuzzy Frequency Tables

Antonio Calcagni

University of Padova, Italy

antonio.calcagni@unipd.it

The polychoric correlation matrix quantifies the degrees of associations for a set of variables usually measured at an ordinal level. It is based on a latent multivariate gaussian model that governs the frequency table computed using the observed variables. Thus, polychoric correlations are often used as estimators of covariance matrices when observed variables take discrete or natural values. Polychoric correlations are adopted in many applications, including inter-rater agreement and dimensionality reduction techinques, such as Principal Component and Factor analyses. In this contribution we generalize the problem of estimating polychoric correlations from fuzzy frequency tables, which are of particular utility when observed data are classified using fuzzy categories (e.g., income levels, socio-economic status, clinical thresholds). The aim of the current contribution is twofold. First, we describe a computational procedure to compute fuzzy frequency tables based on Zadeh's fuzzy counts and generalized natural numbers. Second, we reformulate the problem of estimating latent linear correlations underlying fuzzy frequency tables in the context of Expectation-Maximization based maximum likelihood estimation. A simulation study is then used to investigate the characteristics of the proposed approach.

Restricted Equivalence Functions on L^n : A new equivalence measure between nmultisets applied on color pixels for image comparison

Aitor Castillo-López^a, Zdenko Takáč^b, Carlos Lopez-Molina^a, Francisco Javier Fernandez^a and Humberto Bustince^a

^aPublic University of Navarra, Spain; ^bSlovak University of Technology, Slovakia

aitor.castillo@unavarra.es,zdenko.takac@stuba.sk,{carlos. lopez,fcojavier.fernandez,bustince}@unavarra.es

Comparison operators are critically important in most mathematical developments for data science. They are intensively used in classical machine learning (classification, clustering) and, for similar reasons, are often used in optimization or decision making. Over the years, comparison operators have been presented for any type of data, from points in multidimensional spaces to statistical distributions or images. In the case of images, or any other type of visual data, comparison operators are specially hard to design and fine tune. Visual data often have very high-dimensionality, and frequently contains significant amount of noise and spurious artifacts. Also, comparison operators for visual data are complex to design because it is unclear how humans perform visual comparisons. The human visual system is extraordinarily complex, and the cues it uses for image recognition or evaluation are still unclear. In this context, it is specially important to make comparison operators for visual data that attempt to adhere to the way humans perform visual comparison.

In this work we tackle the problem of color comparison in the human-visible spectrum. In such a problem there are two key pieces, namely the color space and the comparison operators. The former represents the format of the data, while the latter defines the comparison itself. While there are many different ways to compare colors, we find a fundamental problem in literature: very often, the color spaces and the comparison operators are designed separately. A relevant counterexample is CieLAB, a color space designed to make the Euclidean metric between tones proportional to human-perceived dissimilarity. While it is a case of simultaneous design of color spaces and metrics, it is also true that the lat-ter is simply fixed to be the Euclidean metric; also, it is unclear whether humans behave according to triangular inequality [2]. We believe that a combined design of both color spaces and comparison operators is key for obtaining sensible quantitative comparisons. Also, we believe that color spaces (if designed for comparison) should not be static. Humans are normally unable to perform absolute evaluations of the similarity of two tones, objects or images, and usually require a *context*, relative to which an evaluation can be made. We believe that a dedicated color space should be created for each context of comparison, so as to replicate how humans are able to quickly adapt the context of comparison of any two pieces of visual information. In this sense, we believe that color or image comparison should be based on a sequential process of (a) creating a color space which adapts to the context of comparison and (b) using of adaptable comparison operators in the projections of the images to such color space.

We propose a color comparison operator based on well-known Restricted Equivalence Functions (REFs, [1]). Specifically, we present an adaptation of REFs to L^n , as well as different construction methods depending upon admissible orders. Finally, we study application of these measures for color comparison. These color comparison operators are further used to create an image comparison operator which are based on both (a) the projection of the images of a custom color space and (b) the application of REF-based color comparison operators. We provide extensive example of our proposals in both color and image comparison.

Acknowledgement: The authors gratefully acknowledge the financial support of the Spanish Ministry of Science (Project PID2019-108392GB-I00 AEI/FEDER, UE) and Grant VEGA 1/0545/20 (Slovakia).

References:

- H. Bustince, E. Barrenechea and M. Pagola, Restricted equivalence functions, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, (17) (2006) 2333–2346
- [2] A. Tversky and I. Gati, Similarity, separability, and the triangle inequality, Psychological review 89 (2) (1982) 123

Using automatic facial emotion recognition for content analyses of a language learner video corpus

XINYI CHEN, YU-YIN HSU AND EMMANUELE CHERSONI

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, China

xysimba.chen@connect.polyu.hk,{yu-yin.hsu,emmanuele. chersoni}@polyu.edu.hk

Recognizing language learners' emotional state has recently been a popular but understudied topic; its potential implications can be drawn to understanding the learners' learning process, but the challenges have been the vagueness while classifying facial emotions in discrete patterns, and the mapping of verbal and non-verbal expressions in language activities.

Assessing learners' emotional states and identifying changes of such states during pedagogical activities can be essential for understanding language learning. Manual annotation can be strenuous, and human annotators' judgment of emotions may vary according to individual and cultural differences. Therefore, we use two automatic emotion recognition services (BaiduAPI, and deepface) to process the face images captured from our video corpus. Our corpus contains five groups of recordings and each group has five tutorial sessions. Each tutorial session is about 30 to 60 minutes. The tutors were native speakers of Chinese and students were native speakers of French learning Chinese. Face pictures were captured at a rate of one image per second from 12 theme-based clips extracted from our video corpus.

Some studies have compared existing commercial APIs for facial expression recognition. Because their performance often varied by the testing conditions and the data, we decided to use the two that are more stable in the performance. To test their performance on our corpus, we used a set of images extracted from a 1-minute video from our corpus. The deepface is a public wrapper of seven state-of-the-art face recognition models, including VGG-Face, Google FaceNet, and Facebook Deep-Face. BaiduAPI outperformed deepface on the sample. Both tools' output includes a basic emotion type and a probability score. In addition, these two tools are developed separately by East Asian and Western companies, so they are suitable for our corpus in which speakers are with different language and cultural backgrounds. Commercial services generally have lower performance for spontaneous facial expressions than posed facial expressions. Therefore, we use their results as a basis for analysis of different states in our corpus of spontaneous conversation embedded in a pedagogic context.

In a conversation, the interlocutors constantly update their state of knowledge, information, orientation, and/or attention. Unlike face-to-face communications, the information exchange could become more complicated during computer-mediated communications in a language learning context. In this project, we align the emotional results with their conversational content to analyze the speakers' (mis)matched emotional and verbal contents during specifically designed language activities and to investigate the learners' and tutors' strategies of conversation. We attempt to identify reasons for the change of emotional states and their conversation strategies in given pedagogical contexts (such as whether specific and systematic verbal contents align with the emotional state change). We will report their frequency and investigate their effects regarding learners' linguistic output.

References:

- Dupré, D., Krumhuber, E. G., Küster, D., & McKeown, G. J. (2020). A performance comparison of eight commercially available automatic classifiers for facial affect recognition. PLoS ONE, 15(4). https://doi.org/10.1371/ journal.pone.0231968
- [2] Lunter, J. (2020). Beating the bias in facial recognition technology. Biometric Technology Today, 2020(9), 5-7. https://doi.org/10.1016/ S0969-4765(20)30122-3
- [3] Serengil, S. I., & Ozpinar, A. (2020). LightFace: A Hybrid Deep Face Recognition Framework. 2020 Innovations in Intelligent Systems and Applications Conference (ASYU), 1–5. https://doi.org/10. 1109/ASYU50717.2020.9259802
- [4] Yang, K., Wang, C., Sarsenbayeva, Z., Tag, B., Dingler, T., Wadley, G., & Goncalves, J. (2020). Benchmarking commercial emotion detection systems using realistic distortions of facial image datasets. The Visual Computer. https://doi. org/10.1007/s00371-020-01881-x

Fuzzy Property Grammar and Fuzzy Natural Logic for describing linguistic vagueness

Adrià Torrens

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

adria.torrens@osu.cz

The processing of natural languages opens up many challenges for linguistics. One of these challenges lies in formalising a grammar that can collect non-discrete, hence gradient or fuzzy, values.

The best-known fuzzy phenomenon in linguistics is gradience. Aarts [1] defines gradience as a term to designate the spectrum of continuous phenomena in language, from categories at the level of grammar to sounds at the level of phonetics. The most studied gradient phenomenon in natural language processing is given by fuzzy grammaticality, also known as degrees of grammaticality [3].

Linguistics has so far not provided a computationally valid formal model of fuzzy grammar. Human-machine interfaces in natural language need formal tools that capture the actual functioning of the language. Therefore, it is necessary to define a linguistic model that considers everything done so far on the graded phenomena of language to provide a computationally useful and relevant formal tool in language technologies.

Linguistics has used various mathematical and formal models to explain different linguistic phenomena. However, from a linguistics' perspective, fuzzy logic has gone unnoticed as a tool to explain natural language processing.

This presentation aims to present fuzzy logic as an excellent tool that can offer new and exciting linguistic research and description perspectives.

The application of fuzzy logic to describe a grammar of natural languages has been carried out in collaboration with the Institute for Research and Applications of Fuzzy Modeling (IRAFM) Centre of Excellence IT4 Innovations in Ostrava (Czech Republic). The Fuzzy Natural Logic fuzzy logic model [4] is used.

A Fuzzy Property Grammar [5,6], formalism based on a Property Grammar [2], has been used to explain the fuzzy grammar's linguistic rules. In particular, fuzzy logic and property grammar are used to explain what happens in communication once syntactic rules are violated and how such a thing affects communication success. Additionally, both systems also describe the prototypical and borderline phenomena when describing the semantics of evaluative expressions. The result will be that the grammar will provide us with a degree value that defines either (or both) a syntactic or semantic outcome. In this way, our fuzzy grammar model can characterise different graded and variability phenomena in natural language.

References:

- [1] Aarts, B. (2004a). Conceptions of gradience in the history of linguistics. Language Sciences, 26(4):343–389.
- [2] Blache, P. (2016). Representing Syntax by Means of Properties: a Formal Framework for Descriptive Approaches. Journal of Language Modelling, 4(2):183–224.
- [3] Blache, P. & Prost, J.-P. (2008). A Quantification Model of Grammaticality. Proceedings of the Fifth International Workshop on Constraints and Language Processing (CSLP2008), 1(1):5–19.
- [4] Novák, V. (2015). Fuzzy Natural Logic: Towards Mathematical Logic of Human Reasoning. In Towards the Future of Fuzzy Logic (pp. 137-165). Springer International Publishing.
- [5] Torrens Urrutia, Adrià. (2018). An approach to measuring complexity with a fuzzy grammar & degrees of grammaticality. In Proceedings of the Workshop on Linguistic Complexity and Natural Language Processing, pages 59–67.
- [6] Torrens Urrutia, Adrià. (2019). A formal characterization of fuzzy degrees of grammaticality for natural language. Ph.D. thesis, Universitat Rovira i Virgili

How NLP Can Benefit From a Fuzzy Classification of Language Universals

Antoni Brosa Rodríguez

Universitat Rovira i Virgili, Spain

antoni.brosa@urv.cat

Natural Language Processing has advanced greatly in the last years. However, the innovations in NLP are only reflected in English and a small group of fortunate languages. In fact, one of the challenges in NLP is developing these valuable tools for 100% of existing languages by designing universal systems. Unfortunately, this is not possible since adequate data are not available for thousands of the world's languages (O'Horan et al., 2016; Ponti et al., 2019). It has been shown that linguistic typology and the knowledge on language universals can help NLP in the development of multilingual resources.

In this paper, we present a fuzzy approach to the universals of language. Our proposal is based on a formalism based on constraints from fuzzy logic to define a fuzzy model with gradience that allows better ordering and understanding of linguistic universals (Lakoff, 1973; Novák, 2008). This model aims to fill in the gaps in the information on the different little-studied languages.

The traditional classification of linguistic universals tends to be discrete. From a linguistic point of view, the study of language universals is a matter of detecting the invariances shared by all the world's languages (Greenberg, 1963). These characteristics shared by all the world languages represent bridges that unite the most studied languages with the unknown ones and offer us precious information. However, the vast majority of formulated linguistic universals have some exceptions, and are classified as statistical universals (as opposed to absolute universals, which have no exceptions) (Bickel, 2010). Researchers like Dryer (1998) have highlighted the great importance of these universals, even if they are not absolute since they continue to link most languages. However, this theoretical approach is highly polarized, and this discontinuous view does not allow it to have an actual application in NLP. In other words, it would be beneficial to adopt a fuzzy perspective in the categorization of universals in language that allows a gradation and, therefore, a more accurate, meaningful, and ultimately helpful classification to be traced to encompass languages.

We propose a fuzzy-gradient approach to the universals in order to put coherence in the terminological chaos that currently exists. There are no objective (and precise) divisions accepted by all researchers in language universals. Sometimes labels like rara, rarissima, quasiuniversal, and so on appear.

From a fuzzy classification like the one we propose, we would establish a membership scale of universality based on the rules that are fulfilled by the available set of languages (Bakker, 2010; Comrie, 1989). This would be divided based on a Trichotomous Expression: high satisfied universal (present in all or almost all languages), medium satisfied universal (present in the average of languages), and low satisfied universal (not many languages are found that comply).

The model we are presenting would free the classic classification of universals (still in force) from contradictions, paradoxes (for example, the paradox of sorites), and overlaps (Torrens, 2019). Besides, the new nomenclature would allow rankings based on the rules higher up the scale or rankings with the languages that almost universally contain, and this would also bring order to resources such as the WALS or The Universals Archive. In short, we believe that our proposal to see universals in language from a fuzzy perspective will mean a boost in different NLP applications that could benefit and extend these advances to all languages and not to a privileged group.

References:

- Bakker, D. (2010). Language Sampling. In J. Jung Song (Ed.), The Oxford Handbook of Linguistic Typology (pp. 1-26). Oxford University Press. https://doi.org/0.1093/oxfordhb/ 9780199281251.013.0007
- [2] Bickel, B. (2010). Absolute and statistical universals. In P. Colm Hogan (Ed.), The Cambridge Encyclopedia of the Language Sciences (Issue i, pp. 77–79). Cambridge University Press.

- [3] Comrie, B. (1989). Language Universals and Linguistic Typology. The University of Chicago Press.
- [4] Dryer, M. S. (1998). Why Statistical Universals are Better than Absolute Universals. Papers from the 33rd Annual Meeting of the Chicago Linguistics Society, 1–23.
- [5] Greenberg, J. H. (1963). Universals of Language. The M.I.T. Press.
- [6] Lakoff, G. (1973). Hedges: A Study in Meaning Criteria and the Logic of Fuzzy Concepts. Journal of Philosophical Logic, 2(4), 458–508.
- [7] Novák, V. (2008). Mathematical fuzzy logic: From vagueness to commonsense reasoning. In G. Kreuzbauer, N. Gratzl, & E. Hielb (Eds.), Retorische Wissenschaft: Rede und Argumentation in Theorie und Praxis (pp. 191–223). LIT-Verlag.
- [8] O'Horan, H., Berzak, Y., Vulić, I., Reichart, R., & Korhonen, A. (2016). Survey on the use of typological information in natural language processing. Proceedings of COLING 2016, the 26th International Conference on Computational Linguistics: Technical Papers, 1297–1308.
- [9] Ponti, E. M., O'Horan, H., Berzak, Y., Vulić, I., Reichart, R., Poibeau, T., Shutova, E., & Korhonen, A. (2019). Modeling Language Variation and Universals: A Survey on Typological Linguistics for Natural Language Processing. Computational Linguistics, 45(3), 559–601. https://doi.org/10. 1162/coli_a_00357
- [10] Torrens, A. (2019). A Formal Characterization of Fuzzy Degrees of Grammaticality for Natural Language. Universitat Rovira i Virgili.

Towards a Fuzzy Model for Approaching Verbal Violence

SUSANA M. CAMPILLO-MUÑOZ AND M. DOLORES JIMENEZ-LOPEZ

Universitat Rovira i Virgili, Spain

{susanamaria.campillo,mariadolores.jimenez}@urv.cat

The massive use of social networks has revealed a fact that, although it has always existed, was not so obvious: verbal violence. Understanding and detecting violent texts in online discussions and social media are wellknown challenges. In fact, in the last few years there has been a lot of research on automatic detection of verbal violence by using different computational tools to automatically classifying and detecting online abuse (machine learning, Natural Language Processing, statistical modelling...). Fortuna and Nunes (2018), Fortuna et al. (2020), Vidgen et al. (2019) and Poletto et al. (2020) offer interesting reviews of different challenges for the detection of abusive language.

In this proposal, we afford the topic of verbal violence from a linguistic point of view with the aim of providing a fuzzy formal approach that might help in the computational detection of violent texts.

By verbal violence we understand the intended attack to positive (personality) or negative (freedom of action) face of another person using language. In general, studies on linguistic violence distinguish many different categories: hate speech, offence, threat, insult, defamation... The problem that we find in all these categories and classifications is that they use concepts that can be described as "vague". It is difficult to determine what exactly is meant by an "offence", which implies an "insult" or how can we make the difference between "offensive language", "hate speech" and "abusive language". On the other hand, this vagueness in the categories makes it difficult to qualify or value a certain expression as more or less violent.

Taking into account the interest of having systems that automatically calculate/detect the level of violence % f(x)in a given text, it is crucial to propose formal models that are capable of assessing the violence of a given expression. For this we should have a model that provides a scale, probably fuzzy, capable of assigning a value of violence to linguistic utterances (understanding by "utterance" a natural unit of speech; an utterance can be a word, a sentence, a text...). For defining such a model, we propose to use Fuzzy Natural Logic (FNL). FNL is proposed as new theory based on the results of linguists, logicians and AI specialists in natural logic, logical analysis of natural language and commonsense reasoning. It is presented as an extension on mathematical fuzzy logic. The main mathematical tool for FNL is fuzzy type theory, a higher-order mathematical fuzzy logic (Novak, 2015). Specifically, we propose to analyse verbal violence by using Novak's theory of evaluative linguistic expressions (Novak 2006ab). Different degrees of verbal violence can be established by using this theory and by proposing fuzzy rating scales.

In this paper, a proof-of-concept of a fuzzy model for detecting levels of violence is presented. We will show how, by analyzing a corpus, we extract a set of linguistic/contextual properties that characterize violent utterances. By using such properties, we assess the degree of violence of an utterance by considering satisfied and violated properties. The number and type of satisfied/violated properties allow to place a verbal utterance in a specific point in a fuzzy scale.

At this moment, when automatic analysis and detection is increasing and the presence of verbal violence too, it is necessary to analyse the features of verbal violence. In order to improve the automatic detection, complex linguistic and sociocultural concepts can be formalized with fuzzy logic. Definitely, logic, computation and linguistics must work together to achieve the best results.

References:

- Fortuna, P., & Nunes, S. (2018). A Survey on Automatic Detection of Hate Speech in Text. ACM Computing Surveys, 51(4), 1–30.
- [2] Fortuna, P., Soler, J., & Wanner, L. (2020). Toxic, Hateful, Offensive or Abusive? What Are We Really Classifying? An Empirical Analysis of Hate Speech Datasets. In Proceedings of the 12th Language Resources and Evaluation Conference (pp. 6786–6794). Marseille, France: European Language Resources Association.
- [3] Novák, V. (2006a). Fuzzy logic theory of evaluating expressions and comparative quantifiers. In Proceedings of the 11th International Conference IPMU, (vol. 2, pp. 1572-1579), Paris: Editions EDK.
- [4] Novák, V. (2006b). Fuzzy sets as a special mathematical model of vagueness phenomenon. In B. Reusch (Ed.), Computational Intelligence, Theory and Applications (pp. 683-690). Heidelberg: Springer
- [5] Novák, V. (2015). Fuzzy natural logic: towards mathematical logic of human reasoning. In: R. Seising, E. Trillas, J. Kacprzyk (Eds.), Fuzzy Logic: Towards the Future (pp.137–165), Berlin: Springer.
- [6] Poletto, F., Basile, V., Sanguinetti, M., Bosco, C., & Patti, V. (2020). Resources and benchmark corpora for hate speech detection: a systematic review. Language Resources and Evaluation, 1–47.
- [7] Vidgen, B., Harris, A., Nguyen, D., Tromble, R., Hale, S., & Margetts, H. (2019). Challenges and frontiers in abusive content detection. In Proceedings of the Third Workshop on Abusive Language

Online (pp. 80–93). Firenze: Association for Computational Linguistics.

Probabilistic and Standard Fuzzy Systems in Fuzzy Natural Logic: A Comparison in Time Series Modeling

 NGUYEN Linh

Institute for Research and Applications of Fuzzy Modelling, NSC IT4Innovations, University of Ostrava, Czechia

linh.nguyen@osu.cz

The fuzzy natural logic (FNL) is an extension of mathematical fuzzy logic. It has been developed in several investigations by V. Novak et al. on the basis of the natural logic introduced by G. Lakoff. The essential of FNL is the theory of fuzzy IF-THEN rules and approximate reasoning. In this theory, a system of fuzzy linguistic IF-THEN rules of the following form: IF X is A THEN Y is B is used for modeling the dependency between imprecise measurements (fuzzinesses) of phenomena. This theory has been successfully applied in many fields like fuzzy control, decision marking, and time series forecasting. However, in the real world, there are two major sources of uncertainty, namely, the randomness (or probabilistic uncertainty) and fuzziness. On the belief that the best of two worlds can be achieved by integrating both types of uncertainty into fuzzy systems, we have recently introduced an approach to extend the standard fuzzy systems in FNL to make it possible to take into account the probabilistic uncertainty beside the fuzziness. The extension is based on the generalization of the standard fuzzy IF-THEN rule to the probabilistic fuzzy linguistic IF-THEN rule: IF X is A THEN Y is B with a probability P(B|A). In this contribution, we provide a comparison between the probabilistic and standard fuzzy systems when applying them to model financial time series.

Interpolativity and Continuity of Similarity-Based Reasoning Fuzzy Inference

Sayantan Mandal^a and Balasubramaniam Jayaram^b

^aSRM University - AP, India; ^bIIT Hyderabad, India sayantan.m@srmap.edu.in,jbala@math.iith.ac.in

Similarity-based reasoning is one of the well-established inference mechanisms which is widespread in the literature. An inference mechanism is required to have some properties to be an acceptable inference mechanism that can be used in an application. Interpolativity and continuity are two of the major controlling properties of an inference mechanism. In this work, we represent the SBR inference mechanism as a function between two spaces of fuzzy sets following which we ascertain the conditions on different operations involved in a similaritybased reasoning inference mechanism that satisfies the above-mentioned properties.

Similarity-based reasoning from the perspective of extensionality

Antonín Dvořák^a, Balasubramaniam Jayaram^b and Martin Štěpnička^a

^aUniversity of Ostrava, Czech Republic; ^bIndian Institute of Technology Hyderabad, India

name.surname@osu.cz,jbala@iith.ac.in

Similarity-based reasoning systems consider the notion of similarity as crucial for their motivation and the whole design. However, similarity can be seen not only as a general notion but also as a particular family of binary fuzzy relations modeling a fuzzy equality. Moreover, these relations are tightly connected to another crucial notion — to the extensionality of fuzzy sets. This contribution focuses on this natural bridge and studies similarity-based reasoning fuzzy inference systems from the point of view of extensionality. Robustness of these systems is the first property that is considered in the newly set-up framework. However, the potential impact and topics of interest are much wider.

Linear Regression Approach to Fuzzy Cognitive Maps with History Data

VESA NISKANEN

University of Helsinki, Finland

vesa.a.niskanen@helsinki.fi

Methods of linear regression analysis are applied to fuzzy cognitive map construction according to history data from the standpoint of quantitative human sciences. When the linearized version of history data is also used, this construction may be reduced to ordinary linear regression analysis. This linearization applies the inverted transformation functions of the fuzzy cognitive maps. Our approach will avoid subjective reasoning and interpretation on these model outcomes by relying on the objective and well-justified statistical theories instead.

Detection of anomalies in sensor data using neurofuzzy systems

Fabio Rodríguez^a, William D. Chicaiza^a, Adolfo J. Sánchez^b and Juan M. Escaño^a

^aUniversidad de Sevilla; ^bUniversity of Seville

frodriguexQus.es,william_chicaizaCoutlook.com,adolfo.j.

sanchez@ieee.org, jescano@us.es

In this work, a technique based on the combination of principal component analysis and a set of neurofuzzy systems has been designed for the detection of anomalies in the flow sensor of a Fresnel-type solar plant located at the Engineering School of the University of Seville.

Nonlinear Fuzzy Model Predictive Control of the TCP-100 Parabolic Trough Plant

Juan M. Escaño^a, Antonio J. Gallego^a, Adolfo J. Sánchez^a, Luis J. Yebra^b and Eduardo F. Camacho^a

^aUniversidad de Sevilla, Spain; ^bPlataforma Solar de Almería CIEMAT, Spain

{jescano,agallego2,asanchezdelpozo}@us.es,luis.yebra@psa.es,efcamacho@us.es

Advanced control strategies can play an important role in improving the efficiency of solar plants. In particular, linear model predictive control strategies have been applied successfully when controlling solar trough plants. However, if the control algorithm uses a linear model associated only with one operating point when the plant is working far from the design conditions, the performance of the controller may deteriorate.

In this paper, a fuzzy model-based nonlinear model predictive controller is applied to the new TCP-100 solar facility. The control strategy uses a fuzzy model of the plant for predicting the future evolution of the outlet temperature. This approach reduces the computational time of the nonlinear model predictive control strategy and allows to solve it much faster than using the full nonlinear model.

Neuro-fuzzy modelling of a linear Fresneltype solar collector system as a digital twin

WILLIAM D. CHICAIZA, ADOLFO J. SÁNCHEZ, ANTO-NIO J. GALLEGO AND JUAN M. ESCAÑO

University of Seville, Spain

{wchicaiza,asanchezdelpozo,agallego2,jescano}@us.es

One of the main components of a Digital Twin is the modeling of the virtual entity, being this a high-fidelity digital model of the physical entity that represents the modeling of geometry, modeling of physical properties, modeling of behavior, and modeling of rules in the virtual world.

This paper presents a model, based on an Adaptive Neuro-Fuzzy Inference System, of a Fresnel linear solar collector system as a Digital Twin, located on the roof of the School of Engineering of the University of Seville, which is a part of an absorption cooling plant.

A concentrated parameter model of the system has been used to generate artificial data. Real operating data were used to validate the model.

A Fuzzy-based approach for energy management of DHW systems in hotels

Marlon Llano^a, Ricardo Mesa-Cruz^a, Alberto Hamilton^a, Juan Francisco Acosta^b and Juan Albino Mendez Perez^a

^aUniversidad de La Laguna, Spain; ^bThe Ritz-Carlton, Abama, Carretera General TF-47, KM 9, Spain {rmesacru,albham}@ull.edu.es,juanfrancisco.acosta@ ritzcarlton.com,jamendez@ull.edu.es

This paper focuses on the intelligent management of domestic hot water (DHW) systems in buildings. Thermal installations are studied in depth due to the high percentage they represent in energy consumption, moreover, they usually lack management systems. To address this problem, firstly a functional model of a DHW installation is created, then a study is carried out on the current management model applied and the energy losses that it entails. Once this is achieved, a proposal is made for an intelligent management system based on fuzzy logic that controls resources automatically to improve its efficiency. The system is validated by applying it to real data obtained from a high-end hotel in the island of Tenerife.

Fuzzy Clustering-based Switching Nonnegative Matrix Factorization and Its Application to Environmental Data Analysis

KATSUHIRO HONDA, TOMOAKI FURUKAWA, SEIKI UBUKATA AND AKIRA NOTSU

Osaka Prefecture University, Japan

{honda, subukata}@cs.osakafu-u.ac.jp,furukawa@hi.cs.

osakafu-u.ac.jp,notsu@cs.osakafu-u.ac.jp

Non-negative matrix factorization (NMF) is a basic method for analyzing the intrinsic structure of nonnegative matrices but cannot work well when datasets include some subsets drawn from different generative schemes. This paper proposes a novel switching NMF algorithm, which simultaneously estimate multiple NMF models supported by the fuzzy clustering concept. A fuzzy NMF reconstruction measure is modeled by introducing fuzzy memberships of each object and is also utilized as the fuzzy clustering criterion. Object fuzzy partition estimation and cluster-wise local NMF modeling are iteratively performed based on the iterative optimization principle. The characteristics of the proposed algorithm are demonstrated through numerical experiments using an artificial dataset and an environmental observation dataset.

Discovery of pairwise ordinal edit rules

MILAN PEELMAN, ANTOON BRONSELAER AND GUY DE TRÉ

Ghent University, Belgium

{milan.peelman, antoon.bronselaer, guy.detre}@ugent.be

Edit rules are simple tuple-level constraints that concisely model which tuples are not permitted in a consistent relation. Previously, developed algorithms mostly assumed nominal data. This implies that ordinal data either had to be discarded or discretized according to expert knowledge. We can omit this by working with the ordinal data directly. In this paper we explore the discovery of low lift pairwise ordinal edit rules and propose an efficient algorithm employing several pruning strategies derived from the lift measure. Our experiments show that we can obtain a similar precision as nominal algorithms, while having an acceptable computational cost.

Fuzzy co-clustering algorithm for multisource data mining

Le Cam $Binh^a$, Pham Van Nha^b and Pham The $Long^c$

^aHanoi University of Culture, Vietnam; ^bAcademy of Military Science and Technology, Vietnam; ^cLe Quy Don University, Vietnam

University, vietnam

 ${\tt cambinhlt,famvannha} @gmail.com,longpt@mta.edu.vn$

The development of information and communication technology has motivated multi-source data to become more common and publicly available. Compared to traditional data that describe objects from a single-source, multi-source data is semantically richer, more useful, however many-feature, more uncertain, and complex. Since traditional clustering algorithms cannot handle such data, multi-source clustering has become a research hotspot. Most existing multi-source clustering methods are developed from single-source clustering by extending the objective function or building combination models. In fact, the fuzzy clustering methods handle the uncertainty data better than the hard clustering methods. Recently, fuzzy co-clustering has proven effective in the many-feature data processing due to the possibility of isolating the uncertainty present in each feature. In this paper, a novel multi-source data mining algorithm based on a modified fuzzy co-clustering algorithm and two penalty terms is proposed, which is called Multisource Fuzzy Co-clustering Algorithm (MSFCoC). Experimental results on various multi-source datasets indicate that the proposed MSFCoC algorithm outperforms existing state-of-the-art clustering algorithms

Analysis of the relation among global stocks using Fuzzy/Linguistic IF-THEN rules

Soheyla Mirshahi^a, Sina Mirshahi^b and Vilém Novák^b

^aUniversity of Tomas Bata, Czech Republic; ^bUniversity of Ostrava, Czech Republic

Mirshahi@utb.cz,{Soheyla.Mirshahi,Vilem.Novak}@osu.cz

In this paper, using a fuzzy mathematical model, we analyze multiple stocks and produce a description for their interrelation. Our analysis is based on theories of F-transform and fuzzy natural logic. The suggested method consists of two main steps; first, we smooth out time series using F-transform. Afterward, we evaluate their similarities in different lags and provide a linguistic description of their interrelations. A python package is developed to automatize the suggested method fully. The method is tested on 26 global stocks from five different regions.

DC Microgrid Control Containing Virtual Supercapacitor

NAVID PIRI YENGIJEH^a, HASSAN MORADI Cheshmehbeigi^a and Kumars Rouzbehi^b

^aRazi University, Iran; ^bUniversity of Seville, Spain

n.piri96@gmail.com,ha.moradi@razi.ac.ir,krouzbehi@us.es

In this paper, the proposed control scheme to emulate the inertia is implemented based on the concept of the virtual supercapacitor in the inner control loop of the energy storage system (ESS) interface converter with DCMG. According to the proposed technique, the virtual supercapacitor by using a fuzzy controller provides suitable support for voltage stability. The simulation results confirm the validity of the proposed scheme.

A soundness test for multi criteria decision models with imprecise data

Camilo Franco De Los Ríos^a and Jens Leth Hougaard^b

^aUniversity of the Andes, Colombia; ^bUniversity of Copenhagen, Denmark

c.franco31@uniandes.edu.co,jlh@ifro.ku.dk

This paper proposes a set of minimal conditions which should be fulfilled by any multi-criteria additive procedure set out to work under imprecision. The proposed conditions are defined in terms of binary preference relations, which are inferred from interval-valued alternatives, and are shown to be useful for evaluating the interval-based reasoning procedures of imprecise multicriteria methods. In particular, well-known distancebased methods like TOPSIS and VIKOR are examined in their interval extensions, together with the intervalvalued method of WOD, finding that only VIKOR fails to pass the complete test.

Semantics for reciprocal preferences

Fabián Castiblanco^a, Camilo Franco^a, J. Tinguaro Rodríguez^b and Javier Montero^b

^aGran Colombia University, Colombia; ^bComplutense University, Spain

fabianalberto.castiblanco@ugc.edu.co,c.franco31@uniandes. edu.co,{jtrodrig,monty}@mat.ucm.es

Examining fuzzy preference relations together with the reciprocity condition, and a potential conceptual conflict arising between reciprocal fuzzy preferences and fuzzy preference structures, it is claimed that reciprocal preferences cannot be properly understood according to a weak nor a strict preference predicate. Therefore, as the elements of a standard preference structure, namely strict preference, weak preference, indifference and incomparability, cannot be properly distinguished from reciprocal fuzzy preferences, the concept of lack of preference emerges as a natural category, in fact allowing to understand reciprocal fuzzy preferences according to the standard fuzzy preference is shown to group all the non-preference relations into a basic, unifying concept, providing an adequate decomposition of the meaning of any reciprocal fuzzy preference relation.

An Ordered Weighted Averaging Operator based on Extreme Values Reductions.

DIEGO GARCÍA-ZAMORA, ÁLVARO LABELLA, ROSA M. Rodríguez and Luis Martínez

University of Jaén, Spain

{dgzamora,alabella,rmrodrig,martin}@ujaen.es

Classical Group Decision Making (GDM) problems require the usage of aggregation functions to fuse the information elicited from the experts who participate in the decision situation. One of the most usual aggregation functions employed in GDM are the Ordered Weighting Averaging (OWÅ) operators which commonly use a lin-ear linguistic quantifier to define the relevance of each expert. However, the usage of linear quantifiers to fuse information presents some disadvantages due to the fact that they can assign the value 0 to the weights corresponding to the most extreme opinions, completely ignoring them. In this contribution, we propose a novel OWA operator which uses an Extreme Values Reduction (EVR) as linguistic quantifier to compute the relevance of each expert. The resulting operator, so-called, EVR-OWA operator, will always assign a non null weight to every expert but giving greater importance to the intermediate opinions. After defining the EVR-OWA opera-tor for a generic EVR, the EVR-OWA operators associated to two concrete families of EVRs are proposed and their main measures, i.e. mean, standard deviation, orness measure and entropy, computed. Finally an example of aggregation is developed to show the performance of the EVR-OWA operator.

Evolving Fuzzy System Applied to Battery Charge Capacity Prediction for Fault Prognostics

Murilo Osorio Camargos^a, Iury Bessa^{a,b}, Luiz Cordovil Junior^a, Pedro Henrique Silva Coutinho^a, Daniel Leite^c and Reinaldo Martínez Palhares^a

^aFederal University of Minas Gerais, Brazil; ^bFederal University of Amazonas, Brazil; ^cFederal University of Lavras, Brazil

{murilo.camargosf,luiz.cordovil05,coutinho.p92}@gmail. com,iurybessa@ufam.edu.br,daniel.leite@ufla.br,rpalhares@ ufmg.br

This paper addresses the use of data-driven evolving techniques applied to fault prognostics. In such problems, accurate predictions of multiple steps ahead are essential for the Remaining Useful Life (RUL) estimation of a given asset. The fault prognostics' solutions must be able to model the typical nonlinear behavior of the degradation processes of these assets, and be adaptable to each unit's particularities. In this context, the Evolving Fuzzy Systems (EFSs) are models capable of representing such behaviors, in addition of being able to deal with non-stationary behavior, also present in these problems. Moreover, a methodology to recursively track the model's estimation error is presented as a way to quantify uncertainties that are propagated in the longterm predictions. The well-established NASA's Li-ion batteries data set is used to evaluate the models. The experiments indicate that generic EFSs can take advan-tage of both historical and stream data to estimate the RŬL and its uncertainty.

Incremental Learning and State-Space Evolving Fuzzy Control of Nonlinear Time-Varying Systems with Unknown Model

Daniel Leite^a, Pedro Coutinho^b, Iury Bessa^{b,c}, Murilo Camargos^d, Luiz Cordovil Junior^b and Reinaldo Palhares^b

^aFederal University of Lavras, Brazil; ^bFederal University of Minas Gerais, Brazil; ^cFederal University of Amazonas, Brazil; ^dGetulio Vargas Foundation, Brazil daniel.leite@ufla.br, {coutinho.p92,luiz.cordovi105}@ gmail.com, iurybessa@ufam.edu.br,murilo.camargosf@gmail. com, rpalhares@ufmg.br

We present a method for incremental modeling and time-varying control of unknown nonlinear systems. The

method combines elements of evolving intelligence, granular machine learning, and multi-variable control. We propose a State-Space Fuzzy-set-Based evolving Modeling (SS-FBeM) approach. The resulting fuzzy model is structurally and parametrically developed from a data stream with focus on memory and data coverage. The fuzzy controller also evolves, based on the data instances and fuzzy model parameters. Its local gains are redesigned in real-time – whenever the corresponding local fuzzy models change – from the solution of a linear matrix inequality problem derived from a fuzzy Lyapunov function and bounded input conditions. We have shown one-step prediction and asymptotic stabilization of the Henon chaos.

Balancing data within incremental semisupervised fuzzy clustering for credit card fraud detection

GABRIELLA CASALINO, GIOVANNA CASTELLANO AND NICOLA MARVULLI

University of Bari, Italy

name.surname@uniba.it

As the number of online financial transactions increases, the problem of credit card fraud detection has become quite urgent. Machine learning methods, including supervised and unsupervised approaches, have been proven to be effective to detect fraudulent activities. In our previous work presented at EUSFLAT2019 we proposed the use of an incremental semi-supervised fuzzy clustering that processes both labeled and unlabeled data as a stream to create a classification model for credit card fraud detection. However we observed that the results of the method were affected by data unbalancement. Indeed credit card frauds data are highly imbalanced since the number of fraudulent activities is far less than the genuine ones. In this work, to deal with the high data unbalance, different resampling methods are investigated and their empirical comparison is reported.

Fuzzifying Geospatial Data to Identify Critical Traffic Areas

JHONNY PINCAY, EDY PORTMANN AND LUIS TERÁN

University of Fribourg, Switzerland

 ${\tt jhonny.pincaynieves,edy.portmann,luis.teran} \\ {\tt Qunifr.ch}$

This manuscript proposes a framework to design an artifact that combines traffic data of different sources, addresses their low-penetration rate and imprecision, and enables their analysis. The implemented artifact uses probe data of en-route operations of delivery vehicles and Traffic Message Channel-based records. Both datasets are fuzzified and a type-2 fuzzy logic system is then implemented, to determine the traffic criticality of geographical zones. The output of the system is displayed on a map to serve as an analysis tool. With the practical implementation, it is shown that such insights can be obtained, without large amounts of precise information. However, comprehensive evaluation methods are to be developed to verify the validity of the results.

Monitoring acoustic data streams using possibilistic aggregation and multi label learning

KATARZYNA KACZMAREK-MAJER a , Olgierd Hryniewicz a , Dominika Kornobis b and Anna Stachowiak b

^aSystems Research Institute Polish Academy of Sciences, Poland; ^bAdam Mickiewicz University, Poland

{katarzyna.kaczmarek,Olgierd.Hryniewicz}@ibspan.waw.pl, domkor4@st.amu.edu.pl,aniap@amu.edu.pl

This paper introduces a novel procedure for statisti-

cal monitoring of acoustic data streams supported by possibilistic aggregation and multi-label learning. The primary goal is to learn improved control limits for the residual control charts due to the objective removal of measurements from the non-healthy state of a patient determined through multi-label learning. The proposed procedure is illustrated with real-life acoustic data collected from smartphones of Bipolar Disorder patient. Multi-label classification enabled to distinguish between different degrees of severity of manic and depressive symptoms, and especially for the mixed state - their simultaneous occurrence.

The use of similarity measures in the method of selecting features for classification under uncertainty

BARBARA PĘKALA^a, KRZYSZTOF DYCZKOWSKI^b, JAROSŁAW SZKOŁA^a AND DAWID KOSIOR^a

^aUniversity of Rzeszow, Poland; ^bAdam Mickiewicz University, Poland

 $\verb+bpekala@ur.edu.pl,chris@amu.edu.pl,{jszkola,dkosior}@ur.edu.pl$

The presentation addresses the problem of the select relevant attributes for classification based on similarity measures for interval-valued fuzzy sets. These types of measures with uncertainty were introduced using partial, linear, or in the sense of possibility or necessity orders of interval-valued fuzzy sets. The influence of the selection of specific inclusion and similarity measures with uncertainty on the decision algorithm was discussed. The decision quality of the presented algorithm was tested on a widely known data set. An important task related to the classification of objects is the appropriate reduction of input data. Reduction data may concern the following issues:

- selection of information, i.e. reduction of the number of features describing the object,

- replacing the continuous range of feature variability with discrete values,

- reducing the number of objects representing particular classes.

The effectiveness of attribute selection was determined using the k-nearest neighbor's classification algorithm (k-NN). The essential novelty of the proposed approach is the use of a measure that takes into account similarities between intervals or interval-valued fuzzy sets, i.e. the widths of these intervals representing the uncertainty of information and imprecision of the membership function. The reason for selecting a function is to find the minimum-sized subset of features that is necessary and sufficient to describe the target concept and at the same time select the subset of features that best increases the prediction accuracy or reduces the complexity of the model without significantly reducing the prediction accuracy.

Possibilistic granular count: derivation and extension to granular sum

CORRADO MENCAR

University of Bari Aldo Moro, Italy

corrado.mencar@uniba.it

Abstract Counting data in presence of uncertainty leads to granular counts that can be represented in terms of possibility distributions. The formula of granular count is derived on the basis of two weak assumptions that can be applied in a wide variety of problems involving uncertain data. The formulation is further extended to introduce the granular sum of counts, by taking into account the interactivity of granular counts. Numerical results show the differences in terms of specificity between granular sum and a direct application of the extension principle to sum granular counts.

On a graded version of stochastic dominance

Raúl Pérez-Fernández, Juan Baz, Irene Díaz and Susana Montes

University of Oviedo, Spain

{perezfernandez, bazjuan, sirene, montes}@uniovi.es

A random variable is said to stochastically dominate another random variable if the cumulative distribution function of the former is smaller than or equal to the cumulative distribution function of the latter. In this paper, we present a graded version of stochastic dominance by measuring the part of the real line in which the inequality holds. Interestingly, when a finite and non-null supermodular fuzzy measure is considered, this graded version of stochastic dominance is proven to be a fuzzy order relation w.r.t. the Lukasiewicz t-norm. We also discuss the use of the Lebesgue measure for random variables with bounded support and present different alternatives for random variables with unbounded support.

Optimality conditions for multiobjective fuzzy programming problems

BEATRIZ HERNÁNDEZ-JIMÉNEZ^a, RAFAELA OSUNA-GÓMEZ^b, YURILEV YALCO-CANO^c and Gabriel Ruíz-Garzón^d

^aUniversidad Pablo de Olavide, Spain; ^bUniversiddad de Sevilla, Spain; ^cUniversidad de Tarapacá, Chile; ^dUniversidad de Cádiz, Spain

mbherjim@upo.es,rafaela@us.es,ychalco@uta.cl,gabriel. ruiz@uca.es

We consider a fuzzy multiobjective problem with p gH-differentiable objectives defined in \mathbb{R}^n . Based on a new p-dimensional stationary solution definition given we obtain neccesary optimality conditions for efficiency that have some adventage with respect to the ones you can find in the literature to date: the differentiability notion used is more general and the optimality conditions presented are easier to compute. A new generalized convexity notion is given in order to obtain sufficient optimality conditions for this problem. The results obtained generalize the ones that exist in the literature in several aspects. This generalization is reached primarly since our results consider p-dimensional functions instead of scalar functions and they are defined for n variables instead of only one variable.

A Minimax Criterion Approach to Treat the Inexactness in Feasible Set of a Linear Programming Problem

ZHENZHONG GAO AND MASAHIRO INUIGUCHI

Osaka University, Japan

zhenzhong@inulab.sys.es.osaka-u.ac.jp,inuiguti@sys.es. osaka-u.ac.jp

The robustness analysis investigates the optimality of a solution in a linear programming problem that contains uncertainties. Conventionally, researchers concentrated on the one with a fixed feasible set, while in this paper, we focus on an inexact one. Since an inexact feasible set usually makes a solution infeasible in some situations, we consider it a penalty for the objective function. To accomplish it, we utilise the minimax criterion and propose an updated programming problem, which has an objective function that includes a weighted Lp-norm to represent the penalty. For the application, we only consider L1-norm (absolute-value norm) and L2-norm (Euclidean norm). We show that for the L1-norm, an approach based on linear programming can treat it with low computational complexity. In contrast, we show that an approach based on derivative can treat the case of L2-norm. Finally, we compare our approach with conventional fuzzy linear programming for the merit and drawback of our approach.

Learning of Consistent Preference Relations for Decision Making and Optimization in the Context of Interacting Goals

RUDOLF FELIX

PSI FLS Fuzzy Logik & Neuro Systeme GmbH, Germany felix@fuzzy.de

In former papers a decision and optimization algorithm based on interactions between goals was introduced and it was shown how it solves relevant real-world problems. However, the algorithm assumed preference information on the goals as initially given. In this paper we describe a learning algorithm that derives such preference information from decision and optimization input data. It is shown how the former algorithm is improved and how this improvement links the algorithm to reinforcementbased machine learning optimization.

How General Is Fuzzy Decision Making?

Olga Kosheleva and Vladik Kreinovich

Univ. of Texas at El Paso, USA

{olgak,vladik}@utep.edu

In many practical situations, users describe their preferences in imprecise (fuzzy) terms. In such situations, fuzzy techniques are a natural way to describe these preferences in precise terms.

Of course, this description is only an approximation to the ideal decision making that a person would perform if we took time to elicit his/her exact preferences. How accurate is this approximation? When can fuzzy decision making – potentially – describe the exact decision making, and when there is a limit to the accuracy of fuzzy approximations?

In this paper, we show that decision making can be precisely described in fuzzy terms if and only if different parameters describing the alternatives are independent – in the sense that if for two alternatives, all other parameters are the same, then the preference between these two alternatives depends only on the differing values and doe not depend on the values of all other parameters.

Why kappa regression?

Julio Urenda^a, Orsolya Csiszár^{b,c}, Gábor Csiszár^d, József Dombi^e, György Eigner^c, Olga Kosheleva^a and Vladik Kreinovich^a

^aUniv. of Texas at El Paso, USA; ^bUniv. of Applied Sciences, Germany; ^cÓbuda Univ., Hungary; ^dUniv. of Stuttgart, Germany; ^eUniv. of Szeged, Hungary jcurenda@utep.edu,orsolya.csiszar@nik.uni-obuda.hu,gabor. csiszar@mp.imw.uni-stuttgart.de,dombi@inf.u-szeged.hu,

eigner.gyorgy@nik.uni-obuda.hu, {olgak,vladik}@utep.edu A recent book provide examples that a new class

of probability distributions and membership functions – called kappa-regression distributions and membership functions – leads to better data processing results than using previously known classes. In this paper, we provide a theoretical explanation for this empirical success – namely, we show that these distributions are the only ones that satisfy reasonable invariance requirements.

In search of a precise estimator based on imprecise data

Przemysław Grzegorzewski a,b and Joanna Goławska c

^aSystems Research Institute PAS, Poland; ^bWarszaw University of Technology, Poland; ^cUniversity of Technology, Poland

pgrzeg@ibspan.waw.pl,j.k.golawska@gmail.com

Statistics with interval-valued data are getting less interest from practitioners than it really deserves. This is partly because the solutions it offers are often too conservative and hence do not fully meet the expectations of potential users. Thus it is necessary to develop methods which, despite imprecise input data, will lead to more precise final statistical decisions. In the paper we discuss several refinement-oriented methods that may be useful in estimation based on interval-valued data.

Epistemic bootstrap for fuzzy data

Przemysław Grzegorzewski a,b and Maciej Romaniuk a,c

^aSystems Research Institute PAS, Poland; ^bWarszaw University of Technology, Poland; ^cWarsaw School of Information Technology, Poland

{pgrzeg,mroman}@ibspan.waw.pl

Fuzzy data applied for modeling imprecise observations cause many problems in statistical reasoning and data analysis. To handle better such observations a new bootstrap technique designed for epistemic fuzzy data is proposed. Our new method is conceptually simple and is not hard computationally. Some simulation results reported in the paper show that the proposed new type of the bootstrap may increase the effectiveness of statistical inferential procedures used so far. Although these results are rather preliminary, they indicate that the epistemic bootstrap might be useful in different fields which is a good prognostic for further research.

fIRTree: An Item Response Theory modeling of fuzzy rating data

Antonio Calcagni

University of Padova, Italy

antonio.calcagni@unipd.it

In this contribution we describe a novel procedure to represent uncertainty in rating scales in terms of fuzzy numbers. Following the rationale of fuzzy conversion scale, we adopted a two-step procedure based on a psychometric model (i.e., Item Response Theory-based tree) to represent the process of answer survey questions. This provides a coherent context where fuzzy numbers, and the related fuzziness, can be interpreted in terms of decision uncertainty that usually affects the rater's response process. We reported results from a simulation study and an empirical application to highlight the characteristics and properties of the proposed approach.

Interactive Decision Making for Multiobjective Bimatrix Games with Fuzzy Payoffs Based on Possibility Measure

HITOSHI YANO^a AND ICHIRO NISHIZAKI^b

^aNagoya City University, Japan; ^bHiroshima University, Japan

yano@hum.nagoya-cu.ac.jp,nisizaki@hiroshima-u.ac.jp

In this paper, we propose an interactive decision making method for multiobjectve bimatrix games with fuzzy payoffs. Using possibility measure and reference membership values, an equilibrium solution concept is introduced. To circumvent computational difficulties to obtain such a solution, equilibrium conditions in the membership function space are replaced into equilibrium conditions in the expected payoff space. Under the assumption that a player can estimate the opponent player's reference membership values, the interactive algorithm is proposed to obtain a satisfactory solution of the player from among an equilibrium solution set by updating the reference membership values. A numerical example illustrates interactive processes under a hypothetical player to show the efficiency of the proposed method

Against Artificial Complexification: Crisp vs. Fuzzy Information in the TOPSIS Method

DAVID PELTA, MARÍA T. LAMATA, JOSÉ L. VERDE-GAY, CARLOS CRUZ AND ANA SALAS

Universidad de Granada, Spain

{dpelta,mtl,verdegay,carloscruz}@ugr.es,anasalasurbano@gmail.com

The question of whether the use of crisp or fuzzy input information in the TOPSIS method produces a different ranking is explored. Using a basic representation of fuzziness through triangular fuzzy numbers, a set of randomly generated fuzzy and crisp multicriteria decision problems are solved. Then, the corresponding rankings are compared and variations in the top alternative are studied. The results show that changes in the top alternative are minor. This situation, coupled with the fact that the "true" ranking is unknown and that more complex models of "fuzzy" information require a huge amount of precise information from the decision maker side, raise the discussion of whether in this specific context a "complexification" of the input data makes sense.

Fuzzy equivalences and aggregation functions in decision-making problems

URSZULA BENTKOWSKA AND ANNA KRÓL

University of Rzeszów, Poland

{ududziak,annakrol}@ur.edu.pl

In this contribution we examine decision making problems based on fuzzy sets. We study the performance of diverse families of fuzzy equivalences, such as Fodor-Roubens equivalences [1], weak, semi and alphaequivalences [2], and restricted equivalences [3] in decision making algorithms, where vagueness and ambiguity of expert judgments may appear due to the fact that humans cannot precisely describe a judgement [4]. We consider also diverse families of aggregation functions [5] to aggregate the individual scores of decision makers.

For example, we discuss a modified Fuzzy Delphi Method (FDM) with fuzzy equivalences and diverse aggregation functions involved. We compare the performance of the newly proposed approaches of our study with the existing FDM [6-10].

References:

- Fodor, J., Roubens, M., Fuzzy preference modelling and multicriteria decision Support, Kluwer, Dordrecht, 1994.
- [2] Bentkowska U., Król A., Fuzzy alpha-Cequivalences, Fuzzy Sets Syst. 360 (2019), 49-64.
- [3] Bustince H., Barrenechea E., Pagola M., Image thresholding using restricted equivalence functions and maximizing the measures of similarity, Fuzzy Sets Syst. 158 (2007), 496-516.
- [4] Pedrycz W., Ekel P., Parreiras R., Fuzzy Multicriteria Decision-Making: Models, Methods and Applications, Wiley, 2010.
- [5] Calvo T., Kolesárová A., Komorníková M., Mesiar R., Aggregation operators: Properties, classes and

construction methods, in: T. Calvo et al. (Eds.), Aggregation Operators, Physica-Verlag, Heildelberg, 2002, 3-104.

- [6] Murray, T. J., Pipino, L. L., Van Gigch, J. P., A pilot study of fuzzy set modification of delphi, Hum. Syst. Management 5 (1985), 76-80.
- [7] Kuo, Y. F., Chen, P. C., Constructing performance appraisal indicators for mobility of the service industries using Fuzzy Delphi Method, Expert Syst. Appl. 35 (2008), 1930-1939.
- [8] Lee, T. H., Hsieh, H. P., Indicators of sustainable tourism: a case study from a Taiwan's wetland. Ecol. Indic. 67 (2016), 779-787.
- [9] Dawood, K. A., Sharif, K. Y., Ghani, A. A., Zulzalil, H., Zaidan, A., Zaidan, B., Towards a unified criteria model for usability evaluation in the context of open source software based on a Fuzzy Delphi Method, Information and Software Technology, 130 (2020), 106453.
- [10] Abdulkareem, K. H., Arbaiy, N., Zaidan, A. A., Zaidan, B. B., Albahri, O. S., Alsalem, M. A., Salih, M. M., A new standardisation and selection framework for real-time image dehazing algorithms from multi-foggy scenes based on fuzzy Delphi and hybrid multi-criteria decision analysis methods, Neural Comput. Appl. 33 (12), 2021.

A Granular Consensus Model Based on Intuitionistic Reciprocal Preference Relations and Minimum Adjustment for Multi-Criteria Group Decision Making

Francisco Javier Cabrerizo, José Ramón Trillo, Juan Antonio Morente-Molinera, Sergio Alonso and Enrique Herrera-Viedma

University of Granada, Spain

cabrerizo@decsai.ugr.es,jrtrillo@ugr.es,jamoren@decsai. ugr.es,zerjioi@ugr.es,viedma@decsai.ugr.es

When a group of individuals try to collectively make a decision, it is important that all of them accept the decision adopted. It means, to improve consensus, some adjustments could be inevitably performed to the initial assessments given by the individuals. To do it, several models have been recently developed from the viewpoint of the granular computing paradigm. However, the models dealing with intuitionistic reciprocal preference relations do not consider that the modified assessments could be very different from the initial ones. The aim of this work is to develop a model based on the granular computing paradigm that tries to increase the consensus at the same time that tries to reduce the dissimilarity between the original assessments and the adjusted ones. In addition to it, this model is able to deal with multicriteria group decision making problems.

Generalized Peterson's syllogisms with the quantifier "At least several (a few; a little)"

Petra Murinová and Vilém Novák

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{petra.murinova,vilem.novak}@osu.cz

In this article, we follow up on previous publications in which we studied generalized Peterson's syllogisms. The main objective of this paper is to define a new intermediate quantifier "At least <Several, A few, A little>" and analyze new forms of valid syllogisms.

On Modelling of Generalized Peterson's Syllogisms with More Premises

Karel Fiala, Veronika Červeňová and Petra Murinová

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{karel.fiala, veronika.cervenova, petra.murinova}@osu.cz

This article aims to continue the analysis of generalized Peterson's syllogisms with more premises. Namely, we use the theory of intermediate quantifiers, which provides the mathematical interpretation of natural language expressions indicating the amount or quantity of objects, such as "Almost all", "Several" etc. In the second part of this paper, we propose an algorithm for the computation of truth degrees of expressions containing such quantifiers and verify the validity/invalidity of several syllogisms.

Generalized Peterson's Rules in Fuzzy Natural Logic

Petra Murinová, Viktor Pavliska and Michal Burda

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{petra.murinova,viktor.pavliska,michal.burda}@osu.cz

In real world, interpretation of natural data using a natural language is very popular. In our previous papers, we proposed a mathematical formal system and introduced mathematical definitions of generalized intermediate quantifiers. We suggested a theory of syllogistic reasoning based on fuzzy natural language and analyzed natural data using fuzzy association rules.

The main objective of this paper is to continue the study of generalized Peterson's syllogisms and to formally define Peterson's rules of distributivity, quantity and quality. While past results were based on mathematical definitions of generalized quantifiers the idea of this article is to take advantage of the position of quantifiers within graded Peterson's square of opposition.

An Overview of Graded Structures of Opposition with Intermediate Quantifiers

Petra Murinová

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

petra.murinova@osu.cz

The paper is focused on an overview of graded structures of opposition with generalized intermediate quantifiers. This article focuses mainly on achieving two goals. Firstly, classical structures of opposition (square, hexagon, cube) are introduced. Then, graded extensions of mentioned structures are constructed using linguistic expressions of natural language.

Qualitative capacities and their informational comparison

Didier Dubois^a, Faux Francis^a, Henri Prade^a and Agnès Rico^b

^aIRIT, CNRS & Université de Toulouse, France; ^bERIC & Université de Lyon, France

{dubois,faux,prade}@irit.fr,agnes.rico@univ-lyon1.fr

Capacities are monotonically increasing set functions that generalize probability and possibility measures. They are qualitative when their range on a finite linearly ordered scale. This paper pursues a parallel between qualitative capacities and the quantitative setting of belief functions. The qualitative setting appears to be as rich as the quantitative one, but qualitative counterparts of belief function notions are sometimes misleading because they may not have the same meaning as in the quantitative case. The paper especially focuses on the comparison of qualitative capacities in terms of information content. Various information orderings are studied, including one based on a counterpart of Dempster rule of combination.

A fuzzy order for graphs based on the continuous entropy of Gaussian Markov Random Fields

JUAN BAZ, IRENE DÍAZ, SUSANA MONTES AND RAÚL Pérez-Fernández

University of Oviedo, Spain

{bazjuan, sirene, montes, perezfernandez}@uniovi.es

Gaussian Markov Random Fields over graphs have been widely used in the context of both theoretical and applied Statistics. In this paper, we study the influence of the graph on the continuous entropy of the distribution. In particular, since the continuous entropy is highly dependant on the correlations between adjacent nodes in the graph, we consider the particular case of Gaussian Markov Random Fields with uniform correlation, i.e., Gaussian Markov Random Fields in which such correlations are equal. We define a partial order relation on the set of graphs that orders the graphs according to their contribution to the continuous entropy. We also present a graded version of this order relation that allows to compare incomparable graphs with respect to the original order relation. Finally, an example for the illustration of the graded order relation is provided.

Conditional interval valued probability and martingale convergence theorem

KATARINA ČUNDERLÍKOVÁ

Slovak Academy of Sciences, Slovakia

cunderlikova.lendelova@gmail.com

The aim of this contribution is to define a conditional probability for interval valued events. We show the connection between conditional probability for interval valued events and the conditional probability for intuitionistic fuzzy events, too. We formulate the properties of conditional probability for interval valued events. We prove a modification of martingale convergence theorem for conditional probability defined on a family of interval valued events, too.

Quantile based summation of random variables

KADIR EMIR, DAVID KRUML, JAN PASEKA AND IVETA SELINGEROVÁ

Masaryk University, Czech Republic

{emir,kruml,paseka,selingerova}@math.muni.cz

A simplified calculus for aggregation of random variables is derived. The calculus provides a fast and simple estimation of a given quantile. It can be applied for testing of desired reliability of a production plan.

Some categorical equivalences for Nelson algebras with consistency operators

FRANCESC ESTEVA^a, Aldo Figallo-Orellano^{b,c}, Tommaso Flaminio^a and Lluis Godo^a

^aArtificial Intelligence Research Institute (IIIA) - CSIC, Spain; ^bUniversidad Nacional del Sur, Argentina; ^cUniversity of Campinas, Brazil

{esteva,tommaso,godo}@iiia.csic.es,aldofigallo@gmail.com

The aim of this paper is to present categorical equivalences involving Nelson algebras with a consistency operator. These algebraic structures are the algebraic semantics of a paraconsistent logic, actually a logic of formal inconsistency, based on Nelson logic, also known as constructive logic with strong negation. In particular, we will extend a well-known relationship between Nelson algebras/lattices and Heyting algebras with a boolean filter to these expanded structures in terms of categorical equivalences.

Propositional Dynamic Logic over Finite Łukasiewicz Chains

Igor Sedlár

Czech Academy of Sciences, Czechia igor.sedlar@gmail.com

Propositional Dynamic Logic, PDL, is a well known modal logic for reasoning about complex actions. We study graded generalizations of PDL based on relational models where satisfaction of formulas in states and accessibility between states via action execution are both seen as graded notions, evaluated in a finite Łukasiewicz chain. For each natural number n > 1, the logic PDL_n is obtained using the n-element Łukasiewicz chain, PDL being equivalent to PDL₂. These graded dynamic log-ics can be applied in formalizing reasoning about actions specified by graded predicates, reasoning about costs of actions, and as a framework for certain graded description logics with transitive closure of roles. Generalizing techniques used in the case of PDL we obtain completeness and decidability results for all PDL_n . A generalization of Pratt's exponential-time algorithm for checking validity of formulas is given and EXPTIME-hardness of each PDL_n validity problem is established by embedding PDL into PDL_n .

Approaching the square of oppositions in terms of the f-indexes of inclusion and contradiction

NICOLÁS MADRID AND MANUEL OJEDA-ACIEGO

Universidad de Málaga, Spain

{nicolas.madrid,aciego}@uma.es

We continue analyzing the properties of f-inclusion and f-contradiction, and provide an alternative interpretation of the square of opposition.

On Preservation of Residuated Lattice Properties for Partial Algebras

Nhung Cao and Martin Štěpnička

University of Ostrava. Czech Republic

{nhung.cao,martin.stepnicka}@osu.cz

This paper concentrates on investigating the preservation of the axioms and essential properties of residuated lattices in partial fuzzy set theory. We consider seven most-known partial algebras dealing with undefined values such as the Bochvar, Bochvar external, Sobocinski, McCarthy, Nelson, Kleene, Lukasiewicz, and additional, two recent ones, namely the Lower estimation algebra and the Dragonfly algebra. We provide the sketch of proofs in details for the preservation of considered axioms and properties in these algebras. The paper concludes with the tables summarizing the results, which visibly show how close is a partial algebra to a residuated lattice.

A comparative study of LDA and FLSA for Violence Risk Assessment

EMIL RIJCKEN^{a,b}, UZAY KAYMAK^a, KALLIOPI ZERVANOU^a, PABLO MOSTEIRO^b, MARCO SPRUIT^{b,c} AND FLOORTJE SCHEEPERS^d

^aEindhoven University of Technology, the Netherlands; ^bUniversity of Utrecht, the Netherlands; ^cLeiden University, the Netherlands; ^dUniversity Medical Center Utrecht, the Netherlands

{e.f.g.rijcken,u.kaymak,k.zervanou}@tue.nl,p.mosteiro@uu.
nl,m.r.spruit@lumc.nl,f.e.scheepers-2@umcutrecht.nl

Inpatient violence at psychiatry departments is a common and severe problem. Typical adverse reactions that the professionals who are victims of violent behaviour face include emotional reactions, symptoms of post-traumatic stress disorder, and a negative impact on work functioning. It is therefore important to be able to assess the risk of a patient for showing violent behaviour and to take precautionary measures. Currently, questionnaires are filled out to predict the likelihood of patients becoming violent. Filling out these forms is timeconsuming and partly subjective. However, automated machine-learning approaches based on existing patient information could overcome the time burden and help make more objective predictions. Various automated approaches utilizing clinical notes in the electronic health record allow more accurate predictions than the questionnaires [1] [2]. However, an intuitive understanding of these models' inner workings is missing as the clinical notes are represented numerically by highly dimensional dense matrices with unknown semantic meaning.

A more intuitive and potentially interpretable approach is topic modeling, where clinical notes can be represented as a collection of topics. To do so, a topic model is trained on all the written notes to find k topics. Each topic consists of the n most likely words associated with that topic, along with weights for each word. After training the topic model, all the documents associated with one patient can be represented by a k-length vector. The assumption is that if the generated topics are well interpretable by humans, the model's decision making may be more explainable.

In this work, we compare the predictive performance offered by the topic modelling techniques the topic models Latent Dirichlet Allocation (LDA) [3] and Fuzzy Latent Semantic Analysis (FLSA) [4] in relation to violence risk estimation. LDA is the most common topic model. Yet, recent experimental results suggest that FLSA might outperform LDA as a representation technique to make predictions. For this purpose, we study data from a large psychiatric department in the Netherlands. In our data set, we have merged all the notes between 28 days before, and one day after admission for each patient. This results in 4280 texts, with an average length of 1481 words per text.

Our results indicate that while LDA topics lead to better predictions than FLSA topics, the topics found are not intuitive in both cases. We study why this is the case and propose methods to obtain more intuitive topic models.

References:

- Menger, V., Scheepers, F., & Spruit, M. (2018). Comparing deep learning and classical machine learning approaches for predicting inpatient violence incidents from clinical text. Applied Sciences, 8(6), 981.
- [2] Mosteiro, P., Rijcken, E., Zervanou, K., Kaymak, U., Scheepers, F., & Spruit, M. (2021). Machine Learning for Violence Risk Assessment Using Dutch Clinical Notes. Journal of Artificial Intelligence for Medical Sciences.
- [3] Blei, D. M., Ng, A. Y., & Jordan, M. I. (2003).

Latent dirichlet allocation. the Journal of machine Learning research, 3, 993-1022.

[4] Karami, A., Gangopadhyay, A., Zhou, B., & Kharrazi, H. (2018). Fuzzy approach topic discovery in health and medical corpora. International Journal of Fuzzy Systems, 20(4), 1334-1345.

CG2A: Conceptual Graphs Generation Algorithm

Adam Faci^{a,b}, Marie-Jeanne Lesot^a and Claire Laudy^b

^aSorbonne Université, France; ^bLRASC, Thales, France {adam.faci,marie-jeanne.lesot}@lip6.fr,claire.laudy@ thalesgroup.com

Conceptual Graphs (CGs) are a formalism to represent knowledge. The production of CG benchmarks is currently a crucial need in the community to validate algorithms. This paper proposes CG2A, an algorithm to build synthetic CGs exploiting most of their expressivity. CG2A takes as input constraints that constitute ontological knowledge including a vocabulary and a set of CGs with some label variables, called γ -CGs, as components of the generated CGs. Extensions also enable the automatic generation of the set of γ -CGs and vocabulary to ease the database generation and increase variability.

A Sentiment-Based Author Verification Model Against Social Media Fraud

Khodor Hammoud, Salima Benbernou and Mourad Ouziri

Université de Paris, France

khodor.hammoud@etu.u-paris:fr,{salima.benbernou,mourad. ouziri}@u-paris.fr

The widespread and capability of Iot devices have made them a primary enabler for online fraud and fake authorship on social media. We present a novel approach, which uses sentiment analysis, to solve the problem of author verification in short text. We perform experimentation with our model on tweets, and show that it yields promising results.

Data Fusion in Question Answering Systems over Multiple-Knowledge Bases

NHUAN D. TO^{*a,b*} AND MAREK Z. REFORMAT^{*a,c*}

^aUniversity of Alberta, Canada; ^bNam Dinh University of Technology Education, Vietnam; ^cUniversity of Social Sciences, Poland

{nhuan,reformat}@ualberta.ca

The additional ability to span over multiple Knowledge Bases would further increase the usefulness and potentially comprehensiveness of the system's responses. Multiple different Knowledge Bases, as much as they can complement each other regarding the lack of specific information, quite often contain inconsistent pieces of information. This makes data fusing a difficult task.

In this paper, we propose a methodology for fusing data retrieved from multiple different Knowledge Bases that use different naming schemas. It also contains a procedure for determining degrees of trustworthiness in the Bases. These degrees are included in the data fusion process.

Classification Method of Image Feature Matching Using Naive Bayes Classifier

JIN YONG KIM, EUN KYEONG KIM, BAEKCHEON KIM, DAEKEON HA AND SUNGSHIN KIM

Pusan National University, Korea

{skes1234,kimeunkyeong,1001000,gkeorjs136,sskim}@pusan.ac.kr

Studies using image feature are required a sophisticated classification technique of the matching because the accuracy of the matching determines the performance of the entire algorithm. However, since the factors associated with the accuracy of the matching are limited, there are still many challenges to the classification of the matching. We selected and defined three factors involved in the accuracy of matching to improve traditional method, which rely on a single factor, and used Naive Bayes Classifier to classify the true or false of the matching using the factors. Moreover, we statistically analyzed the values that each factor has when matching is true or false to improve the Naive Bayes Classifier's performance. To verify the proposed method's performance, we compared it with the traditional method using benchmark datasets (Heinly dataset, VGG dataset) where homography is provided as ground truth. As a result of performance evaluation and comparison experiment, the proposed method derived higher precision, recall, and F1 scores than the traditional method.

Distance transformations based on aggregation functions

SARA IGLESIAS- $\operatorname{Rey}^{a,b}$, Bernard De Baets^c and Carlos Lopez-Molina^{a,b,c}

^aNavarraBiomed, Complejo Hospitalario de Navarra, Spain; ^bUniversidad Pública de Navarra, Spain; ^cGhent University, Belgium

sara.iglesias@unavarra.es,bernard.debaets@ugent.be, carlos.lopez@unavarra.es

Distance transforms of images are alternative representations of binary images in which the value of each pixel is the distance to the closest featured (1-valued) pixel in the original image [1]. Hence, they are real-valued representations of the distribution and topology of the featured regions in a binary image. Image transforms have been widely used and studied in the computer vision literature, either using the original formulation or some adaptation: signed distance transforms, generalised distance transforms, power distance transforms [2], stochastic distance transforms [3], etc. One of the problems of distance transformations is

One of the problems of distance transformations is their excessive sensitivity to the presence of noise, imprecisions and subtle displacements of objects in the binary images. This sensitivity is strongly linked to the fact that the value of a distance transform, at each pixel, is exclusively dependent upon one single featured pixel in the binary image (the closest one). This has been frequently pointed out in literature, but also ignored in most practical applications.

This work presents a generalisation of distance transformations that uses aggregation functions to overcome the sensitivity to spurious objects. With this generalisation, we seek to relate the properties of aggregation functions and the characteristics of the resulting distance transforms, hence producing a solid and meaningful framework that is at the same time useful, sensible and reliable.

References:

- [1] Gunilla Borgefors. Distance transformations in digital images. Computer Vision, Graphics, and Image Processing, 34(3):344–371, 1986.
- [2] Dominique Brunet and David Sills. A generalized distance transform: Theory and applications to weather analysis and forecasting. IEEE Trans. on

Geoscience and Remote Sensing, 55(3):1752–1764, 2016.

[3] Johan Ofverstedt, Joakim Lindblad, and Nataša Sladoje. Stochastic distance transform: Theory, algorithms and applications. Journal of Mathematical Imaging and Vision, 62(5):751–769, 2020.

Feature-based identification of Tau protein in neural tissue

FELIPE ANTUNES-SANTOS a,b,c , CARLOS LOPEZ-MOLINA a,b,c , MAITE IRIARTE c and BERNARD DE BAETS b

^aUniversidad Pública de Navarra, Spain; ^bGhent University, Belgium; ^cNavarraBiomed, Complejo Hospitalario de Navarra, Spain

{felipe.antunes,carlos.lopez}@unavarra.es,tmendioi@ navarra.es,bernard.debaets@ugent.be

Neurodegenerative Diseases (NDs) are disorders that are mainly characterized by the gradual degeneration of nervous-system-related components, like neurons or neuroglias. Among the different research lines in NDs, a highly relevant one is the neuropathological analysis of tissues, in an attempt to model the neurodegeneration processes and to identify biomarkers for each disease. This analysis is tailored for each type of image and ND but often consists of the analysis of images of ND-affected areas from in vitro, ex-vivo, or postmortem tissues, where Regions of Interest (ROI) are detected and processed [1]. Image-based neuropathological analysis is normally performed by human expert operators, which perform interpretations of ND-affected neural tissue and deliver a quantification of different facts (presence of a certain protein, a number of certain types of objects/cells, etc.). This process is problematic for two different reasons. Firstly, because it is time-intensive, effectively limiting the reach of an experiment due to the restrictions in the manpower devoted to the task. Secondly, because human judgment is hardly reproducible, and might be inconsistent with other human operators, or even with the same human operator at a different time. However, the automation of the process involves a number of problems. For example, the task of de-tecting and quantifying certain facts in the images is hardly defined, since it is performed by a human expert; this critically hampers the creation of automated detection methods. Also, neuropathologists tend not to accept the results by automated analysis unless the reasoning process that led to them is fully auditable and understandable [2, 3]. In this work, we present a fullyauditable system for the measurement and quantification of the presence of tau protein in neural tissue affected by Progressive Supranuclear Palsy (PSP). Our method uses a series of color and texture descriptors, which are further combined with aggregation functions to produce interpretable descriptors of the different objects in the images. Such descriptors are used to discriminate areas affected by tau protein, which subsequently lead to a sensible and reliable quantification of the presence of such protein. Our proposal does not only intend to incorporate expert knowledge in the definition, extraction, and combination of descriptors, it is also able to fully characterize, in semantic terms, the reasons why the certain region was classified as either tau-affected or tau-free. In this manner, the process is not only fully automated but also fully explainable, which can help overcome potential insecurities in the replacement of human experts by knowledge-based systems.

Acknowledgement: The authors gratefully acknowledge the financial support of the Spanish Ministry of Science (Project PID2019-108392GB-I00 AEI/FEDER, UE), and the funding from the European Unions H2020 research and innovation programme under Marie

Sklodowska-Curie Grant Agreement Number 801586. References:

- [1] S. Shimizu, D. Hirose, H. Hatanaka, N. Takenoshita, Y. Kaneko, Y. Ogawa, H. Sakurai, and H. Hanyu, Role of neuroimaging as a biomarker for neurodegenerative diseases, Frontiers in neurology, vol. 9, p. 265, 2018.
- [2] M. A. Myszczynska, P. N. Ojamies, A. M. Lacoste, D. Neil, A. Saffari, R. Mead, G. M. Hautbergue, J. D. Holbrook, and L. Ferraiuolo, Applications of machine learning to diagnosis and treatment of neurodegenerative diseases, Nature Reviews Neurology, vol. 16, no. 8, pp. 440-456, 2020.
- [3] S. Berg, D. Kutra, T. Kroeger, C. N. Straehle, B. X. Kausler, C. Haubold, M. Schiegg, J. Ales, T. Beier, M. Rudy et al., Ilastik: interactive machine learning for (bio) image analysis, Nature Methods, vol. 16, no. 12, pp. 1226-1232, 2019.

Some Approaches Based on Interval-Valued Images and L-Fuzzy Mathematical Morphology for Segmenting Images Reconstructed from Noisy Sinograms

Peter Sussner^a, Lisbeth Corbacho Carazas^a and Eduardo Miqueles^b

^aUniversity of Campinas, Brazil; ^bBrazilian Synchrotron Light Laboratory, CNPEM, Brazil

{sussner,ra162526}@ime.unicamp.br,eduardo.miqueles@lnls.br

Two-dimensional image reconstruction from projections is a well known research field with different applications and using different sources, e.g., varying from medical imaging to a synchrotron laboratory. In the mathematical sense, we are looking for a two dimensional piecewise function with compact support for which a set of signals - the measurements, so called projections or sinograms - are known *a priori*. After solving the corresponding inverse problem using an appropriate numerical scheme, a collection of reconstructed (gray-scale) images are provided for the final user for further analysis. In practice, the sinogram is often affected by various source of noise which lead to artefacts in the reconstructed images.

In this paper, we first convert the resulting gray-scale image that can be viewed as an \mathbb{L} -fuzzy set, where \mathbb{L} is a finite chain, into an interval-valued image whose values are non-empty, closed intervals of \mathbb{L} , so as to express the uncertainty about its values. Subsequently, we apply four approaches of morphological image segmentation, all of which make use of the interval values of the image. Each of these approaches employs some type of morphological gradient and the watershed algorithm. We only consider transmission sinograms for this paper, as emission problems are beyond the scope of this paper.

Triangular Fuzzy Relational Products of Level Fuzzy Relations

NHUNG CAO AND MICHAL BURDA

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{nhung.cao,michal.burda}@osu.cz

This paper firstly aims at investigating distinct properties of the Bandler-Kohout subproduct and superproduct of level fuzzy relations or level relations. We show that these triangular products preserve several desirable properties similar to those valid for the compositions of standard fuzzy relations. Moreover, we provide the relationship between the fuzzy cut of the Bandler-Kohout products of fuzzy relations and the same products of the fuzzy cut of the same arguments. Secondly, we discuss the appropriateness of the use of the suggested products for the classification task. The positive impact of such products is demonstrated on a numerical example and the real application of the Dragonfly classification problem.

Sup-T Compositions of Partial Fuzzy Relations

LIBOR BĚHOUNEK AND MARTINA DAŇKOVÁ

University of Ostrava, Czech Republic

{libor.behounek|martina.dankova}@osu.cz

We present basic properties of the operation of sup-T composition of partial fuzzy relations, i.e., fuzzy relations defined on arbitrary subsets of the Cartesian square of the referential set. We show that for partial fuzzy relations, these properties are fairly similar to those for totally defined fuzzy relations. Furthermore, we show that the studied elementary properties of sup-T composition of partial fuzzy relations carry over to several composition-related operations on partial fuzzy relations and partial fuzzy sets, including the operations of image, preimage, and Cartesian product.

Consistency in Deducing Redundant Linguistic Fuzzy Rules

NHUNG CAO AND RADEK VALÁŠEK

Institute for Research and Applications of Fuzzy Modeling (IRAFM), University of Ostrava, Czechia

{nhung.cao,radek.valasek}@osu.cz

Reducing the redundant rules in a given system of fuzzy rules is always an important step towards the simplicity and clarity of the system. This contribution focuses on the redundancy of linguistic fuzzy rules that use evaluative linguistic expressions. The perception-based log-ical deduction inference method dealing with linguistic fuzzy rules plays a crucial role in inferring the redundant rules. We have recently generalized the existing criteria for detecting and removing the redundant rules in a given system. It is important to note that the elaboration of the redundancy criteria is initiated by identifying investigated pairs - the pairs of two rules in which one rule is suspected from redundancy corresponding to another one. In particular, given an investigated pair, the redundancy or non-redundancy of the rule which is suspected from redundancy can be inferred using established criteria. In this contribution, we apply the generalized criteria and theoretically show that there is a consistency in deducing the redundancy or non-redundancy of a certain rule when it belongs to different investigated pairs. The contribution concludes with an illustrative example.

Fuzzy Metrics for Solving MODM Problems

Olga Grigorenko

University of Latvia, Latvia

ol.grigorenko@gmail.com

This paper presents a solution approach for multiobjective linear programming problem. We consider MOLP problem where optimization of multiple, conflicting objective functions subject to constraints is concerned. We give also comments how to deal with FMOLP problem, where the parameters are imprecisely or ambiguously known to the experts. Fuzzy approach for solving MOLP problem is one of the techniques most frequently used in the literature. We propose to involve fuzzy metrics to describe the objective functions where in "classical" fuzzy approach the membership functions which illustrate how far the concrete point is from the solution of individual problem are studied.

On the use of computational perceptions as labeled datasets in machine learning: a first empirical approximation

Clemente Rubio-Manzano^{a,b}, Tomás Lermanda^b, Claudia Martínez-Araneda^c, Alejandra Segura-Navarrete^b and Christian Vidal-Castro^b

^aUniversity of Cadiz, Spain; ^bUniversity of the Bío-Bío, Chile; ^cUniversidad Catolica de la Santisima Concepcion, Chile

clemente.rubio@uca.es,{tlermands,cmartinez.ucsc}@gmail. com,{asegura,cvidal}@ubiobio.cl

In this paper, we show as computational perceptions can be employed as labeled datasets in order to train agents in computer games. The idea is to automatically create a correspondence between perceptions and movements by using computational perception networks and then teach it to the agents by using a decision tree. The result is a machine-imitative learning model able to mimic the human players. This approach is formally presented, a problem formulation based on the combination of linguistic descriptions of phenomena and classification is carried out. Additionally, we present a software architecture and explain each one of its modules. Finally, this architecture has been implemented and tested.

A Semi-Supervised Anomaly Detection Approach in Brain MRI Images including Alzheimer's Disease

JIN-BEOM KIM, NISHANT CHAUHAN AND BYUNG-JAE CHOI

Daegu University, South Korea

wlsqja623@naver.com,nishantsep1090@gmail.com,bjchoi@ daegu.ac.kr

Alzheimer's disease (AD) is one of the most common types of dementia, generally developed in elderly people. Alzheimer's infested brain shows conditions where neurons stop functioning, lose contact with other neurons and ultimately die. In medical imaging, magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) is used to produce detailed pictures of many organs, soft tissues, and bone using a strong magnetic field, radiofrequency, and a computer. MRI can detect brain abnormalities associated with the brain and can be used to predict and diagnose Alzheimer's disease. However, in many cases, MRI can only play a definite role in the diagnosis of Alzheimer's at an early For early AD diagnosis, many computational stage. methods have been developed. Recently, supervised and unsupervised learning have shown their utilization and amazing performance in the medical field. These algorithms can provide accurate computer-assisted diagnosis results when training samples are either large or small. Anomaly detection is defined as the recognition of an unnatural pattern that shows different properties from the rest of the data significantly. In this study, the analysis of Alzheimer's disease as an anomaly using the proposed model is presented. In this paper, we propose a semisupervised anomaly detection approach based on Gener-ative Adversarial Networks (GAN). In this approach, T1weighted MRI image data set is used from Alzheimer's Disease Neuroimaging Initiative (ADNI). The Proposed approach calculates the Z-score by calculating the error during training at the generator (reconstruction error, encoding error, and adversarial loss) and discriminator. Simulation results over ADNI data sets show the model efficacy and superiority over some previous state-of-theart approaches.

Multiple Criteria Decision Analysis Based on Ill-known Pairwise Comparison Data

Masahiro Inuiguchi and Shigeaki Innan

Osaka University, Japan

inuiguti@sys.es.osaka-u.ac.jp,innan@inulab.sys.es. osaka-u.ac.jp

The Analytic Hierarchy Process (AHP) is a useful tool for multiple criteria decision making. The decision maker is asked to provide pairwise comparison matrices showing the relative importance between alternatives and between criteria. Expressing the relative importance as a real number is frequently questioned because human evaluations are not very precise. Intervals and fuzzy numbers have been applied to express the relative importance. In many of those approaches, interval weights or fuzzy weights reflecting the vagueness of the decision maker's evaluation have been estimated by minimizing the deviations of their ratios from the intervals and fuzzy numbers of relative importance. The intervals and fuzzy numbers of relative importance have been treated only as targets.

In this paper, we assume that the decision maker's evaluations of criteria importance are vague and expressed by interval weights. We consider a case when components of a pairwise comparison matrix are given by twofold intervals, i.e., nested pairs of intervals. The inner and outer intervals of a twofold interval component can be seen as the core and support of a fuzzy number. However, our approach is different from the previous approaches in the interpretations of the inner and outer intervals of the twofold interval. The inner interval is interpreted as the minimum range of relative importance while the outer interval is interpreted as the maximum range of relative importance. As the relative importance corresponds to the ratio of two weights in the AHP and we assume interval weights, the (i, j) twofold interval component of the pairwise comparison matrix imposes the following constraints on interval weights $[l_i, u_i]$ and $[l_i, u_i]$ to be estimated: (1) the inner interval of the (i, j)component should be included in interval $[l_i/u_i, u_i/l_i]$, and (2) the outer interval of the (i, j) component should include interval $[l_i/u_j, u_i/l_j]$.

We investigate approaches to the decision analysis under a given pairwise comparison matrix with twofold interval components described above. For the sake of simplicity, we assume that the marginal utility values (scores) of alternatives in each criterion are given. As we estimate the set of appropriate normalized interval weight vectors representing decision maker's evaluations of criteria importance from the given pairwise compar-ison matrix with twofold interval components, we face three kinds of uncertainties: (a) the variety of the conceivable weight vector in the normalized interval weight vector, (b) the non-uniqueness of the normalized interval weight vector having a consistent interval pairwise comparison matrix, and (c) the multiplicity of the intervals satisfying two constraints given by a twofold interval. Treating those uncertainties appropriately, we investigate two methods for comparing alternatives.

The first method provides only a preorder. In this method, we compare alternatives pairwisely and acknowledge the preference of an alternative a1 to another alternative a2 when the holistic utility value of a1 is not less than that of a2 for all possible weight vectors. We show that this preference relation can be evaluated by solving a linear programming problem for each pair of alternatives. If the preference is acknowledged, it is most credible. However, for many pairs of alternatives, no preference is acknowledged.

The other method acknowledges the preference more actively. We calculate the worst holistic utility value for each alternative fixing the sum of centers of interval weights at a value. The fixed value is treated as a parameter and varied in the feasible region. As the normalized interval weight vector having a given consistent interval pairwise comparison becomes unique by specifying the sum of centers of interval weights, in this proposed method, the non-uniqueness is treated by the parameter while the other uncertainties are treated by the worstcase values. We obtain a function of the sum of center values showing the worst holistic utility value for each alternative. By comparing the functions, we obtain a weak order at a value of the sum of centers of interval weights. Namely, a parametric weak order is obtained and utilized for decision analysis.

A numerical example is given to illustrate the proposed approaches.

From MCDA to Fuzzy MCDA: Fuzzy Extensions of an MCDA Method and Their Distinctions

Alexander Radaev^a, Alexander Korobov^a, Boris Yatsalo^a and Luis Martínez^b

^aOIATE NRNU MEPHI, Russia; ^bUniversity of Jaen, Spain

alexander.radaev.19940gmail.co,{alexander.korobov.1993, yatsalo}@gmail.com,martin@ujaen.es

A fuzzy extension of a Multi-Criteria Decision Analysis (MCDA) method implies a choice of an approach to estimating corresponding functions of fuzzy variables and a method for ordering alternatives based on a ranking of fuzzy quantities.

Over the past three decades, various Fuzzy MCDA (FMCDA) models have been developed. At the same time, almost all FMCDA models are based on approximate computing functions of fuzzy numbers with the use of standard approaches to implementing arithmetic operations with triangular/trapezoidal fuzzy numbers, as well as the ranking of fuzzy numbers by the centroid index method (center of gravity).

This work aims at comparing different fuzzy extensions of an ordinary MCDA method. For this, three approaches to assessing functions of fuzzy numbers are considered: approximate computing, standard fuzzy arithmetic, and transformation methods along with four methods for ranking fuzzy numbers (two defuzzification methods - centroid index and integral of means, as well as their modifications, which are pairwise comparison ranking methods intended for ranking dependent fuzzy numbers (one of them is equivalent to Yuan's ranking method).

The contribution under presentation comprises the following:

- Different fuzzy extensions of classical MCDA methods TOPSIS and MAVT (correspondingly, FTOP-SIS and FMAVT) are introduced;
- FTOPSIS (FMAVT) models are used for exploring a real case study; it is demonstrated that different models can lead to a different ranking of alternatives;
- An algorithm for generating scenarios of FMCDA problems based on Monte Carlo simulation is suggested;
- Analysis of distinctions in ranking alternatives by different FTOPSIS and FMAVT models using Monte Carlo simulation is implemented;
- The level/significance of distinctions for pairs of FTOPSIS (FMAVT) models (for the values of generalized criteria) with the use of granulation of the output values are explored (based on the Square of Linguistic Distinctions).

It is demonstrated significant (and, in some cases, notable) distinctions in ordering alternatives by different FTOPSIS (FMAVT) models both for ranking and choice MCDA problematics. The significant/notable distinctions have the place for FTOPSIS (FMAVT) models, which differ: only by approaches for assessing functions of fuzzy numbers, by ranking methods, and both by computation approaches and ranking methods. According to in-depth analysis, the significant part of distinctions is out of the zone with negligible values of distinctions. The latter means that different models lead to different ranks of alternatives, their difference is significant/notable and cannot be explained by insignificant/negligible deviations of the values of generalized criteria in the uncertain/fuzzy environment.

Taking into account the level/significance of distinctions in ranking alternatives, the following natural question has the place: which of the FTOPSIS (FMAVT) models can be recommended for multicriteria decision analysis of the real case studies in the fuzzy environment?

The authors consider this study as important both from fundamental and applied points of view.

Measuring the environmental cost in the evaluation of metaheuristics

Pavel Novoa-Hernández^a, Amilkar Puris^b and David Pelta^c

^aUniversidad Católica del Norte, Chile; ^bUniversidad Técnica Estatal de Quevedo, Ecuador; ^cUniversidad de Granada, Spain

pavel.novoa@ucn.cl,apuris@uteq.edu.ec,dpelta@decsai.ugr. es

Several situations associated with the Sustainable Development Goals can be modeled as optimization problems that, under certain circumstances, can be solved with metaheuristics.

In this paper we focus in the environmental impact (carbon footprint) that running such techniques produces. Through the simulation of two typical scenarios in the context of evolutionary optimization, we aim to raise awareness about taking into account such impact when designing experiments. In our simulations we found that a) both, the characteristics of the problem and of the solver (metaheuristics) can significantly increase electricity consumption and carbon emissions; and b) running experiments in certain countries have a higher social cost than in others. We suggest some strategies for reducing the environmental impact when conducting experiments in this field.

A Comparative Analysis based on GIS and Fuzzy MCDM Approaches. Case Study: Offshore Wind Site Selection in the Gulf of Maine

JUAN MIGUEL SÁNCHEZ-LOZANO^a, Adela Ramos Escudero^b, Isabel Cristina Gil-García^c, M. Socorro García-Cascales^b and Ángel Molina-García^b

^aUniversity Centre of Defence at the Spanish Air Force Academy, MDE-UPCT, Spain; ^bUniversidad Politécnica de Cartagena, Spain; ^cDistance University of Madrid, Spain

juanmi.sanchez@cud.upct.es,adela.ramos@edu.upct.es, isabelcristina.gil@udima.es,{socorro.garcia,angel. molina}@upct.es

The site selection process to optimize renewable facilities has become a relevant issue, mainly due to the variability of such resources. Among the different solutions, Geographic Information Systems in combination with fuzzy logic and Multi-Criteria Decision Making approaches provide a consistent tools to solve these complex decision problems. Moreover, the versatility of GIS

software has led to the generation of spatial analysis extensions, such as the fuzzy membership tool transforming the input data into real numbers that belongs to the unit interval. In this work, a comparative study between fuzzy membership tool of ArcGIS software and a combination of the fuzzy MCDM methodologies (AHP-TOPSIS) is applied to optimize the offshore wind site selection. A case study based on the offshore wind resource in the Gulf of Maine is also included and discussed.

A Case Study of AutoML for Supervised Crash Severity Prediction

JUAN S. ANGARITA-ZAPATA^a, Gina Maestre-Gongora^b and Jenny Fajardo Calderín^a

^aUniversity of Deusto, Spain; ^bUniversidad Cooperativa de Colombia, Colombia

js.angarita@deusto.es,gina.maestre@campusucc.edu.co, fajardo.jenny@deusto.es

Traffic accidents are one of the leading causes of death around the world. One well-established strategy to deal with this public health issue is the design and deployment of road safety systems, which are in charge of predicting traffic crashes to promote safer roads. Increasing data availability has supported Machine learning (ML) to address the prediction of crashes and their severity. Transportation literature reports various methods for such purposes; however, there is no single method that achieves competitive results in all crash prediction problems. In this context, Automated machined learning (AutoML) arises as a suitable approach to automatically àddress the model selection problem in areas wherein specialized ML knowledge is not always available or affordable, such as road safety. AutoML has been successfully used in other areas; nevertheless, extensive analysis to determine their strengths and weaknesses has not been done in very diverse learning tasks, such as crash severity forecasting. Thus, this paper aims to examine to what extent AutoML can be competitive against ad hoc methods (Gradient Boosting, Gaussian Naive Bayes, k-Nearest Neighbors, Multilayer Perceptron, Random Forest) on crash severity prediction modeled from a supervised learning perspective. We test 3 state-of-the-art AutoML methods (Auto-Sklearn, TPOT, AutoGluon). Results show that AutoML can be considered a powerful approach to support the model selection problem in crash severity prediction.

A methodology for more sustainable agriculture through early crop frost forecasting

JOSÉ M. CADENAS, M. CARMEN GARRIDO AND RAQUEL MARTÍNEZ ESPAÑA

University of Murcia, Spain

{jcadenas,carmengarrido}@um.es,rmartinez@ucam.edu

Climate change is causing abrupt changes in temperature, which adds to earlier flowering of crops and possible crop failure due to negative temperatures at night. Antifrost techniques exist to save crops but they require natural and human resources which increase costs. Therefore the application of these techniques has to be as precise as possible. In order to facilitate the decision making process for the activate anti-frost techniques, e.g. sprinkler irrigation, the farmer needs an application that is freely available, simple to use and provides a quick and reliable prediction of the expected temperature in an immediate future. The application that provides this information must be available on readily available devices (e.g., a mobile phone). For the application to run on these devices it should have low requirements. For the design of this application, we propose a methodology that obtains small models, and provides it fast and accuracy. The methodology includes the creation and use of a decision model designed with an instance selection technique and including imprecise information and lagged attributes to respect the time series data and the nature of the information. A real case study is carried out to implement the proposed methodology using Nearest neighbour technique both instance selection and classification. The results show reduced models with an high accuracy which allows us to create a lightweight model that can be easily updated in a mobile application.
Abstracts of AGOP

Aggregation based on outliers

Anna Kolesárová and Radko Mesiar

STU in Bratislava, Slovakia

{anna.kolesarova,radko.mesiar}@stuba.sk

Inspired by the basic fuzzy connectives min(t-norm T_M) and max (t-conorm S_M), we in-troduce and study outliers-based extended aggregation functions. Simply said, A is an (a, b)-outliers-based extended aggregation function if for each arity $n \ge a + b$, its output values depend on the number a of minimal and b of maximal input values only. We focus on associative outliers-based extended aggregation functions, including t-norms, t-conorms, uninorms, nullnorms, as well as on outliers-based extended OWA operators and related outliers-based extended aggregation functions.

Continuous OWA operators

MARTIN KALINA

Slovak University of Technology, Slovakia

martin.kalina@stuba.sk

Discrete OWA operators introduced by Yager (1988) have been widely used and their theoretical as well as application aspects have been studied since their introduction. Some generalizations to continuous case have already been proposed. In this contribution we extend the approach by Jin et al. (2020).

On some generalizations of homogeneity of aggregation functions

Andrea Stupňanová^a and Yong Su^b

^aSlovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Slovakia; ^bSuzhou University of Science and Technology, China

andrea.stupnanova@stuba.sk,yongsu88@163.com

Positive homogeneity of aggregation functions is one of important properties reflecting the ratio scales in decision making. We recall, introduce and discuss some generalizations of this property, including khomogeneity, quasi-homogeneity and endpoint linearity.

New Classes of the Moderate Deviation Functions

JANA ŠPIRKOVÁ^a, HUMBERTO BUSTINCE^b, FRANCISCO JAVIER FERNANDEZ^b AND MIKEL SESMA-SARA^b

^aMatej Bel University in Banská Bystrica, Slovakia; ^bPublic University of Navarra, Spain

jana.spirkova@umb.sk,{bustince,fcojavier.fernandez,mikel. sesma}@unavarra.es

At present, in the field of aggregation of various input values, attention is focused on the construction of aggregation functions using other functions that can affect the resulting aggregated value. This resulting value should characterize the properties of the individual input values as accurately as possible.

Attention is also paid to aggregation using the socalled moderate deviation function. Using this function in aggregation ensures that all properties of aggregation functions are preserved. This work offers constructions of the moderate deviation functions using negations and automorphisms. The use of negation in the construction of the moderate deviation function extends to the symmetric interval [-1, 1], but also a general interval [a, b].

Some remarks on convolution of collection integrals

Adam Šeliga

Slovak University of Technology, Slovakia

adam.seliga@stuba.sk

In this paper, we revisit the definition of a convolution of aggregation functions and we will examine the convolution of collection integrals defined on a finite space. Also, we introduce the concept of a convolution and of a lower convolution for monotone measures and examine properties of these convolutions with respect to collection integrals. Some concluding remarks are added.

Expectation quadruplet based on fuzzy integrals

ZUZANA ONTKOVIČOVÁ AND JOZEF KISEĽÁK

Institute of Mathematics, Pavol Jozef Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia

zuzana.ontkovicova@student.upjs.sk,jozef.kiselak@upjs.sk

Expected value is one of the key concepts not only in probability theory, but also in economics, finance, or physics. It can be intuitively interpreted as a weighted average of the function with respect to the probability measure.

Assuming non-additive case (so fuzzy measures), expected value can be defined by a well-known Choquet integral with the use of decumulative distribution function. However, if non-negativity of input is no longer considered, non-additivity allows more possible ways of rearrangement of signed areas related to (de)cumulative distribution function. This insight together with duality establish main idea for fuzzy integral quadruplet [2], which includes two already known symmetric and asymmetric Choquet integrals and their complementary versions. The concept along with Lebesgue-Stieltjes integral allows us to introduce the notion of expectation quadruplet.

We study properties of all four integrals and highlight the fact that some of the basic ones need not hold in general. We also emphasize an alternative way of defining the quadruplet through the quantile function. We also give graphical interpretations, from which some of the integral properties can be easily seen, e.g. their mutual relations.

Moreover, inspired by [1], this concept can lead to more general ideas where planar Lebesgue measure can be replaced by a general fuzzy measure, which brings possible unexpected consequences.

References:

- Mesiar, Radko. Fuzzy Measures and Integration. Busefal 76, 48-52, 1998, https://projects.listic.univ-smb.fr/ busefal/papers/76.zip/76_08.pdf.
- [2] Ontkovičová, Zuzana; Kiseľák, Jozef; Hutník, Ondrej. On quadruplet of Choquet integrals. (manuscript submitted for publication), 2021.

Acknowledgement: This work was supported by the Slovak Research and Development Agency under the contract No. APVV-16-0337.

Generalization of interval-valued Sugeno integral

Ľubomíra Horanská^a, Zdenko Takáč^a and Humberto Bustince^b

^aSlovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Slovakia; ^bUniversidad Publica de Navarra, Spain

{lubomira.horanska,zdenko.takac}@stuba.sk,bustince@ unavarra.es

A useful tool for information fusion within universes where no structure other than an order is considered, for instance, in the qualitative approach to decision making and preference modeling, is the Sugeno integral [2]. It turns out that modifications of the Sugeno integral work better in some applications than the original Sugeno. To obtain a more flexible functional, Bardozzo et al. [1] proposed replacing the minimum and the maximum operators in the formula for the discrete Sugeno integral by some more general functions and successfully applied this modification in image processing. The interval-valued version of the Sugeno interval can

The interval-valued version of the Sugeno interval can be used for aggregating data with some uncertainty beyond represented by intervals. In our contribution we propose the same modification of the interval-valued Sugeno integral as Bardozzo's, acting in the universe of all closed subintervals of the unit interval equipped with the so-called admissible order. We investigate properties of this functional, starting with the question, when is it a well-defined function for all interval-valued fuzzy measures. Moreover, we study properties possessed by the standard Sugeno integral such as idempotency, internality, positive and min-homogeneity, monotonicity etc.

Acknowledgement: The support of the grants VEGA 1/0267/21 and TIN2016-77356-P(AEI/FEDER,UE) is kindly announced.

References:

- [1] F. Bardozzo, B. de la Osa, L. Horanská, J. Fumanal, M. delli Priscoli, L. Troiano, R. Tagliaferri, J. Fernandez, H. Bustince: Sugeno integral generalization applied to improve adaptive image binarization. Information Fusion 68, pp. 37–45, 2021.
- [2] M. Sugeno: Theory of fuzzy integrals and its applications, Ph.D. thesis, Tokyo Institute of Technology, 1974.

General Admissibly Ordered Intervalvalued Overlap Functions

TIAGO ASMUS^a, GRAÇALIZ DIMURO^b, JOSÉ ANTONIO SANZ^a, JONATA WIECZYNSKI^a, GIANCARLO LUCCA^b, EDUARDO BORGES^b AND HUMBERTO BUSTINCE^a

^aUniversidad Pública de Navarra, Spain; ^bUniversidade

Federal do Rio Grande, Brazil

{tiagoasmus,gracaliz}@gmail.com,joseantonio.sanz@ unavarra.es,jwieczynski@furg.br,giancarlo.lucca88@gmail. com,eduardoborges@furg.br,bustince@unavarra.es

Overlap functions are a class of aggregation functions that measure the overlapping degree between two values [1]. They have been successfully applied in several problems in which associativity is not required, such as classification and image processing. Some generalizations of overlap functions were proposed for them to be applied in problems with more than two classes, such as n-dimensional and general overlap functions, with the latter having less restrictive boundary conditions and presenting good behavior when applied in classifi-cation problems [2]. To measure the overlapping of in-terval data, interval-valued overlap functions were defined, and, later, they were also generalized in the form of n-dimensional and general interval-valued overlap functions [3]. However, those generalizations were defined taking into account one of the most used partial orders for intervals, the product order, which is not a total order. In order to apply some of those concepts in problems with interval data considering the use of admissible orders [4], which are total orders that refine the product order, n-dimensional admissibly ordered interval-valued overlap functions were recently introduced, proving to be suitable to be applied in classification problems in which intervals are employed to model uncertainty [5]. However, the sole construction method presented for this kind of function do not allow the use of the well-known lexicographical orders. Although this is not a serious problem, with the initial motivation to overcome this drawback, in this present work we combine the recent developed concepts on (n-dimensional, general) interval-valued overlap functions and admissible orders to introduce general admissibly ordered interval-valued overlap functions. We show that the resulting definition proved to be quite flexible and adaptable, allowing for the development of different construction methods, or even the composition of functions constructed through those methods, and different possibilities of admissible orders, including the lexicographical orders.

References:

- H. Bustince, J. Fernandez, R. Mesiar, J. Montero, R. Orduna, Overlap functions, Nonlinear Analysis: Theory, Methods & Applications 72 (3-4) (2010) 1488–1499.
- [2] L. De Miguel, D. Gómez, J. T. Rodríguez, J. Montero, H. Bustince, G. P. Dimuro, J. A. Sanz, General overlap functions, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 372 (2019) 81 – 96.
- [3] T. C. Asmus, G. P. Dimuro, B. Bedregal, J. A. Sanz, S. P. Jr., H. Bustince, General interval-valued overlap functions and interval-valued overlap indices, Information Sciences 527 (2020) 27–50.
- [4] H. Bustince, J. Fernandez, A. Kolesárová, R. Mesiar, Generation of linear orders for intervals by means of aggregation functions, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 220 (2013) 69 - 77.
- [5] T. C. Asmus, J. A. A. Sanz, G. Pereira Dimuro, B. Bedregal, J. Fernandez, H. Bustince, Ndimensional admissibly ordered interval-valued overlap functions and its influence in intervalvalued fuzzy rule-based classification systems, IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems (2021) 1–1 (early access).

On some functional equations related to alpha migrative t-conorms

Katarzyna Miś and MichałBaczyński

University of Silesia in Katowice, Poland

{katarzyna.mis,michal.baczynski}@us.edu.pl

In this contribution, we analyse in details the recently introduced definition of migrative t-conorms [1]. We also focus on some general functional equations, which might be obtained from such a notion. We concentrate on some particular well-known families of fuzzy implications and show solutions of those equations among this kind of fuzzy implication functions.

References:

 M. Baczynski, B. Jayaram, R. Mesiar (2020). Fuzzy implications: alpha migrativity and generalised laws of importation

A generalization of power-based implications

Michał
Baczyński^a, Wlodzimierz Fechner^b and Sebastia Massanet^c

^aFaculty of Science and Technology, University of Silesia in Katowice, Bankowa 14, 40-007, Katowice, Poland; ^bInstitute of Mathematics, Lodz University of Technology, Wolczanska 215, 90-924 Lodz, Poland; ^cDept. Mathematics and Computer Science, University of the Balearic Islands, E07122 Palma, Spain

michal.baczynski@us.edu.pl,wlodzimierz.fechner@p.lodz.pl, s.massanet@uib.es

The so-called family of T-power based implications has been introduced recently by using Zadeh's quantifiers modelled by powers of t-norms in its definition. Most of these operators satisfy the invariance with respect to powers of a continuous t-norm, an important property in approximate reasoning. When this family of fuzzy implication functions was characterized, the property $I(x, y) \cdot I(y, z) = I(x, z)$ in a concrete sub-domain played a key role. This property, which ensures that T-power based implications are unidimensional T'-preorders with T' the product t-norm, seems to be related to the invariance property. Therefore, the natural question of characterizing some classes of fuzzy implications with this property arises naturally. We provide such a characterization in a fairly general setting, generalizing earlier known results.

References:

- M. Baczynski, W. Fechner, S. Massanet, A Functional Equation Stemming from a Characterization of Power-based Implications, in: 2019 IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems (FUZZ-IEEE 2019), New Orleans, Louisiana, 2019, pp. 1-6.
- [2] M. Baczynski, B. Jayaram, Fuzzy Implications, Vol. 231 of Stud. Fuzziness Soft Comput., Springer, Berlin Heidelberg, 2008.
- [3] M. Baczynski, B. Jayaram, S. Massanet, J. Torrens, Fuzzy implications: Past, present, and future, in: J. Kacprzyk, W. Pedrycz (Eds.), Springer Handbook of Computational Intelligence, Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg, 2015, pp. 183-202.
- [4] S. Massanet, J. Recasens, J. Torrens, Fuzzy implication functions based on powers of continuous t-norms, Internat. J. Approx. Reason. 83 (2017) 265-279.
- [5] S. Massanet, J. Recasens, J. Torrens, Corrigendum to fuzzy implication functions based on powers of continuous t-norms [Int. J. Approx. Reason. 83 (2017) 265-279], Internat. J. Approx. Reason. 104 (2019) 144-147.
- [6] S. Massanet, J. Recasens, J. Torrens, Some characterizations of T-power based implications, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 359 (2019) 42-62.
- [7] S. Massanet, D. Ruiz-Aguilera, J. Torrens, Characterization of a class of fuzzy implication functions satisfying the law of importation with respect to a fixed uninorm - Part I, IEEE Trans. Fuzzy Syst. 26 (4) (2018) 1983-1994.
- [8] S. Massanet, J. Torrens, Characterization of fuzzy implication functions with a continuous natural negation satisfying the law of importation with a fixed t-norm, IEEE Trans. Fuzzy Syst. 25 (1) (2017) 100-113.
- W. Fechner, Sincov's inequalities on topological spaces., Publ. Math. Debrecen 96 (1-2) (2020) 63-76.

Acknowledgement: This work was supported by the National Science Centre, Poland, through Project Number 2015/19/B/ST6/03259. The work on this paper for S. Massanet was also supported by the Spanish Grant FEDER/Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Competitividad - AEI/TIN2016-75404-P.

An analysis of the invariance property with respect to powers of nilpotent tnorms on fuzzy implication functions

RAQUEL FERNANDEZ-PERALTA, SEBASTIA MASSANET AND ARNAU MIR

University of the Balearic Islands, Spain

r.fernandezperalta@outlook.es,{s.massanet,arnau.mir}@uib. es some boundary conditions. Since this definition is flexible enough we can define different families of fuzzy implication functions and additional properties that these operators may satisfy.

A relatively new additional property of fuzzy implication functions is the invariance with respect to powers of a certain t-norm. This property is interesting for approximate reasoning since it collects the idea that a fuzzy implication function which is used to model fuzzy conditionals in which the antecedent and the consequent are altered by the same linguistic modifier should provide the same truth value than the original fuzzy implication function.

In [1] the authors characterize all binary functions that are invariant with respect to a certain t-norm T, whether it is strict, nilpotent or, more generally, continuous. However, the characterization in the case when T is a nilpotent t-norm was not entirely correct. Thus, our first contribution is to correct that result and to present the family of fuzzy implication functions that are invariant with respect to the powers of a nilpotent t-norm, called nilpotent T-power invariant implications.

In [2] the family of all fuzzy implication functions that are invariant with respect to the powers of a certain strict t-norm was studied. We have carried out an analogous study but for nilpotent T-power invariant implications. More specifically, we study when this family satisfies the more common properties of fuzzy implication functions and we determine its intersection with the main families of fuzzy implication functions. Although one may expect that the study will be analogous to the case of strict t-norms, this family turns out to have quite different properties.

Acknowledgement: This work has been partially supported by the Spanish Grant FEDER/Ministerio de Economía, Industria y Competitividad - AEI/TIN2016-75404-P. Raquel Fernandez-Peralta benefits from the fellowship FPU18/05664 granted by the Spanish Ministry of Science, Innovation and Universities within the Training University Lecturers (FPU) program.

References:

- Massanet, S., Recasens, J., Torrens, J.: Some characterizations of T-power based implications. Fuzzy Sets and Systems 359, 42-62 (2019).
- Fernandez-Peralta, R., Massanet, S., Mir, A.: On strict T-power invariant implications: Properties and intersections. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, In press (2020). Doi=https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fss. 2020.09.003

On the preservation of some additional properties via the quadratic polynomial construction method of fuzzy implication functions

ISABEL AGUILÓ $^{a,b},$ SEBASTIA MASSANET a,b and Juan Vicente $\mathrm{Riera}^{a,b}$

^aUniversity of the Balearic Islands, Spain; ^bHealth Research Institute of the Balearic Islands, Spain

{isabel.aguilo,s.massanet,jvicente.riera}@uib.es

Following the extensively studied line of research of proposing new construction methods of fuzzy implication functions, recently a construction method based on a quadratic polynomial function and a given fuzzy implication function was proposed. The importance of this method relies on the fact that some additional properties are preserved from the original fuzzy implication function to the generated one for some quadratic polynomial functions. In this paper, the preservation of two pairs of additional properties under this method is deeply studied providing some quadratic construction methods with this behaviour.

It is well known that fuzzy implication functions are one of the main operators of fuzzy logic. A fuzzy implication function is defined by a binary function that fulfils the monotonicity with respect to the two variables and

New results on discrete implication functions

Sebastia Massanet, Marc Munar and Daniel Ruiz-Aguilera

Universitat de les Illes Balears, Spain

{s.massanet,marc.munar,daniel.ruiz}Quib.es

When dealing with situations which requires the use of fuzzy logic, the usual set of evaluation is the unit interval [0, 1]. However, in many usual situations totally ordered finite sets are more appropriate. For example, when evaluating the behaviour of a certain system with expert opinions, it is unavoidable to work with a finite scale as a reference, which we will denote as the set $L_n = \{0, 1, ..., n\}$. A well-known method is to convert the linguistic labels of L_n into values of [0, 1] dividing them by n; then, perform the necessary operations on [0,1] and finally return the obtained result to L_n [1]. Nevertheless, some of the desirable properties fulfilled by the fuzzy operators in [0,1] do not subsequently carry over to L_n . It is in this paper that we will study these drawbacks for the concrete case of fuzzy implication functions [2].

First of all, we prove that every discrete implication function comes from the discretisation of a continuous fuzzy implication function in [0, 1]. However, the properties of the implication in [0, 1] are not transferred in general to the discrete implication. This fact motivates the direct study of discrete implications. Indeed, we consider the operators I1(i, j) = c(n * I(i/n, j/n)) and I2(i, j) = f(n*I(i/n, j/n)), where c and f are the ceiling and floor function, respectively, and I is a fuzzy implication function on [0, 1]. We prove that both I1 and I2 are discrete implications, but not all properties are preserved. For example, considering I1, the left neutrality principle (NP) and the identity principle (IP) are transferred, but not the ordering principle (OP). Considering I2, (NP), (IP) and (OP) are transferred. The exchange principle (EP) is not generally transferred in either I1 or I2.

Acknowledgement: This work has been partially supported by the Spanish Grant FEDER/Ministerio de Economia, Industria y Competitividad - AEI/TIN2016-75404-P.

References:

- Klement E.P, Mesiar R, Pap E. (2000) Construction of t-norms. In "Triangular Norms". Pages 53-100. Springer Netherlands.
- [2] Baczynski M, Jayaram B, Massanet S, Torrens J. (2015) Fuzzy Implications: Past, Present and Future. In "Springer Handbook of Computational Intelligence". Pages 183-202. Springer Handbooks.

Fuzzy Relations and Monometrics: Some Correspondences

MEGHA GUPTA AND BALASUBRAMANIAM JAYARAM

Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad, India

ma16m18p100001@iith.ac.in,jbala@math.iith.ac.in

Fuzzy relations that are not T-transitive have not merited as much scrutiny as their T-transitive counterparts. Recently monometrics on a given betweenness set, or a B-set, has garnered a lot of attention, especially for their role in decision making and penalty based data aggregation. In this work, we show that from non strict T-transitive relations one can obtain both betweenness relations, satisfying various types of transitivities, and monometrics on them. In fact, it can be shown that the natural or canonical betweenness obtained from a given distance function can be seen as being obtained from an appropriate non strict T-transitive similarity relation. Further, a typical practical problem in this context is that of obtaining a monometric on a given B-set. Our investigations show that there exists a one-one correspondence between non strict T-transitive similarity relations and monometrics defined on the given B-set. This study, thus, shows the usefulness of non strict T-transitive fuzzy relations as much as their T-transitive counterparts.

An overview of honeycomb-based graph aggregation functions.

Grzegorz Moś

Faculty of Science and Technology, University of Silesia in Katowice, Bankowa 14, 40-007, Katowice, Poland grzegorz.mos@us.edu.pl

Structures that are based on honeycomb graphs appear in many scientific fields. Many chemical molecules contain such a structure. Some polymers consist of a hexagonal part in their repeating subunits or are made with such hexagons [1], [2]. Some regular benzenoid strips and their polynomial representation were presented [3], [4], [5]. There are many appearances of honeycombs in nature. They are widely used in material science and physics because of their properties [6]. The prevalence leads to the necessity of handling a vast amount of data. That indicates that the databases have to be greater and greater. Thus, optimization and aggregation methods are essential to possess and process such data.

An aggregation is a mapping that returns exactly one object from a given sequence of objects [7]. The important part of data aggregation is comparing the objects. It is well studied for numbers where there are many aggregation functions, for example, averages, minimum, maximum. Strings can be aggregated with a merge function or with a length function [8]. Hence, it is possible to aggregate any object. The main problem is to define the axioms with meaningful grounds. The idea has to have logical justification under-considered field, for example, average in statistics or minimum and maximum in fuzzy logic. Some axioms are expected to be satisfied by any aggregation function. The returned element should not be simpler than the simplest considered object. On the other hand, it should not be more complex than the most complex considered object. Moreover, associative, commutative, and monotone properties should be satisfied.

The main point of this work is to specify the grounds of the honeycomb-based graphs aggregation and explain such an approach. It is justified by given the most uncomplicated cases. The graphs based on a hexagon grid where every vertex belongs to at most two edges and exactly two vertices that belong to exactly one edge each are the most straightforward considered structures. Moreover, it is assumed that the graph is connected. Otherwise, it would be enough to treat a disconnected graph as a set of connected graphs. Furthermore, there are presented first examples of aggregating functions. The greatest common subset and the least set containing sets are adapted to graphs as a considered purpose. This is preceded by exploring current results from the bibliography, which has something in common with aggregate theory. The conclusion and future work are formulated at the end.

References:

- [1] Coleman, M. M. (2019). Fundamentals of Polymer Science: An introductory text. Routledge.
- [2] McCrum, N. G., Buckley, C. P., Bucknall, C. B., Bucknall, C. B., & Bucknall, C. B. (1997). Principles of polymer engineering. Oxford University Press, USA.
- [3] Langner, J., Witek, H. A., & Mos, G. (2018). Zhang-zhang polynomials of multiple zigzag chains. MATCH Commun. Math. Comput. Chem, 80(1), 245-265.

- [4] Witek, H. A., Langner, J., Moś, G., & Chou, C. P. (2017). Zhang–Zhang polynomials of regular 5–tier benzenoid strips. MATCH Commun. Math. Comput. Chem, 78(2), 487-504.
- [5] Witek, H. A., Moś, G., & Chou, C. P. (2015). Zhang-Zhang polynomials of regular 3-and 4-tier benzenoid strips. MATCH Commun. Math. Comput. Chem, 73(2), 427-442.
- [6] Wang, Z. (2019). Recent advances in novel metallic honeycomb structure. Composites Part B: Engineering, 166, 731-741.
- [7] Grabisch, M., Marichal, J. L., Mesiar, R., & Pap, E. (2009). Aggregation functions (No. 127). Cambridge University Press.
- [8] Gągolewski, M. (2015). Data fusion: theory, methods, and applications. Institute of Computer Science, Polish Academy of Scienceso.

Extreme points of polytopes of discrete copulas

ELISA PERRONE^{*a*} AND FABRIZIO DURANTE^{*b*}

^aEindhoven University of Technology, The Netherlands; ^bUniversità del Salento, Italy

e.perrone@tue.nl,fabrizio.durante@unisalento.it

Discrete copulas are useful tools in statistics to represent the joint distribution of discrete random vectors. Furthermore, they are fascinating mathematical objects that admit a representation as a convex polytope. In this work, we analyze the set of the extreme points of convex polytopes of discrete copulas. To this end, we recall wellknown results on the extreme points of the transportation polytopes. We focus on the general class of discrete copulas defined on arbitrary grid domains of the unit square, thereby identifying extremal discrete copulas in the general setting. Finally, we show that the characterization presented here generalizes previous work on the topic.

On a construction method of trivariate copulas

Claudio Ignazzi and Fabrizio Durante

Università del Salento, Italy

claudio.ignazzi@studenti.unisalento.it,fabrizio.durante@ unisalento.it

Starting with three bivariate copulas and some auxiliary univariate functions, we determine a construction method of trivariate copulas, which generalizes a class of copulas previously introduced by M. Úbeda-Flores (2005). Specifically, we provide a characterization of this class of 3-copulas and we discuss some of its properties. Various related examples of parametric and semiparametric families can be obtained, including generalizations of EFGM copulas.

The Borda Count as an initial threshold for Kemeny ranking aggregation

Noelia Rico, Camino Rodríguez-Vela, Raúl Pérez-Fernández and Irene Díaz

University of Oviedo, Spain

{noeliarico, crvela, perezfernandez, sirene}@uniovi.es

The need of establishing a consensus ranking from the preferences expressed by different voters arises in several contexts. The method proposed by Kemeny to this purpose is famously known due to its numerous fulfilled properties and intuitive interpretation, as it minimizes the number of pairwise comparisons in which the consensus ranking disagrees with the preferences given by the voters. Nevertheless, this method has a main drawback regarding its execution time, thus preventing its use in practice. There exist some other methods, such as the Borda Count, that can be computed in polynomial time, even though they do not fulfill as many intuitive properties as the Kemeny method. Here, we propose to use the Borda Count ranking as the initial solution of a Branchand-Bound algorithm for reducing the execution time of the Kemeny method. The presented experiments show that this approach leads to an improvement in execution time.

Combining classifiers with the intervalvalued Choquet integral

ZDENKO TAKÁČ^a, MIKEL URIZ^b, MIKEL GALAR^b, DANIEL PATERNAIN^b AND HUMBERTO BUSTINCE^b

^aSlovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Slovakia; ^bUniversidad Pública de Navarra, Spain

zdenko.takac@stuba.sk,{mikelxabier.uriz,mikel.galar, daniel.paternain,bustince}@unavarra.es

In [1] a new class of fusion functions on unit interval, called *d*-Choquet integrals, was introduced. In the proposed paper, we continue in this line of research and introduce the notion of d_G -Choquet integral in the interval setting. The d_G -Choquet integral generalizes the discrete Choquet integral [2] replacing, in the first place, the difference between inputs represented by closed subintervals of the unit interval by a dissimilarity function [3]; and we also replace the sum by more general appropriate function which was proposed to be consistent with the considered admissible order [4]. We show that par-ticular cases of d_G -Choquet integral are both the discrete Choquet integral and the d-Choquet integral. We define interval-valued fuzzy measures and we show how they can be used with $d_{\underline{Q}}$ -Choquet integrals to define an interval-valued discrete Choquet integral which is monotone with respect to admissible orders. We finally con-firm the validity of the proposed interval-valued Choquet integrals by means of an illustrative example in a classification problem.

References:

- Bustince, H., Mesiar, R., Fernandez, J., Galar, M., Paternain, D., Altalhi, A., Dimuro, G.P., Bedregal, B., Takáč, Z., d-Choquet integrals: Choquet integrals based on dissimilarities. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, doi: 10.1016/j.fss.2020.03.019 (2020), to appear.
- [2] Choquet, G., Theory of capacities. Annales de linstitut Fourier 5 (1953–1954) 131–295.
- [3] Bustince, H., Barrenechea, E., Pagola, M., Relationship between restricted dissimilarity functions, restricted equivalence functions and normal ENfunctions: Image thresholding invariant. Pattern Recognition Letters 29 (2008) 525–536.
- [4] Bustince, H., Fernandez, J., Kolesárová, A., Mesiar R., Generation of linear orders for intervals by means of aggregation functions. Fuzzy Sets and Systems. 220 (2013) 69–77.

Acknowledgement: The support of the grant PID2019-108392GB-I00 (AEI/10.13039/ 501100011033) and VEGA 1/0267/21 is kindly announced.

tions in optimization problems of ensemble classifiers

URSZULA BENTKOWSKA, WOJCIECH GAŁKA AND MARCIN MRUKOWICZ

University of Rzeszów, Poland

ududziak@ur.edu.pl,wgalka96@gmail.com,mmrukowicz@ur.edu. pl

Ensemble methods in classification tasks provide a new classifier which usually performs better than any constituent classifier. In our work we apply aggregation and pre-aggregation functions (cf. [3], [4], [7]) to aggregate the prediction values of constituent classifiers. Diverse parameterized families of aggregation and preaggregation functions are considered as a tool to opti-mize the performance of classification. We show that the improvement of the classification performance of the given ensemble classifier is statistically significantly better than the performance of the individual classifiers. Moreover, we consider the problem of fitting aggregation and pre-aggregation functions to a given dataset. To choose possibly the best aggregation method in the classifying algorithm for a dataset we propose to use decision rules based on the dataset complexity measures (cf. [6]). We apply the existing toolset RSES to discover the required knowledge (cf. [1]).

It is worth to note that aggregation functions in the context of optimization of k-NN were applied for example in [2] and [5].

References:

- [1] Bazan J.G., Szczuka M., The Rough Set Exploration System. In: Peters J.F., Skowron A. (eds.), Transactions on Rough Sets III, Lecture Notes in Computer Science, vol. 400. Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg, 2005. https://doi.org/10. 1007/11427834_2
- [2] G. Beliakov, S. James, Using Choquet integrals for kNN approximation and classification, 2008 IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Systems (IEEE World Congress on Computational Intelligence), 2008, 1311-1317.
- [3] Bustince H. et al., Pre-aggregation functions: Definition, properties and construction methods, 2016 IEEE International Conference on Fuzzy Sys-tems (FUZZ-IEEE), 2016, pp. 294-300, doi: tems (FUZZ-IEEE), 2016, pp. 10.1109/FUZZ-IEEE.2016.7737700.
- [4] Hardy, G. H.; Littlewood, J. E.; Pólya, G., Inequalities. 2nd ed. Cambridge Univ. Press, Cambridge, 1952.
- [5] E. Hüllermeier, Cho-k-NN: A Method for Combining Interacting Pieces of Evidence in Case-Based Learning, Proceedings of the Nineteenth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence IJCAI-05, 2005, 3-8.
- [6] Lorena A. C., Garcia L. P. F., Lehmann J., Souto M. C. P., Ho T. K., How Complex is your clas-sification problem? A survey on measuring clas-sification complexity, Cornell University, https: //arxiv.org/abs/1808.03591
- [7] Yager, R. R., On ordered weighted averaging aggregation operators in multi-criteria decision making, IEEE Transactions on Systems, Man and Cybernetics 18, 183–190, 1988.

Aggregation and pre-aggregation func- Affinity Functions and Centrality Measures in Social Network Analysis

JAVIER FUMANAL IDOCIN^a, MARIA MINÁROVÁ^b, FRANCISCO JAVIER FERNANDE Z^c , OSCAR CORDÓN^d AND HUMBERTO BUSTINCE^c

^aPublic University of Navarre, Spain; ^bSlovak University of Technology in Bratislava, Radlinshéko, Bratislava, Slovakia; ^cDepartamento de Estadística, Informatica y Matemáticas, Universidad Publica de Navarra, Pamplona, Spain; ^dAndalusian Research Institute, Data Science and Computational Intelligence, University of Granada, Granada, Spain

javier.fumanal@unavarra.es,maria.minarova@stuba.sk, fcojavier.fernandez@unavarra.es,ocordon@decsai.ugr.es, bustince@unavarra.es

Social network analysis has become an important tool to study the complex fabric that configures human hierarchies and societies [1]. A network can have many properties that are relevant to understand its nature and behavior, like its community structure: the groups of nodes that can be identified as a functional sub-partition of the graph [2, 3]. Each one of the actors that forms a network can also be characterized using a series of metrics that ponder its importance in the network, called centrality measures [4]. In [5] the authors presented a new kind of functions, the affinity functions, designed to characterize the local interactions between actors, substituting the traditional adjacency matrix. This set of functions is designed to capture the nature of the local interactions among each pair of actors using different criteria, for example, the relationships shared by both actors or the strength of their relationship compared to the rest of their connections. They work in a similarly way to fuzzy memberships, being 0 a total absence of affinity and 1 a complete one. However, the effect and possible connections of the affinity functions and centrality measures have not been studied yet. In this contribution we study the interactions between different classical centrality measures and the affinity functions proposed in [5], in order to study their possible relationship. We also study how we can use these affinity functions to construct a new centrality measure.

Acknowledgement: Javier Fumanal Idocin, Francisco Javier Fernández and Humberto Bustince's research has been supported by the project PID2019-108392GBI00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033). Maria Minárová research has been funded by the project work was sup-ported by the projects APVV-17-0066 and APVV-18-0052. Oscar Cordón's research was supported by the Spanish Ministry of Science, Innovation and Uni-versities under grant EXASOCO (PGC2018-101216-B-100), including, European Regional Development Funds (ERDF).

References:

- [1] Scott, J. Social network analysis. Sociology 22, 109-127, 1988.
- [2] Girvan, M. & Newman, M. E. J. Community structure in social and biological networks. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences 99, 7821-7826, 2002.
- [3] Blondel, V. D., Guillaume, J. L., Lambiotte, R., & Lefebvre, E. (2008). Fast unfolding of communities in large networks. Journal of statistical mechanics: theory and experiment, 2008(10), P10008, 2008.
- [4] Newman, M. Networks. Oxford university press, 2018.
- [5] Fumanal-Idocin, J., Alonso-Betanzos, A., Cordón, O., Bustince, H., & Minárová, M. Community detection and social network analysis based on the

Italian wars of the 15th century. Future Generation Computer Systems, 113, 25-40, 2020.

Applicability of ordinal sums of conjunctive and disjunctive functions in classification

Miroslav Hudec a,b , Radko Mesiar c and Erika Mináriková a

^aUniversity of Economics in Bratislava, Slovak Republic; ^bVSB - Technical University of Ostrava, Czech Republic; ^cSlovak University of Technology, Slovakia

miroslav.hudecQeuba.sk,radko.mesiarQstuba.sk,

eminarikova1@student.euba.sk

Classification rely on the rules expressed by domain experts, or on the labeled attribute explaining the output classes. However, these information are not always available. In this work, we explore classification according to aggregation functions of mixed behaviour by variability in ordinal sums of conjunctive and disjunctive functions. By this approach, entities are classified into three classes: yes, no and maybe including inclination to the classes yes and no. By the proposed approach, domain experts (or ordinal users) explain classification linguistically, without stating IF-THEN rules and labeled output. The applicability is illustrated by two examples. The discussion of the results and further research activities conclude the paper.

Construction of commutative, associative functions via z-ordinal sum construction

Andrea Mesiarová-Zemánková

Slovak Academy of Sciences, Slovakia

vicandy27@yahoo.ca

If we generalize the position of the neutral element or the annihilator of a t-norm (t-conorm) we obtain the class of uninorms and the class of nullnorms [1,2,YR96]. Further generalization of uninorms, where the global neutral element is replaced by n local neutral elements yields nuninorms introduced by Akella [3].

The characterization of all continuous t-norms (tconorms) is based on two constructions: each continuous t-norm (t-conorm) is equal to an ordinal sum of continuous Archimedean t-norms (t-conorms) and each continuous Archimedean t-norm (t-conorm) has a continuous additive generator. Uninorms constructed using a continuous additive generator are called representable. Inspired by the case of t-norms we have defined ordinal sum of uninorms and subsequently we have shown the complete characterization of uninorms with continuous underlying functions (see [4] and references therein). Recently, we have defined the z-ordinal sum construction that enables us to construct non-decreasing functions on the unit interval with an annihilator inside the unit interval, while in the case of the ordinal sum the annihilator of such functions was always on its boundary, i.e., at 0 or at 1. For example, we can construct nullnorms and nuninorms via the z-ordinal sum construction. Using the z-ordinal sum we were then able to give a similar characterization of n-uninorms with continuous underlying functions (see [5] and references therein).

In this work we will show that each z-ordinal sum can be reduced into its basic form and we will describe the most general functions which can be obtained as a zordinal sum of semigroups related to t-norms, t-conorms and uninorms. We will also discuss the monotonicity of the function constructed via the z-ordinal sum. Vice versa, we will show that each commutative, associative, non-decreasing function, which is continuous on the diagonal and has continuous Archimedean components can be expressed as a z-ordinal sum of semigroups related to t-norms, t-conorms and uninorms. Acknowledgement: This work was supported by grant VEGA 1/0006/19.

References:

- [1] T. Calvo, B. de Baets, J. Fodor (2001). The functional equations of Frank and Alsina for uninorms and nullnorms. Fuzzy Sets and Systems 120(3), pp. 385-394.
- [2] E. P. Klement, R. Mesiar, E. Pap (2000). Triangular norms. Kluwer Academic Publishers, Dordrecht.
- [3] P. Akella (2007). Structure of n-uninorms. Fuzzy Sets and Systems 158(15), pp. 1631-1651.
- [4] A. Mesiarová-Zemánková, Characterization of uninorms with continuous underlying t-norm and tconorm by their set of discontinuity points. IEEE Transactions on Fuzzy Systems 26(2)(2018), 705-714
- [5] A. Mesiarová-Zemánková, Characterization of nuninorms with continuous underlying functions via z-ordinal sum construction, International Journal of Approximate Reasoning, https://doi.org/10. 1016/j.ijar.2021.03.006

On DU-ordinal sums of partially ordered monoids

Michal Holčapek^a, Antonín Dvořák^a and Jan Paseka^b

^aUniversity of Ostrava, Czechia; ^bMasaryk university, Czechia

{michal.holcapek,antonin.dvorak}@osu.cz,paseka@math.muni.cz

This contribution introduces a new fundamental type of ordinal sum constructions for partially ordered monoids that is determined by an algebraic structure of the index set and extends a recently proposed novel approach to ordinal sum constructions of t-norms, t-conorms and uninorms on posets with the help of operators on posets, which combine, in some sense, the properties of interior and closure operators on posets [1].

We start with a system of partially ordered monoids (shortly po-monoids) indexed via an index set I and take the disjoint union M of this system (note that in [1], the index set I is supposed to be linearly ordered). Then, we equip the index set I with a structure of the so-called DU-po-monoid. Using this algebraic tool, we introduce an order relation R on M and a multiplication * on M such that M becomes a po-monoid. We say that M is a DU-ordinal sum.

By the preceding, we can extend multiplication * to any poset P such that P contains the DU-ordinal sum M as a subposet, and we have a suitable operator h on P with range M. The proposed approach provides a unified view on several known constructions of ordinal sums of t-norms and t-conorms on posets and lattices (see [2]).

References:

- A. Dvořák, M. Holčapek, J. Paseka, On ordinal sums of partially ordered monoids: A unified approach to ordinal sum constructions of t-norms, t-conorms and uninorms, Fuzzy Sets and Systems, Available online 20 April 2021, https://www.sciencedirect.com/ science/article/pii/S0165011421001317.
- [2] Wei Ji, Constructions of uninorms on bounded lattices by means of t-subnorms and t-subconorms Fuzzy Sets Syst., 403 (2021), pp. 38-55.

Inf- and sup-preserving aggregation functions

MARTA CARDIN

Ca' Foscari University of Venice, Italy

mcardin@unive.it

We introduce inf-lattices, sup-lattices and convexity algebras. We prove that any inf-lattice can be represented as a quotient of a power set lattice with respect to a congruence. Moreover we consider closure operators defined on a poset and we provide a characterization of inf-preserving maps between inf-lattices. Inf-preserving aggregation functions are described.

Empirical monotonicity of Non-deterministic Computable Aggregations

Luis Garmendia^a, Daniel Gómez^a, Luis Magdalena^b and Javier Montero^a

^aUniversidad Complutense de Madrid, Spain; ^bUniversidad Politécnica de Madrid, Spain

lgarmend@fdi.ucm.es,dagomez@estad.ucm.es,luis.magdalena@ upm.es,monty@mat.ucm.es

The concept of aggregation has been usually associated with that of aggregation functions, assuming that any aggregation process can be represented by a function. Recently, computable aggregations have been introduced considering that the core of the aggregation processes is the program that enables it. In this new framework, the concept of monotonicity of an aggregation, linked to the monotonicity of the function defining the aggregation, should be revisited once there is not such a function. The new concept of aggregation also opens a new scenario where the aggregation can even be non-deterministic.

Assuming these premises, the present work focuses on monotonicity of non-deterministic computable aggregations, considering the situation where the program implementing the aggregation is a black box, that is, only inputs and outputs are available. But due to nondeterminism, a certain input will not always produce the same output, and the analysis should be based on multiple executions of the program, generating for that single input a collection of outputs (a list) that could be analysed as such, or interpreted as a distribution.

Monotonicity analysis will require the comparison of those lists of outputs in terms of ordering, and to do so it is needed the previous definition of an order relation in the set of lists.

d-XC-integrals: On the generalization of the expanded form of the Choquet integral by restricted dissimilarity functions

Jonata Wieczynski^a, Giancarlo Lucca^b, Eduardo Borges^a, Tiago Asmus^c, Leonardo Emmendorfer^c, Humberto Bustince^d and Graçaliz Dimuro^b

^aUniversidade Federal do Rio Grande - FURG, Brazil; ^bUniversidade Federal do Rio Grande, Brazil; ^cFURG, Brazil; ^dUPNA, Spain

jwieczynski@furg.br,giancarlo.lucca88@gmail.com,

eduardoborges@furg.br,{tiagoasmus,leonardo.emmendorfer}@gmail.com,bustince@unavarra.es,gracaliz@gmail.com

It is well-known that, in many knowledge-based applications, the analysis by numerical data comparisons is an important issue, for which one usually uses the difference operator (that is, the distance metric on the real line). In addition, many algorithms and models use the difference operator; one example is when measuring errors as stopping criteria of iterative methods. However, the subtraction may carry several drawbacks. In one hand, sometimes it may not be properly defined in the application domain. On the other hand, it may add

undesirable collateral effects, such as the width overestimation when dealing with interval-valued data, which is a serious problem (for example, when the variables are correlated) for providing interval results with no meaningful information. Then, the introduction of the con-cept of restricted dissimilarity functions generalizing the difference operation has opened to the possibility of performing comparison of data in the unit interval in many different ways. One important concept that uses the difference operator in its definition is the discrete Choquet integral (CI), which has been widely disseminated in the literature [2], for the nice property carried out by the underlined fuzzy measure used in its definition, namely, the property of taking into account the relationship among data when performing aggregation tasks. Actually, one may find a large variety of applications of the CI and its generalizations and extensions [3], as in classification, multi-criteria (group) decision making, multi-source data fusion model. The development of the generalizations and extensions of the CI aimed at either improving the performance or adapting the concept to specific applications. In particular, the CC-integrals (based on copulas) and $C_{(F_1F_2)}$ -integrals (based on pseudo preaggregation pairs) are built on the expanded form of the Choquet integral (X-CI), which is the form obtained when one distributes the product operation over the sub-Then, the two instances of the product are traction. replaced by other (pre)-aggregation functions. Although such generalizations have improved considerably the performance when applied to, for example, fuzzy-rule based systems, multimodal brain-computer interface systems, decision making problems and image processing models, the problem of the difference operator in the their definition still persists. Then, the concept of CIs based on dissimilarities was introduced [3], generalizing the CI by replacing the difference operator by restricted dissimilarity functions, of which the difference is just a particular case. However, no effective application of such concept was shown. In this paper, we were inspired by the generalizations of the X-CI form, with the general objective of introducing a generalization of X-CI using restricted dis-similarity functions, called d-XC-integrals. We present a theoretical study of the most important properties of d-XC-integrals, mainly related to the required features for their application in classification, decision making and image processing, namely, those related to some kind of increasingness (e.g, monotonicity, directional monotonicity and ordered directional monotonicity), boundary conditions, idempotency and averaging property. We study the behaviours of d-XC-integrals concerning five different restricted dissimilarity functions. We point out that the range of d-XC-integrals may be larger than the unit interval. However, this is not important when d-XC-integrals are used in a decision making step, which is the case of the application example shown in the paper, namely a fuzzy-rule based classification system. We apply the d-XC-integrals to perform the aggregation task in the third step of the fuzzy reasoning method, which is the inference mechanism of FRBCSs. Therefore, taking into account the relation among the association degrees of the components of the input example, the d-XCintegral provides a classification soundness degree which determines the fused "rule-compatibility value" to classify such example in an appropriate class. To analyse the efficiency and the quality of our proposal, we have con-ducted a study using 33 different datasets, selected from KEEL dataset repository, which is the same used in previous studies. We also performed a statistical analysis of the obtained results, which showed that the proposed generalization is an effective tool that can achieve better results than the original approach.

References:

 Graçaliz Pereira Dimuro, Giancarlo Lucca, Benjamín R. C. Bedregal, Radko Mesiar, José Antonio Sanz, Chin-Teng Lin, Humberto Bustince: Generalized CF1F2-integrals: From Choquet-like aggregation to ordered directionally monotone functions. Fuzzy Sets Syst. 378: 44-67 (2020)

- [2] Graçaliz Pereira Dimuro, Javier Fernández, Benjamín R. C. Bedregal, Radko Mesiar, José Antonio Sanz, Giancarlo Lucca, Humberto Bustince: The state-of-art of the generalizations of the Choquet integral: From aggregation and pre-aggregation to ordered directionally monotone functions. Inf. Fusion 57: 27-43 (2020)
- [3] Humberto Bustince, Radko Mesiar, Javier Fernández, Mikel Galar, Daniel Paternain, Abdulrahman H. Altalhi, Graçaliz Pereira Dimuro, Benjamín R. C. Bedregal, Zdenko Takác: d-Choquet integrals: Choquet integrals based on dissimilarities. Fuzzy Sets Syst. 414: 1-27 (2021)

On a special class of interval-valued fuzzy operators

PAWEŁ DRYGAŚ

University of Rzeszów, Poland

paweldrs@ur.edu.pl

In this paper, we study a special class of interval-valued fuzzy operators, which take into account the measure of uncertainty of the input data. Unfortunately, not all of them are monotonic. Therefore, instead of the usual monotonicity, directional monotonicity is considered, so that some of these operations are pre-aggregation functions (see [1]). As an example of the considered operations, the operation that was used in paper [2] can be given. This weak aggregation is similar to the representable weighted mean, except that when aggregating we take both ends of the intervals with the appropriate weights. The weights depend here on the measure of uncertainty of aggregated values. This means that for different arguments the weights may be different. An important advantage of this type of aggregations is the fact that the obtained result has a smaller measure of uncertainty than when using standard means, which allows ones to determine the aggregated value more precisely.

References:

- M. Sesma-Sara, L. De Miguel, R. Mesiar, J. Fernandez, H. Bustince, Interval-valued pre-aggregation functions: a study of directional monotonicity of interval-valued functions, FUZZIEEE'2019, 2019.
- [2] P. Drygaś, B. Pękala, K. Balicki, D. Kosior, Influence of new interval-valued pre-aggregation function on medical decision making, IEEE Conference on Fuzzy Systems (FuzzIEEE). Glasgow, Scotland, UK, 19-24 July 2020.

Orders from Uninorms on Bounded Lattices: Some Perspectives

VIKASH KUMAR GUPTA AND BALASUBRAMANIAM JA-YARAM

Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad, India ma17resch01002@iith.ac.in, jbala@math.iith.ac.in

Recently many works have proposed different ways of obtaining orders from associative fuzzy logic operations. While the order \sqsubseteq investigated by Karaçal and Kesicioğlu was modified by Ertugrul et al. to obtain orders on uninorms, this order relation \preceq was based on the sub-domains of the arguments. Recently a property called *Quasi-Projectivity* (QP) was shown to be important to obtain an order from the relation \sqsubseteq investigated by Karaçal and Kesicioğlu and showed that all t-norms, t-conorms and nullnorms satisfy (QP) giving rise to posets, when the underlying domain is [0,1], while not all classes of uninorms satisfied (QP). Many constructions of uninorms U exist on bounded lattices, which unlike [0,1], may neither be total nor complete. In this work, we investigate the satisfaction of (QP) for these constructions. Our study shows that interestingly, almost all existing constructions satisfy (QP) and hence give rise to posets. Further, the orders obtained based on \sqsubseteq and \preceq differ majorly, with the \sqsubseteq relation consistently giving rise to richer order-theoretic structures. This study further merits attention since it offers an alternate perspective - that a uninorm U on a lattice (\mathbb{L}, \leq) can be made to be seen as a t-norm on the U-poset obtained ($\mathbb{L}, \sqsubseteq_U$).

Order based on Non-Associative Operations

KAVIT NANAVATI AND BALASUBRAMANIAM JAYARAM

Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad, India

ma20resch01004@iith.ac.in,jbala@math.iith.ac.in

Recently there have been many works studying orders obtained from fuzzy logic connectives, using the relation proposed by Karaçal and Kesicioğlu for T-norms. However, almost all of these works have dealt only with associative operations. In this work, we investigate the conditions under which the above relation leads to a partial order even when the operation is non-associative, i.e., in the setting of a groupoid instead of a semigroup. We begin by presenting the necessary and sufficient conditions towards the same. Following this we study the major non-associative aggregation operations, viz., semicopulas, fuzzy implications, overlapping, and grouping functions. Our investigations show that even appropriate non-associative functions can lead to interesting order-theoretic structures on the underlying set.

Some investigations on t-norms and tconorms on an appropriate bounded lattice

Emel Aşıcı

Karadeniz Technical University, Turkey

emelkalin@hotmail.com

Recently, the notation of the order induced by triangular norms, triangular conorms (uninorms, nullnorms) has been studied widely. In this paper, we present new methods for constructing triangular norms and triangular conorms on an arbitrary bounded lattice under some constraints. Also, we give some illustrative examples for the clarity. Then, we investigate the relation between introduced methods and present methods given in Theorem 1 and Theorem 2. So, we obtain some important results from this investigation.

Some conclusions on the direct product of uninorms on bounded lattices

Emel Aşıcı^a and Radko Mesiar^{b,c}

^aKaradeniz Technical University, Turkey; ^bSlovak University of Technology, Slovakia; ^cUniversity of Ostrava, Czech Republic

emelkalin@hotmail.com,mesiar@math.sk

Recently, the notation of the order induced by uninorms (t-norms, nullnorms) has been studied widely. In this paper, we study on the direct product of uninorms on bounded lattices. Also, we define an order induced by uninorms which are a direct product of two uninorms on bounded lattices. Also, we investigate properties of introduced order.

The Choquet integral in the construction Choquet integrals with respect to generof composite indices: The case of the Society Sustainable Index.

PÉREZ-ASURMENDI^a Patrizia AND BONIFACIO LLAMAZARES^b

^aComplutense University of Madrid, Spain; ^bUniversity of Valladolid, Spain

patrizip@ucm.es,boni@eco.uva.es

In economic framework, composite indicators are a powerful tool to summarize the information provided by simple indicators in a unique value. Many of them are designed aggregating simple indicators through arithmetic and geometric means (sometimes the weighted ones) given their simplicity and their properties. But using these aggregation functions is subject to criticisms in the literature. In the case of the arithmetic mean, the main one focuses on the compensability that it allows among the different simple indicators that aggregates. To solve this weakness, the use of the geometric mean is highly recommended given that the compensability among the different simple indicators is lower than in the former. Nevertheless, the geometric mean exhibits also a relevant drawback, namely, it is not invariant to changes in the scale. To be more concrete, it is not stable when linear transformations are performed on the scale used to represent the values of the indicators. Accordingly, the final ranking depends dramatically on the selected scale of the simple indicators. Moreover, in both cases, the possible and common interactions among simple indicators are not considered in the composite indicator. To overcome these issues, we propose a model based on the Choquet integral. On the one hand, our proposal allows to consider the usual interactions among the simple indicators in the composite indicator when necessary. On the other hand, it allows to control the degree of compensability among simple indicators. Possible applications of our model are huge and to illustrate them, we also provide the implementation of our model in the Sustainable Society Index. Such composite indicator measures the level of sustainability of 154 countries taken into account the three dimensions of sustainability, namely, the Human Wellbeing, the Environmental Wellbeing, and the Economic Wellbeing dimension. Its complexity allows us to show the convenience of using our model in the construction of composite indicators.

References:

- [1] Choquet, G.: Theory of capacities. Annales de l'Institut Fourier 5, 131–295 (1953).
- [2] Grabisch, M.: k-order additive discrete fuzzy measures and their representation. Fuzzy Sets and Systems 92(2), 167–189 (1997)
- Nardo, M., Saisana, M., Saltelli, A., Tarantola, S., 3 Hoffmann, A., Giovannini, E.: Handbook on Con-structing Composite Indicators: Methodology and User Guide. OECD Publishing (2008)
- [4] Saltelli, A., Nardo, M., Saisana, M., Tarantola, S.: Composite indicators—The controversy and the way forward. En: Statistics, Knowledge and Policy: Key Indicators to Inform Decision Making (Proceedings of the World Forum on Key Indicators, 359–372, OECD Publishing (2005)). Palermo, Italia (10-13 de noviembre de 2004)

alized survival functions

JANA BORZOVÁ, LENKA HALČINOVÁ AND JAROSLAV ŠUPINA

Institute of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, Pavol Jozef Safárik University in Košice, Slovakia

jana.borzova240gmail.com,{lenka.halcinova,jaroslav. supina}@upjs.sk

We continue in research of a new concept of generalized survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators introduced in [1]. The value of the conditional ag-gregation operator may be seen as an aggregation value of a function on a conditional set. Novel survival functions naturally gave rise to the generalized Choquet integral. Following the classical case, it was introduced as the improper Riemann integral of the generalized survival function. In our talk, we will clarify the relationship between the generalized and famous Choquet integral. Namely, we will show that the generalized concept can be interpreted as the classical Choquet integral on a hyperset. Then we will focus on novel Choquet integral in discrete settings in more detail. In order to simplify the computation, we will derive general formulas as well as formulas for special monotone measures. Finally, we will discuss the relationship with other existing integrals, see [2].

Acknowledgement: The support of the grant APVV-16-0337, APVV SK-PL-18-0032 is kindly announced.

References:

- [1] BOCZEK, M., HALČINOVÁ, L., HUTNÍK, O., KALUSZKA, M.: Novel survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators, Inform. Sci. (to appear), https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ins. 2020.12.049.
- [2] PAP, E.: Three types of generalized Choquet integral, Bollettino dell'Unione Matematica Italiana, 13 (2020), pp. 545-553.

Survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators

STANISLAV BASARIK, JANA BORZOVÁ AND LENKA Halčinová

Institute of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, Pavol Jozef Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia

stanislav.basarik@student.upjs.sk,{jana.borzova,lenka. halcinova}@upjs.sk

In the contribution, we shall discuss survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators on discrete space. The concept was recently introduced in [1] and is worth studying because of its possible implementation in real-life situations and mathematical theory, as well. There are different examples of conditional aggregation operators, e.g. sum, maximum, the Choquet integral, the Sugeno integral, *p*-mean, and others. Restricting the generalized survival function to the maximum aggregation operator we obtain the usual survival function (also known as decumulative distribution, in the literature).

In our talk, we shall present sufficient and necessary conditions when survival functions (standard and generalized) coincide, see [2]. The application of such a novel survival function in decision-making processes will be discussed, as well. In the application, we compare results given by the standard Choquet integral with the generalized Choquet integral based on different conditional aggregation operators.

Acknowledgement: The support of the grant APVV-16-0337, APVV SK-PL-18-0032, vvgs-pf-2021-1782 is kindly announced.

References:

- BASARIK, S., BORZOVÁ, J., HALČINOVÁ, L.: Survival functions versus novel survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators on discrete space, https://arxiv.org/abs/2103. 05627.
- [2] BOCZEK, M., HALČINOVÁ, L., HUTNÍK, O., KALUSZKA, M.: Novel survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators, Inform. Sci. (2020), https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ins.2020. 12.049.

On a generalization of level measures

Michał Boczek^a, Ondrej Hutník^b, Marek Kaluszka^a and Miriam Kleinová^c

^aInstitute of Mathematics, Lodz University of Technology, Poland; ^bInstitute of Mathematics, Pavol Jozef Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia; ^cInstitute of Mathematics, Faculty of Science, Pavol Jozef Šafárik University in Košice, Slovakia

michal.boczek.1@p.lodz.pl,ondrej.hutnik@upjs.sk,marek. kaluszka@p.lodz.pl,miriam.kleinova@student.upjs.sk

We continue the development of the theory behind the conditional aggregation operators introduced recently by Boczek et al. [1]. In particular, we describe a new family of generalized level measures based on a parametric family of conditional aggregation operators. This concept arises as an extension of level dependent measure [2]. We investigate the basic properties of the family of generalized level measures and provide some relations between the families of generalized level measures and the generalized survival functions. We also propose a new Choquet-type functional based on the family of generalized level measures and study its properties and relations with the existing functionals.

Acknowledgement: The support of the grant APVV-16-0337, Slovak-Poland grant scheme No. SK-PL-18-0032 together with the Polish National Agency for Academic Exchange under the contract No. PPN/BIL/2018/1/00049/U/00001, and vvgs-pf-2021-1782 is kindly announced.

References:

- M. Boczek, L. Halčinová, O. Hutník, M. Kaluszka: Novel survival functions based on conditional aggregation operators, Inform. Sci. (to appear), https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ins.2020.12.049.
- [2] S. Greco, B. Matarazzo, S. Giove: The Choquet integral with respect to a level dependent capacity, Fuzzy Sets and Systems 175(1) (2011), 1–35.

On agglomerative hierarchical percentile clustering

Fabrizio Durante^a, Aurora Gatto^a and Susanne Saminger-Platz^b

^aUniversità del Salento, Italy; ^bJohanned Kepler University Linz, Austria

{fabrizio.durante,aurora.gatto}@unisalento.it,susanne. saminger-platz@jku.at

Cluster analysis aims at grouping objects represented by some feature vectors and as such revealing insight into subset structures among the considered objects. However, in many cases, the observations are subject to experimental errors and/or uncertainty. In such a case, a popular way is to summarize first the information about each object and, then, aggregate the objects via some cluster algorithm. The percentile clustering by Janowitz and Schweizer, instead, considers the whole distribution of observed features and, only afterwards, aggregates them. Here, we revisit this approach in an agglomerative clustering perspective. Moreover, we perform a simulation study showing some finite sample performance of the algorithm. Some case studies illustrate the advantages of the whole methodology.

Cosmological Clustering: A gravitational clustering approach inspired on largescale cosmos' structure and dynamics

Aitor Castillo-López^a, Maria Minárová^b, Iosu Rodríguez-Martínez^a, Javier Fumanal Idocin^a and Humberto Bustince^c

^aPublic University of Navarra, Spain; ^bSlovak University of Technology, Slovakia; ^cUPNA, Spain

aitor.castillo@unavarra.es,maria.minarova@stuba.sk,{iosu. rodriguez,javier.fumanal,bustince}@unavarra.es

In this work we propose a new approach to the gravitational clustering algorithm based on what Einstein considered his "biggest blunder": the Cosmological constant, added to his field equations on 1917. Similarly to the gravitational clustering algorithm[1], our approach is inspired by cosmos principles and laws, and as occurs with Einstein's theory of relativity and Newton's theory of gravity, our approach can be considered a generalization of the gravitational clustering, where, the gravitational clustering algorithm is retrieved as limit case. Furthermore, some improvements are developed and implemented on both, the original and our cosmological algorithms.

Since there are many modifications of the original algorithm (as purposed in [2] or [3]), ours it is remarkable for two aspects. On the one hand, the improvements we add to the original algorithm are aimed to optimize the quantity of final iterations, in this way, execution time of the algorithm is reduced. On the other hand our proposed cosmological repulsive force pretends to solve the detection of outliers and differentiate clusters which are so close to each other to be separed by the original gravitational algorithm.

Finally, to accompany the proposed theoretical modifications, we present some illustrative examples to show the validity of our approach.

Acknowledgement: This work was supported by research projects PID2019-108392GB-I00 (AEI/10.13039/501100011033) of the Agencia Estatal de Investigación, APVV-17-0066 and APVV-18-0052 (Slovakia).

References:

- [1] Wright, W. E. (1977). Gravitational clustering. Pattern recognition, 9(3), 151-166.
- [2] Fumanal-Idocin, J., Alonso-Betanzos, A., Cordón, O., Bustince, H., and Minárová, M. (2020). Community detection and social network analysis based on the Italian wars of the 15th century. Future Generation Computer Systems, 113, 25-40.
- [3] Armentia, J., Rodríguez, I., Idocin, J. F., Bustince, H., Minárová, M., and Jurio, A. (2019, July). Gravitational clustering algorithm generalization by using an aggregation of masses in newton law. In International Summer School on Aggregation Operators (pp. 172-182). Springer, Cham.

Aggregation of operators in fuzzy relational mathematical morphology: erosion and dilation

ALEXANDER ŠOSTAK^{a,b} AND INGRĪDA UĻJANE^{a,b} ^aInstitute of Mathematics and CS University of Latvia, Latvia; ^bUniversity of Latvia, Latvia {aleksandrs.sostaks,ingrida.uljane}@lumii.lv Revising the definitions of fuzzy relational erosion and dilation introduced by N. Madrid et al. (*L*-fuzzy relational mathematical morphology based on adjoint triples. Inf. Sci. **474**, 75–89, 2019), we define the structured versions of these operators and study their basic properties. Our principal interest is aggregation of fuzzy relational, specifically structured, erosions and dilations. We base such aggregation on a dual pair of binary operators (\diamond , \odot) (e.g. a *t*-norm and the *t*-conorm); \diamond is applied for aggregation of erosions and \odot for aggregation of dilations.

Aggregation operators for comparative possibility distributions and their role in group decision making

ANDREY ZUBYUK AND EGOR FADEEV

Lomonosov Moscow State University, Russia

zubuk@cmpd2.phys.msu.ru,fadeevegor@yandex.ru

In this paper, we study an application of qualitative possibility theory to decision making under uncertainty. The word "qualitative" means that uncertainty is modeled using comparative possibility distributions on a universal set Ω . Such a possibility distribution defines how likely each elementary event $\omega \in \Omega$ is compared to others: more likely, less likely, equally likely, absolutely unlikely.

Based on the specificity relation introduced in our previous works, we define two operations on comparative possibility distributions: supremum and infimum. In group decision making, each of them can be used to combine possibility distributions representing opinions of different experts on the same subject into a "consensus" possibility distribution which produces the decisions acceptable (in different senses for supremum and infimum) by all the experts involved.

Abstracts of FQAS

Flexible Querying using Disjunctive Concepts

GREGORY SMITS^a, MARIE-JEANNE LESOT^b, OLIVIER PIVERT^a AND RONALD YAGER^{c,d}

^aUniversity of Rennes - IRISA, France; ^bSorbonne Université, CNRS, LIP6, France; ^cKing Abdulaziz University, Saudi Arabia; ^dIona College, USA

{gregory.smits,olivier.pivert}@irisa.fr,marie-jeanne. lesot@lip6.fr,yager@panix.com

A DB querying system is said to be flexible if it adapts to the end user expectations and expertise. This paper introduces a novel strategy to fuzzy querying that reduces the gap between complex search conditions end users have in mind and formal queries understood by the underlying DB system. In the Flexible Querying By Example paradigm, the proposed strategy, called DCQ standing for Disjunctive Concept Querying, extends a flexible querying system with subjective disjunctive concepts: it proposes two stored procedures that can be embedded in any relational database management system to build a formal query from a few user-given examples that represent the diversity of what the user is looking for. The first procedure infers the membership function of the implicit imprecise concept underlying the provided examples, with the specificity of allowing for complex disjunctive concepts: it is able to both capture proper-ties shared by most of the selected representative tuples as well as specific properties possessed by only one specific representative tuple. The second procedure allows to exploit the resulting fuzzy concept in a query.

Analytical Queries on Vanilla RDF Graphs with a Guided Query Builder Approach

SEBASTIEN FERRE

Univ Rennes, CNRS, IRISA, France

ferre@irisa.fr

As more and more data are available as RDF graphs, the availability of tools for data analytics beyond semantic search becomes a key issue of the Semantic Web. Previous work require the modelling of data cubes on top of RDF graphs. We propose an approach that directly answers analytical queries on unmodified (vanilla) RDF graphs by exploiting the computation features of SPARQL 1.1. We rely on the NAF design pattern to design a query builder that completely hides SPARQL behind a verbalization in natural language; and that gives intermediate results and suggestions at each step. Our evaluations show that our approach covers a large range of use cases, scales well on large datasets, and is easier to use than writing SPARQL queries.

Dealing with Data Veracity in Multiple Criteria Handling: An LSP-based approach

Guy De Tré^a and Jozo Dujmovic^b

^aGhent University, Belgium; ^bSan Francisco State University, USA

Guy.DeTre@UGent.be,jozo@sfsu.edu

In a big data context, data often originate from various unreliable sources and cannot be considered perfect. Data veracity denotes the overall confidence we have in the data and clearly has an impact on the results of querying and decision making processes. In this paper, we study the impact of data veracity on criterion handling and propose a novel, LSP-based evaluation approach that explicitly copes with data veracity. Logic Scoring of Preference (LSP) is a computational intelligence method that is based on logic criteria selection, evaluation and aggregation. In our proposal, LSP techniques are independently used for scoring preferences on data and preferences on data confidence. The resulting indicators of suitability and confidence provide better interpretability and explainability of evaluation results.

Realization of a Natural Logic in a Database System

TROELS ANDREASEN^a, HENRIK BULSKOV^a and Jørgen Fischer Nilsson^b

^aRoskilde University, Denmark; ^bTechnical University of Denmark, Denmark

{troels, bulskov}@ruc.dk, jfni@dtu.dk

Natural logics are formal logics whose sentences resemble simplified natural language. As such they are suitable for knowledge bases. The offered logical proof rules apply directly to the natural logic sentences, ensuring explainability of query inferences. We describe a natural logic, NATURALOG, suited for ontology-structured knowledge bases, and explain how it can be implemented in a database system for conducting deductive querying.

Generalized Weighted Repairs

HORACIO TELLEZ PEREZ AND JEF WIJSEN

University of Mons, Belgium

{horacio.tellezperez,jef.wijsen}@umons.ac.be

This paper deals with the problem of repairing inconsistent relational database instances in which facts are associated with nonnegative weights, representing their quality or trustfulness. Given a numeric aggregation function G, weighted repairs (or G-repairs) are defined as inclusion-maximal consistent subinstances with maximum aggregated value. The weighted repair notion extends existing repair notions, like subset- and cardinality-repairs. We study the complexity of repairchecking and some related problems, in a setting where database integrity constraints are represented by a hypergraph whose hyperedges correspond to constraint violations. In this setting, G-repairs can be viewed as maximum-weight independent sets relative to the aggregation function G.

Detecting ESG Topics Using Domain-Specific Language Models and Data Augmentation

TIM NUGENT^a, NICOLE STELEA^a and Jochen L. Leidner^{a,b,c}

^aThis research was conducted while all authors were at Refinitiv Labs, London.; ^bCoburg University of Applied Sciences, Germany; ^cUniversity of Shefield, United Kingdom

{timnugent, nicole.stelea}@gmail.com, leidner@acm.org

Despite recent advances in deep learning-based language modelling, many natural language processing (NLP) tasks in the financial domain remain challenging due to the paucity of appropriately labelled data. Other issues that can limit task performance are differences in word distribution between the general corpora – typically used to pre-train language models – and financial corpora, which often exhibit specialized language and symbology.

Here, we investigate two approaches that can help to mitigate these issues. Firstly, we experiment with further language model pre-training using large amounts of in-domain data from business and financial news. We then apply augmentation approaches to increase the size of our data-set for model fine-tuning. We report our findings on an Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) controversies data-set and demonstrate that both approaches are beneficial to accuracy in classification tasks.

A Novel Approach for Supporting Italian Satire Detection through Deep Learning

Alfredo Cuzzocrea^a, Giosue Lo Bosco^b, Mariano Maiorana^{c,d}, Giovanni Pilato^c, Daniele Schicchi^e and Gabriella Casalino^d

^aUniversity of Bari, Italy; ^biDEA Lab - University of Calabria, Italy; ^cUniversity of Palermo, Italy; ^dEuro-Mediterranean Institute of Science and Technology, Italy; ^eICAR-CNR, National Research Council of Italy, Italy

gabriella.casalino@uniba.it, alfredo.cuzzocrea@unical.it, giosue.lobosco@unipa.it,mariano.maiorana@community.unipa. it,giovanni.pilato@cnr.it,danieleschicchi@iemest.eu

Satire is a way of criticizing people (or ideas) by ridiculing them on political, social, and morals topics often used to denounce political and societal problems, leveraging comedic devices such as parody exaggeration, incongruity, etcetera. Detecting satire is one of the most challenging computational linguistics tasks, natural language processing, and social multimedia sentiment anal-ysis. In particular, as satirical texts include gurative communication for expressing ideas/opinions concerning people, sentiment analysis systems may be nega-tively aected; therefore, satire should be adequately addressed to avoid such systems' performance degradation. This paper tackles automatic satire detection through eective deep learning (DL) architecture that has been shown to be useful for addressing sarcasm/irony detection problems. We both trained and tested the system exploiting articles derived from two important satiric blogs, Lercio and IlFattoQuotidaino, and signicant Italian newspapers. Experiments show an optimal perfor-mance achieved by the network capable of detecting satire in a context where it is not marked.

DocTalk: Combining Dependency-based Text Graphs and Deep Learning into a Practical Dialog Engine

YIFAN GUO, WEILUN SUN, ALI KHAN, TAM DOAN AND PAUL TARAU

University of North Texas, USA

{yifan.guo.3517,weilunsun28}@gmail.com,{alikhan,tamdoan}@ my.unt.edu,ptarau@gmail.com

Today's deep learning dominates the field of natural language processing (NLP) with text graph-based approaches being another promising approach. However, both have inherent weaknesses. We present our system called DocTalk that brings together a model that combines the strength of the two approaches. DocTalk's symbiotic model widens its application domain, enhanced with automatic language detection and effective multilingual summarization, keyword extraction, and question answering on several types of documents. Taking advantage of DocTalk's flexibility, we built it into a dialog engine, coupled with an easy-to-use web interface.

A comparative study of word embeddings for the construction of a social media expert filter

J. ANGEL DIAZ-GARCIA, M. DOLORES RUIZ AND MARIA J. MARTIN-BAUTISTA

University of Granada, Spain

joseangeldiazg@ugr.es,{mdruiz,mbautis}@decsai.ugr.es

With the proliferation of fake news and misinformation on social media, being able to differentiate a reliable source of information has become increasingly important. In this paper we present a new algorithm for filtering expert users in social networks according to a certain topic under study. For the algorithm fine-tuning, a comparative study of results according to different word embeddings as well as different representation models, such as Skip-Gram and CBOW, is provided alongside the paper.

J-CO, a Framework for Fuzzy Querying Collections of JSON Documents (Demo)

PAOLO FOSCI AND GIUSEPPE PSAILA

University of Bergamo, Italy

{paolo.fosci,giuseppe.psaila}@unibg.it

This paper accompanies a live demo during which we will show the J-CO Framework, a novel framework to manage large collections of JSON documents stored in NoSQL databases. J-CO-QL is the query language around which the framework is built; we show how it is able to performance fuzzy queries on JSON documents. This paper briefly introduces the framework and the cross-analysis process presented during the live demo at the conference.

Abstracts of IJCRS

Possibility Distributions Generated by Intuitionistic L-Fuzzy Sets

STEFANIA BOFFA AND DAVIDE CIUCCI

Universita degli Studi i Milano-Bicocca, Italy

{stefania.boffa,davide.ciucci}@unimib.it

In this work, we bridge possibility theory with intuitionistic L-fuzzy sets, by identifying a special class of possibility distributions corresponding to intuitionistic Lfuzzy sets based on a complete residuated lattice with an involution. Moreover, taking the Lukasiewicz n-chains as structures of truth degrees, we propose an algorithm to compute the intuitionistic L-fuzzy set corresponding to a given possibility distribution, in case it exists.

Adapting fuzzy rough sets for classification with missing values

OLIVER URS LENZ, DANIEL PERALTA AND CHRIS CORNELIS

Ghent University, Belgium

{oliver.lenz,chris.cornelis}@ugent.be,daniel.peralta@irc. vib-ugent.be

We propose an adaptation of fuzzy rough sets to model concepts in datasets with missing values. Upper and lower approximations are replaced by interval-valued fuzzy sets that express the uncertainty caused by incomplete information. Each of these interval-valued fuzzy sets is delineated by a pair of optimistic and pessimistic approximations. We show how this can be used to adapt Fuzzy Rough Nearest Neighbour (FRNN) classification to datasets with missing values. In a small experiment with real-world data, our proposal outperforms simple imputation with the mean and mode on datasets with a low missing value rate.

Possible Coverings in Incomplete Information Tables with Similarity of Values

Michinori Nakata^a, Norio Saito^a, Hiroshi Sakai^b and Takeshi Fujiwara^c

^aJosai International University, Japan; ^bKyushu Institute of Technology, Japan; ^cTokyo University of Information Sciences, Japan

nakatam@ieee.org,saitohnorio@jiu.ac.jp,sakai@mns.kyutech. ac.jp,fujiwara@rsch.tuis.ac.jp

Lots of coverings, called possible coverings, on a set of attributes are derived in an incomplete information table with similarity of values, although the covering is unique in a complete information table. Rough sets that consist of lower and upper approximations are described using the family of possible coverings. The number of possible coverings grows exponentially as the number of attribute values with incomplete information increases. This seems to present some problems due to the complexity of the calculations, but in reality it is not. No difficulty comes from a lattice structure that the family of possible coverings has. Using only two coverings: the minimum and maximum possible ones, lower and upper approximations can be created. In addition, the same approximations are also derived by using the minimum and maximum possibly indiscernible classes of objects.

Fuzzy-Rough Nearest Neighbour Approaches for Emotion Detection in Tweets

Olha Kaminska, Chris Cornelis and Veronique Hoste

Ghent University, Belgium

{Olha.Kaminska,Chris.Cornelis,Veronique.Hoste}@UGent.be Social media are an essential source of meaningful data that can be used in different tasks such as sentiment analysis and emotion recognition. Mostly, these tasks are solved with deep learning methods. Due to the fuzzy nature of textual data, we consider using classification methods based on fuzzy rough sets. Specifically, we develop an approach for the SemEval-2018 emotion detection task, based on the fuzzy rough nearest neighbour (FRNN) classifier enhanced with ordered weighted average (OWA) operators. We use tuned ensembles of FRNN-OWA models based on different text embedding methods. Our results are competitive with the best SemEval solutions based on more complicated deep learning methods.

Many-Valued Dynamic Object-Oriented Inheritance and Approximations

ANDRZEJ SZAŁAS

University of Warsaw, Poland; Linköping University, Sweden

andrzej.szalas@mimuw.edu.pl

The majority of contemporary software systems are developed using object-oriented tools and methodologies, where constructs like classes, inheritance and objects are first-class citizens. In the current paper we provide a novel formal framework for many-valued object-oriented inheritance in rule-based query languages. We also relate the framework to rough set-like approximate reasoning. Rough sets and their generalizations have intensively been studied and applied during the past decades. However, the mainstream of the area mainly focuses on the context of information and decision tables. Therefore, approximations defined in the much richer objectoriented contexts generalize known approaches.

Feature Reduction and Disambiguation in Learning from Fuzzy Labels using Rough Sets

ANDREA CAMPAGNER AND DAVIDE CIUCCI

University of Milano-Bicocca, Italy

a.campagner@campus.unimib.it,davide.ciucci@unimib.it

In this article, we study the setting of *learning from fuzzy labels*, a generalization of supervised learning in which instances are assumed to be labeled with a fuzzy set, interpreted as an epistemic possibility distribution. We tackle the problem of feature selection in such task, in the context of *rough set theory* (RST). More specifically, we consider the problem of RST-based feature reduction as a means for *data disambiguation*: that is, retrieving the most plausible precise instantiation of the imprecise training data. We define generalizations of decision tables and reducts, using tools from generalized information theory and belief function theory. We study the computational complexity and theoretical properties of the associated computational problems.

Knowledge Graph Representation Learning for Link Prediction with Three-Way Decisions

ZHIHAN PENG, HONG YU AND XIUSHI FENG

Chongqing University of Posts and Telecommunications, China

pengzhihan97@163.com,yuhong@cqupt.edu.cn,xiushifeng@qq.com

Relation prediction is one of the important tasks of knowledge graph completion, which aims to predict the missing links between entities. Although many different methods have been proposed, most of them usually follow the closed-world assumption. Specifically, these methods simply treat the unknown triples as errors, which will result in the loss of valuable information contained in the knowledge graphs (KGs). In addition, KGs exist large amounts of long-tail relations,

which lack sufficient triples for training, and these relations will seriously affect inference performance. In order to address above-mentioned problems, we propose RP-TWD, a novel relation prediction method based on three-way decisions. In this paper, RP-TWD model first obtains the similarity between relations by K-Nearest Neighbors (KNN) to model the semantic associations between relations. The semantic association between relations can be considered as supplementary information of long-tail relations, and constrain the learning of KG embeddings. Then, based on the idea of three-way decisions (TWD), the triples of specific relation are further divided into three disjoint regions, namely positive region (POS), boundary region (BND), and negative region (NEG). The introduction of BND intends to represent the uncertainty information contained in unknown triples. The experimental results show that our model has significant advantages in the task of relation prediction compared with baselines.

The Influence of Fuzzy Expectations on Triples of Triangular Norms in the Weighted Fuzzy Petri Net for the Subject Area of Passenger Transport Logistics

Yurii Bloshko^a, Zbigniew Suraj^a and Oksana Olar^b

^aRzeszów University, Poland; ^bYuriy Fedkovych Chernivtsi National University, Ukraine

ubloshko@gmail.com,zbigniew.suraj@ur.edu.pl,o.olar@chnu.edu.ua

This paper continues the analysis of the application of different triples of t-/s-norms and their results in the weighted fuzzy Petri nets for the subject area of passen-ger transport logistics. The analysis applies the range of 27 different triples of functions which are located inbetween minimal (LtN, LtN, ZsN) and maximal (optimized) (ZtN, ZtN, LsN) triples. It also includes classical triple (ZtN, GtN, ZsN) which is located exactly in the middle of this range and remains a good starting point in the comparison of the achieved results. This paper includes a deeper look on the already achieved numerical values as well as decisions and proposes a new approach which will unleash the full potential of the net and applied triples of functions. The idea includes the concep-tion of application of user's expectation. Therefore, the decision-support system provides the results based not only on the input values which were previously filled by the experts in the corresponding subject area, but also on the expectations which can be either met or rejected in the process of calculation.

Right adjoint algebras versus operator left residuated posets

M. Eugenia Cornejo and Jesús Medina

University of Cádiz, Spain

{mariaeugenia.cornejo,jesus.medina}@uca.es

Algebraic structures are essential in fuzzy frameworks such as fuzzy formal concept analysis and fuzzy rough set theory. This paper studies two general structures such as right adjoint algebras and operator left residuated posets, introducing several properties which relates them. Different extensions of the operators included in a given operator left residuated poset are presented and a reasoned analysis is shown to guarantee that the equivalence satisfied by the operators in this structure is not a generalization of the usual adjoint property, which is a basic property verified by right adjoint pairs. Operator left residuated posets are also studied on the framework of the Dedekind-MacNeille completion of a poset.

Revisiting impact of local congruences in variable selection from datasets

Roberto G. Aragón, Jesús Medina and Eloisa Ramírez Poussa

University of Cádiz, Spain

{roberto.aragon,jesus.medina,eloisa.ramirez}@uca.es

Formal concept analysis (FCA) is a useful mathematical tool for obtaining information from relational datasets. One of the most appealing research goals in FCA is the selection of the most representative variables of the dataset, which is called attribute reduction. Lately, the attribute reduction mechanism has been complemented with the use of local congruences in order to obtain robust clusters of concepts, which form convex sublattices of the original concept lattice. This paper presents the recently study of the impact of local congruences on concept lattices corresponding to formal contexts that have been previously reduced deleting a set of (unnecessary) attributes (attribute reduction), which has been presented in [1]. Namely, this paper splits the study into three different cases depending on the character of the element grouped by the local congruence, specifically, if it is join-irreducible, meet-irreducible or neither join nor meet-irreducible, for the purpose of determining the precise modifications of an attribute reduction mechanism complemented by a local congruence makes on the original context.

References:

 R. G. Aragón, J. Medina, and E. Ramírez-Poussa. Impact of local congruences in variable selection from datasets. Journal of Computational and Applied Mathematics, page 113416, 2021. In Press. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cam.2021.113416.

Bipolar max-product fuzzy relation equations with the standard negation

M. Eugenia Cornejo, David Lobo and Jesús Med-

University of Cádiz, Spain

{mariaeugenia.cornejo,david.lobo,jesus.medina}Quca.es

Bipolar fuzzy relation equations arise when unknown variables together with their logical negations appear simultaneously in fuzzy relation equations. Recently, a general study on the solvability of bipolar fuzzy relation equations defined with the max-product composition and the standard negation has been presented in [1]. Namely, such an equation is an expression of the form

$$\bigvee_{j=1}^{m} (a_{ij}^{+} * x_j) \lor (a_{ij}^{-} * (1 - x_j)) = b_i, \qquad i \in \{1, \dots, n\}$$

in the unknowns x_j , with $a_{ij}, b_i \in [0, 1]$, $i \in \{1, \ldots, n\}$, $j \in \{1, \ldots, m\}$, $n, m \in \mathbb{N}$. In this paper, the solvability of bipolar max-product fuzzy relation equations with the standard negation is characterized. Furthermore, the existence of the greatest/least solution or maximal/minimal solutions has also been characterized and the analytic expression of these extremal solutions has been determined.

References:

[1] M. E. Cornejo, D. Lobo, and J. Medina. On the solvability of bipolar max-product fuzzy relation equations with the standard negation. Fuzzy Sets and Systems, 410:1–18, 2021.

Relation-based fuzzy granular approximations

Marko Palangetić^a, Chris Cornelis^a, Salvatore Greco^b and Roman Słowiński^c

^aGhent University, Belgium; ^bDepartment of Economics and Business, University of Catania, Italy; ^cPoznan University of Technology, Poland

{marko.palangetic,chris.cornelis}@ugent.be,salgreco@ unict.it,roman.slowinski@cs.put.poznan.pl

We introduce a formal definition of the relationbased granular approximations (RFGA). These approximations may be seen as a generalization of the fuzzy rough approximations (FRA). The new definition yields a family of fuzzy sets that extends the family of lower and upper fuzzy approximations and inherits their granular properties. Moreover, a fuzzy relation is used to represent the decision attribute instead of a fuzzy set, like in the FRA. Besides the formal definition, we provide a way of calculating the RFGA in specific cases, and we discuss possible applications of the RFGA in Machine Learning.

The RSDS – a Tool for Users of Rough Sets and Related Domains

ZBIGNIEW SURAJ AND PIOTR GROCHOWALSKI

Rzeszów University, Poland

{zbigniew.suraj,piotrg}@ur.edu.pl

This paper provides an overview of the Rough Set Database System (RSDS for short) for creating bibliographies on rough sets and related fields, as well as sharing and analysis. The current version of the RSDS includes a number of modifications, extensions and functional improvements compared to the previous versions of this system. The system was made in the client-server technology. Currently, the RSDS contains over 38 540 entries from nearly 42 860 authors. This system works on any computer connected to the Internet and is available at http://rsds.ur.edu.pl

PNeS in Modelling, Control and Analysis of Concurrent Systems

ZBIGNIEW SURAJ AND PIOTR GROCHOWALSKI

Rzeszów University, Poland

{zbigniew.suraj,piotrg}@ur.edu.pl

The paper describes the extended and improved version of the Petri Net System (PNeS) compared to the version published in 2017. PNeS is an integrated graphical computer tool for building, modifying, analyzing Petri nets, as well as controlling a mobile robot. It runs on any computer under any operating system. PNeS can be useful for researchers, educators and practitioners, from both academia and industry, who are actively involved in the work of modelling and analyzing concurrent systems, and for those who have the potential to be involved in these areas.

3RD: A multi-criteria decision-making method based on three-way rankings

YIYU YAO AND CHENGJUN SHI

University of Regina, Canada

{Yiyu.Yao,csn838}@uregina.ca

By combining ideas from three-way decision theory, prospect theory, and several families of multi-criteria decision-making (MCDM) methods such as ELECTRE, PROMETHEE, and TODIM, we propose a new rankingbased MCDM method called 3RD. With respect to a single criterion, we construct a three-way ranking (i.e., trilevel ranking) of a set of decision alternatives by using an alternative as a reference and, consequently, a family of three-way rankings from all alternatives. With respect to a set of criteria, we have multiple families of three-way rankings. Based on these multiple families, by adopting the TODIM procedure, we introduce a ranking function to rank the set of alternatives.

Minimizing Depth of Decision Trees with Hypotheses

Mohammad Azad^a, Igor Chikalov^b, Shahid Hussain^c and Mikhail Moshkov^d

^aJouf University, Saudi Arabia; ^bIntel Corporation, USA; ^cDhanani School of Science and Engineering, Pakistan; ^dKing Abdullah University of Science and Technology, Saudi Arabia

mmazad@ju.edu.sa,{igor.chikalov,hussain.shahid}@gmail. com,mikhail.moshkov@kaust.edu.sa

In this paper, we consider decision trees that use both conventional queries based on one attribute each and queries based on hypotheses about values of all attributes. Such decision trees are similar to ones studied in exact learning, where membership and equivalence queries are allowed. We present dynamic programming algorithms for minimization of the depth of above decision trees and discuss results of computer experiments on various data sets and randomly generated Boolean functions.

Attention Enhanced Hierarchical Feature Representation for Three-way Decision Boundary Processing

JIE CHEN^{a,b,c}, YUE CHEN^{a,b,c}, YANG XU^{a,b,c}, SHU ZHAO^{a,b,c} AND YANPING ZHANG^{a,b,c}

^aKey Laboratory of Intelligent Computing and Signal Processing, Ministry of Education, China; ^bAnhui University, China; ^cInformation Materials and Intelligent Sensing Laboratory of Anhui Province, China

619893811@qq.com,zhaoshuzs2002@hotmail.com

For binary classification, the three-way decision divides samples into positive (POS) region, negative (NEG) region, and boundary region (BND). The correct division of these boundary data is helpful to improve the accuracy of binary classification. However, how to construct the optimal feature representation from certain samples for boundary domain partition is a challenge. In this paper, we propose attention enhanced hierarchical feature representation for three-way decision boundary processing (AHT) to deal with the boundary region. Based on the three-way decision, certain regions (positive, negative) and boundary regions are obtained. Obtaining the hierarchical feature representations on the positive domain and the negative domain respectively. Constructing attention-enhanced fusion feature representation to guide the boundary domain division of the testing set. The experimental results on five UCI datasets show that our algorithm effectively improves binary classification accuracy.

Three-way decisions based RNN models for sentiment classification

Yan Ma a,b , Jingying Yu b , Bojing Ji c , Jie Chen b , Shu Zhao b and Jiajun Chen a

^aWest Anhui University, China; ^bAnhui University, China; ^cChizhou University, China

smart137@foxmail.com,yjyxhkxl@163.com,545685383@qq.com, chenjie200398@163.com,zhaoshuzs2002@hotmail.com,chenjj@ wxc.edu.cn

Recurrent neural networks (RNN) has been widely used in sentiment classification. RNN can memorize the previous information and is applied to calculate the current output. For sentiment binary classification, RNN calculates the probabilities and then performs binary classification according to the probability values, and some emotions near the median are forcibly divided. But, it does not consider the existence of some samples that are not very clearly polarized in sentiment binary classification. Three-way decisions theory divides the dataset into three regions, positive region, negative region, boundary region. In the process of training classification, the probabilities of some samples belonging to different categories are very close, and three-way decisions can divide them into the boundary region by setting thresholds. Reason-able processing of the boundary region can get better results for binary classification by adjusting the probability of samples in the boundary region. Therefore, in this paper, we propose three-way decisions based RNN models for sentiment classification. Firstly, we use basic RNN models to classify the data. Secondly, we apply three-way decisions theory to set the thresholds, divide the boundary region based on probability. Finally, the probabilities of samples in the boundary region are adjusted and applied in the next round of training. Experiments on four real datasets show that our proposed models are better than corresponding basic RNN models in terms of classification accuracy.

Spark accelerated implementation of parallel attribute reduction from incomplete data

Qian Cao^a, Chuan Luo^a, Tianrui Li^b and Hongmei Chen^b

^aSichuan University, China; ^bSouthwest Jiaotong University, China

caoqian@stu.scu.edu.cn,cluo@scu.edu.cn,{trli,hmchen}@ swjtu.edu.cn

Attribute reduction is a significant process of data preprocessing to overcome the challenges posed by multi-dimensional data analysis. Missing values in the data are usually unavoidable in the real applications, so it is important to select features with high importance ef-ficiently in incomplete data. The theory of rough sets has been widely used in attribute reduction for uncertain data mining. To enable the rough set theory for large-scale incomplete data analysis, this paper develops a novel distributed attribute reduction algorithm based on Apache Spark cluster computing platform. By taking the advantage of positive approximation technique for reducing the data broadcasting gradually while reducing each redundant attribute iteratively, the proposed algorithm can significantly accelerate the attribute reduction in leveraging a computer cluster when processing large-scale incomplete data. Numerical experiments on different UCI data sets evidences the proposed parallel algorithm achieves high performance in in terms of extensibility and scalability.

An Opinion Summarization-Evaluation System Based on Pre-trained Models

HAN JIANG, YUBIN WANG, SONGHAO LV AND ZHIHUA WEI

Tongji University, China

{1853290,1851731,1852635,zhihua_wei}@tongji.edu.cn

As social media appeal more frequently used, the task of extracting the mainstream opinions of the discussions arising from the media, i.e. opinion summarization, has drawn considerable attention. This paper proposes an opinion summarization-evaluation system containing a pipeline and an evaluation module for the task. In our algorithm, the state-of-the-art pre-trained model BERT is fine-tuned for the subjectivity analysis, and the advanced pre-trained models are combined with traditional data mining algorithms to gain the mainstreams. For evaluation, a set of hierarchical metrics is also stated. Experiment result shows that our algorithm produces concise and major opinions. An ablation study is also conducted to prove that each part of the pipeline takes effect significantly.

General Rough Modeling of Cluster Analysis

A. Mani

Indian Statistical Institute, India

a.mani.cms@gmail.com

In this research a general theoretical framework for abstract clustering is proposed over specific partial algebraic systems by the present author. Her theory helps in isolating minimal assumptions necessary for different concepts of clustering information in any form to be realized in a situation (and therefore in a semantics). It is well-known that of the limited number of proofs in the theory of hard and soft clustering that are known to exist, most involve statistical assumptions. Many methods seem to work because they seem to work in specific empirical practice. Two new general rough methods of analyzing clusterings are invented, and this opens the subject to clearer conceptions and contaminationfree theoretical proofs. This is also illustrated with two abstract and real data sets. In addition, basic ideas of rough clustering in the literature are generalized from a theoretical and methodological perspective.

Determining Tanimoto Similarity Neighborhoods of Real-Valued Vectors by Means of the Triangle Inequality and Bounds on Lengths

MARZENA KRYSZKIEWICZ

Warsaw University of Technology, Poland

mkr@ii.pw.edu.pl

The Tanimoto similarity is widely used in chemoinformatics, biology, bio-informatics, text mining and information retrieval to determine neighborhoods of sufficiently similar objects or k most similar objects represented by real-valued vectors. For metrics such as the Euclidean distance, the triangle inequality property is often used to efficiently identify vectors that may belong to the sought neighborhood of a given vector. Nevertheless, the Tanimoto similarity as well as the Tanimoto dissimilarity do not fulfill the triangle inequality property for real-valued vectors. In spite of this, in this paper, we show that the problem of looking for a neighborhood with respect to the Tanimoto similarity among real-valued vectors is equivalent to the problem of looking for a neighborhood among normalized forms of these vectors in the Euclidean space. Based on this result, we propose a method that uses the triangle inequality to losslessly identify promising candidates for members of Tanimoto similarity neighborhoods among real-valued vectors. The method requires pre-calculation and storage of the distances from normalized forms of real-valued vectors to so called a reference vector. The normalized forms of vectors themselves do not need to be stored after the pre-calculation of these distances. We also propose two variants of a new combined method which, apart from the triangle inequality, also uses bounds on vector lengths to determine Tanimoto similarity neighborhoods. The usefulness of the new and related methods is illustrated with examples.

DDAE-GAN: Seismic data denoising by integrating autoencoder and generative adversarial network

FAN MIN, LIN-RONG WANG, SHU-LIN PAN AND GUOJIE SONG

Southwest Petroleum University, China

minfan@swpu.edu.cn

Machine learning methods face two main challenges in denoising tasks. One is the lack of supervised training data, and the other is the limited knowledge of complex unknown noise. In this paper, for seismic denoising, we propose a new method with three techniques to handle them effectively. First, a Generative Adversarial Network (GAN) is employed to generate a large number of paired clean-noisy data using real noise. Second, a deep denoising autoencoder (DDAE) is pre-trained using these data. Third, a transfer learning technique is used to train the DDAE further on a few field data. We have assessed the proposed method based on qualitative and quantitative analysis. Results show that the method can suppress seismic data noise well.

Attribute Reduction Using Functional Dependency Relations in Rough Set Theory

MAURICIO RESTREPO^a AND CHRIS CORNELIS^b

^aUniversidad Militar Nueva Granada, Colombia; ^bGhent University, Belgium

mauricio.restrepo@unimilitar.edu.co,chris.cornelis@ugent. be

This paper presents some functional dependency relations defined on the attribute set of an information system. We establish some basic relationships between functional dependency relations, attribute reduction, and closure operators. We show that each functional dependency defines a closure operator. A partial order for dependencies is introduced, and finally, it is shown that reducts of an information system can be obtained from the maximal elements of a functional dependency relation.

Tolerance-based Twitter Sentiment Classifier: Preliminary Results

VRUSHANG PATEL AND SHEELA RAMANNA

University of Winnipeg, Canada

patel-v30@webmail.uwinnipeg.ca,s.ramanna@uwinnipeg.ca

Twitter sentiment classification identifies the polarity of tweets such as positive, negative or neutral based on textual features. Two main challenges encountered with tweets are the length of the text (max. of 140 characters) and incorrect or improper use of language. The goal of this work was to gain insights into the performance of the Tolerance near set-based (TNS) classifier when applied to a text classification problem. A modified form of tolerance-based algorithm (TSC) to classify sentiment polarities of tweets was introduced with vectors from pretrained SBERT algorithm. Experiments with subsets of six well-known datasets and seven other machine learning algorithms (including a deep learning Distil-BERT algorithm) were conducted. One of the datasets (Covid-Sentiment) was hand-crafted with tweets from Twitter regarding opinions related to COVID. Distil-BERT algorithm outperforms the other algorithms on all but one dataset using a weighted F1-score. Our proposed tolerance-based algorithm (TSC) performs best when the generated tolerance class sizes are balanced for each of the sentiment classes.

Mining Incomplete Data Using Global and Saturated Probabilistic Approximations Based on Characteristic Sets and Maximal Consistent Blocks

PATRICK CLARK^a, JERZY GRZYMALA-BUSSE^{a,b}, ZDZISLAW S. HIPPE^b AND TERESA MROCZEK^b

^aUniversity of Kansas, USA; ^bUniversity of Information Technology and Management, Poland

patrick.g.clark@gmail.com,jerzy@ku.edu,{zhippe,tmroczek}@ wsiz.rzeszow.pl

In this paper we discuss incomplete data sets with missing attribute values interpreted as "do not care" conditions. For data mining, we use two types of probabilistic approximations, global and saturated. Such approximations are constructed from two types of granules, characteristic sets and maximal consistent blocks. We present results of experiments on mining incomplete data sets using four approaches, combining two types of probabilistic approximations, global and saturated, with two types of granules, characteristic sets and maximal con-sistent blocks. We compare these four approaches, using an error rate computed as the result of ten-fold cross validation. We show that there are significant differences (5% level of significance) between these four approaches to data mining. However, there is no universally best approach. Hence, for an incomplete data set, the best approach to data mining should be chosen by trying all four approaches.

Author index

Α

Acosta, Juan Francisco, 58 Adamczyk, David, 47 Aguiló, Isabel, 77 Aliannejadi, Mohammad, 43 Alonso, Pedro, 50 Alonso, Sergio, 63 Andreasen, Troels, 89 Angarita-Zapata, Juan S., 70 Antunes-Santos, Felipe, 67 Aragón, Roberto G., 94 Asmus, Tiago, 76, 82 Aşıcı, Emel, 83 Azad, Mohammad, 95

В

Baczyński, Michał, 76 Barros, Laécio, 50 Basarik, Stanislav, 84 Baz, Juan, 61, 64 Bedregal, Benjamín, 51 Běhounek, Libor, 68 Bejines López, Carlos, 51 Benbernou, Salima, 66 Bentkowska, Urszula, 63, 80 Bessa, Iury, 60 Bets, Raivis, 51 Bloshko, Yurii, 94 Boczek, Michał, 85 Boffa, Stefania, 93 Borges, Eduardo, 76, 82 Borzová, Jana, 84 Bouchon-Meunier, Bernadette, 51 Brezani, Samuel, 42 Bronselaer, Antoon, 59 Brosa Rodríguez, Antoni, 55 Bui Quoc, Viec, 50 Bulskov, Henrik, 89 Burda, Michal, 64, 67 Bustince, Humberto, 47-49, 54, 75, 76, 79, 80, 82,85

Cabri, Alberto, 53 Cadenas, José M., 70 Calcagni, Antonio, 53, 62 Cam Binh, Le, 49, 59 Camacho, Eduardo F., 58 Camargos, Murilo, 60 Campagner, Andrea, 93 Campillo-Muñoz, Susana M., 56 Cánovas, Jose, 52 Cao, Nhung, 65, 67, 68 Cao, Qian, 96 Cardin, Marta, 82 Casalino, Gabriella, 60, 90 Castellano, Giovanna, 60 Castiblanco, Fabián, 59 Castillo-López, Aitor, 54, 85 Ceberio, Martine, 28 Chauhan, Nishant, 68 Chen, Hongmei, 96 Chen, Jiajun, 95 Chen, Jie, 95 Chen, Xinyi, 54 Chen, Yue, 95 Chersoni, Emmanuele, 54 Chicaiza, William D., 58 Chikalov, Igor, 95 Choi, Byung-Jae, 68 Ciucci, Davide, 93 Clark, Patrick, 97 Corbacho Carazas, Lisbeth, 67 Cordero, Pablo, 53 Cordón, Oscar, 80 Cordovil Junior, Luiz, 60 Cornejo, M. Eugenia, 94 Cornelis, Chris, 93, 95, 97 Coutinho, Pedro, 60 Crestani, Fabio, 43 Cruz, Carlos, 63 Csiszár, Gábor, 62 Csiszár, Orsolya, 62 Cuzzocrea, Alfredo, 90 Cerveňová, Veronika, 64 Cunderlíková, Katarina, 64

\mathbf{C}

Cabrera, Inma P., 53 Cabrerizo, Francisco Javier, 63 D

Daňková, Martina, 68 De Baets, Bernard, 66, 67 de Campos Souza, Paulo Vitor, 49 De Capitani, Sabrina, 27 De Miguel, Laura, 49, 53 De Tré, Guy, 59, 89 Díaz, Irene, 61, 64, 79 Diaz-Garcia, J. Angel, 90 Dimuro, Graçaliz, 47, 49, 76, 82 Doan, Tam, 90 Dombi, József, 62 Drygaś, Paweł, 83 Dubey, Mahesh Kumar, 47 Dubois, Didier, 33, 64 Dujmovic, Jozo, 89 Durante, Fabrizio, 79, 85 Dvořák, Antonín, 57, 81 Dyczkowski, Krzysztof, 61

\mathbf{E}

Eigner, György, 62 Emir, Kadir, 64 Emmendorfer, Leonardo, 82 Escaño, Juan M., 58 Esmi, Estevão, 50, 52 Esteva, Francesc, 64

\mathbf{F}

Faci, Adam, 66 Fadeev, Egor, 86 Fajardo Calderín, Jenny, 70 Fechner, Wlodzimierz, 76 Felix, Rudolf, 62 Feng, Xiushi, 93 Fernandes, Julio César, 52 Fernandez, Francisco Javier, 47, 49, 53, 54, 75, 80 Fernandez-Peralta, Raquel, 77 Ferre, Sebastien, 89 Ferrero-Jaurrieta, Mikel, 48 Fiala, Karel, 64 Figallo-Orellano, Aldo, 64 Fischer Nilsson, Jørgen, 89 Flaminio, Tommaso, 64 Fosci, Paolo, 90 Francis, Faux, 64 Franco De Los Ríos, Camilo, 59 Franco, Camilo, 59 Freitas, Bruna, 51 Fujiwara, Takeshi, 93 Fumanal Idocin, Javier, 47, 80, 85

Furukawa, Tomoaki, 58

G

Galar, Mikel, 79 Gallego, Antonio J., 58 Gałka, Wojciech, 80 Gao, Zhenzhong, 61 García-Cascales, M. Socorro, 70 García-Zamora, Diego, 59 Garmendia, Luis, 82 Garrido, M. Carmen, 70 Gatto, Aurora, 85 Gil-García, Isabel Cristina, 70 Godo, Lluis, 64 Goławska, Joanna, 62 Gómez, Marisol, 47, 82 Greco, Salvatore, 95 Grigorenko, Olga, 68 Grochowalski, Piotr, 95 Grzegorzewski, Przemysław, 62 Grzymala-Busse, Jerzy, 97 Guo, Yifan, 90 Gupta, Megha, 78 Gupta, Vikash Kumar, 83

Η

H. N. Santiago, Regivan, 48 Ha, Daekeon, 66 Hadjali, Allel, 40 Halčinová, Lenka, 84 Hamilton, Alberto, 58 Hammoud, Khodor, 66 Hernández-Jiménez, Beatriz, 61 Herrera, Francisco, 48 Herrera-Viedma, Enrique, 63 Hippe, Zdzislaw S., 97 Holčapek, Michal, 50, 81 Honda, Katsuhiro, 58 Horanská, Ľubomíra, 48, 75 Hoste, Veronique, 93 Hougaard, Jens Leth, 59 Hryniewicz, Olgierd, 60 Hsu, Yu-Yin, 54 Hudec, Miroslav, 81 Huibers, Theo, 43 Huidobro, Pedro, 50 Hussain, Shahid, 95 Hutník, Ondrej, 85

Ι

Iglesias-Rey, Sara, 66 Ignazzi, Claudio, 79 Innan, Shigeaki, 69 Inuiguchi, Masahiro, 61, 69 Iriarte, Maite, 67

J

Janeček, Jiří, 47 Janiš, Vladimir, 50 Jayaram, Balasubramaniam, 57, 78, 83 Ji, Bojing, 95 Jiang, Han, 96 Jimenez-Lopez, M. Dolores, 56 Junio Guimaraes, Augusto, 49

Κ

Kaczmarek-Majer, Katarzyna, 60 Kalina, Martin, 75 Kaluszka, Marek, 85 Kaminska, Olha, 93 Kaymak, Uzay, 65 Keskin, Sinan, 41 Khan, Ali, 90 Kim, Baekcheon, 66 Kim, Eun Kyeong, 66 Kim, Jin Yong, 66 Kim, Jin-Beom, 68 Kim, Sungshin, 66 Kiseľák, Jozef, 75 Klawonn, Frank, 25 Kleinová, Miriam, 85 Kolesárová, Anna, 75 Kornobis, Dominika, 60 Korobov, Alexander, 69 Kosheleva, Olga, 62 Kosior, Dawid, 61 Krastiņš, Māris, 52 Kreinovich, Vladik, 62 Król, Anna, 63 Kruml, David, 64 Kryszkiewicz, Marzena, 96 Kupka, Jiri, 52

\mathbf{L}

Labella, Álvaro, 59 Lafuente, Julio, 48 Laiate, Beatriz, 50 Lamata, María T., 63 Landoni, Monica, 43 Laudy, Claire, 66 Leidner, Jochen L., 89 Leite, Daniel, 60 Lenz, Oliver Urs, 93 Lermanda, Tomás, 68 Lesot, Marie-Jeanne, 66, 89 Li, Tianrui, 96 Linh, Nguyen, 57 Llamazares, Bonifacio, 84 Llano, Marlon, 58 Lo Bosco, Giosue, 90 Lobo, David, 94 Lopez-Molina, Carlos, 53, 54, 66, 67 Lucca, Giancarlo, 76, 82 Lughofer, Edwin, 49 Luo, Chuan, 96 Lv, Songhao, 96

M

Ma, Yan, 95 Madrid, Nicolás, 65 Maestre-Gongora, Gina, 70 Magdalena, Luis, 82 Maiorana, Mariano, 90 Maji, Pradipta, 36 Mandal, Sayantan, 57 Mani, A., 96 Marsala, Christophe, 51 Martin-Bautista, Maria J., 90 Martínez, Luis, 69 Martínez España, Raquel, 70 Martínez-Araneda, Claudia, 68 Martínez Palhares, Reinaldo, 60 Martínez, Luis, 59 Marvulli, Nicola, 60 Massanet, Sebastia, 29, 76–78 Masulli, Francesco, 53 Medina, Jesús, 94 Mencar, Corrado, 61 Mendez Perez, Juan Albino, 58 Mesa-Cruz, Ricardo, 58 Mesiar, Radko, 75, 81, 83 Mesiarová-Zemánková, Andrea, 81 Min, Fan, 97 Mináriková, Erika, 81 Minárová, Maria, 80, 85 Miqueles, Eduardo, 67 Mir, Arnau, 53, 77 Mirshahi, Sina, 59 Mirshahi, Soheyla, 59 Miś, Katarzyna, 76 Mnasri, Zied, 53 Močkoř, Jiří, 52, 53 Molina-García, Ángel, 70 Montero, Javier, 59, 82 Montes, Susana, 50, 61, 64 Moradi Cheshmehbeigi, Hassan, 59 Morente-Molinera, Juan Antonio, 63 Moshkov, Mikhail, 95 Mosteiro, Pablo, 65 Moś, Grzegorz, 78 Mroczek, Teresa, 97 Mrukowicz, Marcin, 80 Munar, Marc, 78 Muñoz-Velasco, Emilio, 53 Murgia, Emiliana, 43 Murinová, Petra, 63, 64

Ν

Nakata, Michinori, 93 Nanavati, Kavit, 83 Navara, Mirko, 51 Nishizaki, Ichiro, 62 Niskanen, Vesa, 58 Notsu, Akira, 58 Novák, Vilém, 59, 63 Novoa-Hernández, Pavel, 70 Nugent, Tim, 89

0

Ojeda-Aciego, Manuel, 65 Ojeda-Hernández, Manuel, 53 Olar, Oksana, 94 Ontkovičová, Zuzana, 75 Osorio Camargos, Murilo, 60 Osuna-Gómez, Rafaela, 61 Ouziri, Mourad, 66

\mathbf{P}

Palangetić, Marko, 95 Palhares, Reinaldo, 60 Pan, Shu-Lin, 97 Papco, Martin, 47 Paseka, Jan, 64, 81 Patel, Vrushang, 97 Paternain, Daniel, 79 Pavliska, Viktor, 64 Peelman, Milan, 59 Pekala, Barbara, 61 Pelta, David, 63, 70 Peng, Zhihan, 93 Pera, Maria Soledad, 43 Peralta, Daniel, 93 Pereira, Graçaliz, 48 Pérez-Asurmendi, Patrizia, 84 Pérez-Fernández, Raúl, 61, 64, 79 Perfilieva, Irina, 47, 50 Perrone, Elisa, 79 Pham, Tam, 47

Pilato, Giovanni, 90 Pincay, Jhonny, 60 Piri Yengijeh, Navid, 59 Pivert, Olivier, 89 Portmann, Edy, 60 Prade, Henri, 39, 64 Psaila, Giuseppe, 90 Puris, Amilkar, 70

R

Radaev, Alexander, 69 Ramanna, Sheela, 97 Ramírez Poussa, Eloisa, 94 Ramos Escudero, Adela, 70 Reformat, Marek Z., 66 Reiser, Renata, 51 Restrepo, Mauricio, 97 Richard, Gilles, 39 Rico, Agnès, 64 Rico, Noelia, 79 Riera, Juan Vicente, 77 Rijcken, Emil, 65 Rodríguez, Fabio, 58 Rodríguez, J. Tinguaro, 59 Rodríguez, Rosa M., 59 Rodríguez-Martínez, Iosu, 48, 85 Rodríguez-Vela, Camino, 79 Romaniuk, Maciej, 62 Rouzbehi, Kumars, 59 Rovetta, Stefano, 53 Rubio-Manzano, Clemente, 68 Ruiz, M. Dolores, 90 Ruiz-Aguilera, Daniel, 78 Ruíz-Garzón, Gabriel, 61

\mathbf{S}

Saito, Norio, 93 Sakai, Hiroshi, 93 Salas, Ana, 63 Saminger-Platz, Susanne, 85 Sánchez, Adolfo J., 58 Sánchez-Lozano, Juan Miguel, 70 Santo Pedro, Francielle, 50 Santos, Helida, 51 Sanz, José Antonio, 76 Scheepers, Floortje, 65 Schicchi, Daniele, 90 Schneider, Guilherme, 51 Sedlár, Igor, 65 Segura-Navarrete, Alejandra, 68 Selingerová, Iveta, 64 Sesma, Mikel, 48

Sesma-Sara, Mikel, 75 Shi, Chengjun, 95 Silva Coutinho, Pedro Henrique, 60 Silva, Lidiane, 51 Singh, Anand Pratap, 47 Singh, Shailendra, 53 Słowiński, Roman, 26, 95 Smits, Gregory, 89 Song, Guo-Jie, 97 Spruit, Marco, 65 Stachowiak, Anna, 60 Stefanowski, Jerzy, 35 Stelea, Nicole, 89 Stupňanová, Andrea, 75 Su, Yong, 75 Sun, Weilun, 90 Suraj, Zbigniew, 94, 95 Sussner, Peter, 52, 67 Szałas, Andrzej, 93 Szkoła, Jarosław, 61 Seliga, Adam, 75 Škorupová, Nicole, 52 Sostak, Alexander, 52, 86 Spirková, Jana, 75 Štěpnička, Martin, 57, 65 Supina, Jaroslav, 84

\mathbf{T}

Takáč, Zdenko, 48, 49, 54, 75, 79 Tarau, Paul, 90 Tellez Perez, Horacio, 89 Terán, Luis, 60 Thanh Long, Ngo, 49 The Long, Pham, 59 Tiwari, S, 53 To, Nhuan D., 66 Torrens, Adrià, 55 Trillo, José Ramón, 63

U

Ubukata, Seiki, 58 Uljane, Ingrīda, 52, 86 Urenda, Julio, 62 Urio, Asier, 49 Uriz, Mikel, 79 Ursúa, Pablo, 48

V

Valášek, Radek, 68 Van Nha, Pham, 49, 59 Verdegay, José L., 63 Vidal-Castro, Christian, 68 Vidaurre, Carmen, 47 Vojtáš, Peter, 42

W

Wang, Lin-Rong, 97 Wang, Yubin, 96 Wasques, Vinícius, 50, 52 Wei, Zhihua, 96 Wieczynski, Jonata, 76, 82 Wijsen, Jef, 89

Х

Xu, Yang, 95

Y

Yager, Ronald, 89 Yalco-Cano, Yurilev, 61 Yamin, Adenauer, 51 Yano, Hitoshi, 62 Yao, Yiyu, 95 Yatsalo, Boris, 69 Yazici, Adnan, 41 Yebra, Luis J., 58 Yu, Hong, 93 Yu, Jingying, 95

\mathbf{Z}

Zámečníková, Hana, 50 Zervanou, Kalliopi, 65 Zhang, Yanping, 95 Zhao, Shu, 95 Zubyuk, Andrey, 86

Title: Book of Abstracts

IFSA-EUSFLAT 2021 jointly with AGOP, IJCRS, and FQAS

Editors:	Radko Mesiar, Marek Reformat, Martin Štěpnička
Publisher:	University of Ostrava, Dvořákova 7, 70103 Ostrava
Edition:	First, 2021
Cover design:	Jan Hůla
Typesetting:	by authors using LATEX completion by Martin Dyba and Viktor Pavliska

ISBN 978-80-7599-269-7